HOUSING DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE (RHDA/OHDA)

Application for Housing Development Financing

AUSTIN HOUSING
FINHACL CORPOATIGN

PLEASE NOTE: AHFC Reserves the right to fund projects at a lower amount than requested, and the right to

deny applications that do not coincide with the Austin Strategic Housing Blueprint and policy direction from
the Austin City Council.

Applicant Information
(If the developer involves multiple entities, is a partnership or joint venture, please provide the requisite
information for each and identify the entity that will serve as the "lead" organization.)

Developer Name Owner Name
Foundation Communities, Inc. | | FC Waters Park Housing, LP
Street Address
12190 N Mopac Expwy
City State Zip
Austin ] [ 78758 |

Contact Name Contact Telephone

Sabrina Butler | | 512-610-4025 |

Contact Email

sabrina.butler@foundcom.org

Federal Tax ID Number D-U-N-5 Number (visit www.dnb.com for free DUNS#.)
74-2563260 | | 556352268 |

The applicant/developer certifies that the data included in this application and the exhibits attached hereto
are true and correct. Unsigned/undated submissions will not be considered.

Legal Name of Developer/Entity Title of Authorized Officer
Foundation Communities, Inc. [ | Walter Moreau

!*/ 24 r/Zevl q

Signature of Authorized Officer Date

INSTRUCTIONS: Applications will be reviewed on a quarterly basis. All applications submitted in the review
period that achieve the minimum threshold score will be reviewed by an internal panel of NHCD staff. All
awards will be made by the AHFC Board of Directors. To be considered for an award, please complete this
application electronically, print, sign, and deliver to:

Department of Neighborhood City of Austin
Housing and Community
1000 East 11th Street JAM 31 2019
Austin, Texas 78702 NHCD / AHF c

Attn: James May
Community Development Manager




Project Summary Form

1) Project Name 2) Project Type 3) New Construction or Rehabilitation?
| Waterloo Terrace |  [100% Affordable] | New Construction |
4} Location Description (Acreage, side of sireel. distance from intersection) 5) Mobility Bond Corridor
| 12190 N Mopac Expwy | B Burnet Rd |
6) Census Tract 7) Council District 8) Elementary School 9} Affordability Period
| 18.29 | | District7 | | SUMMITT EL | 40 years ]
10) Type of Structure 11) Occupied? 12) How will funds be used?
| Multi-family | | Yes | lion, Pre-development, and Cong
13} Summary of Rental Units by MFI Level
. One Two Three Four (+)
Sty I Efficlency Bedroom Bedroom Bedroom Bedroom el
Up to 20% MFI 0
Up to 30% MFI 27 27
Up to 40% MFI 27 27
Up to 50% MFI 78 78
Up to 60% MFI 0
Up to 80% MFI__ 0
Up to 120% MFI 0
No Restrictions 0
Total Units 132 0 0 0 1] 132
14) Summary of Units for Sale at MFI Level
Income Level Efficiency One Two Three Four (+) | Total
Up to 60% MFI 0
Up to 80% MF) 0
Up to 120% MFI 0
No Restrictions 0
Total Units 0 0 0 1} 0 0
15) Initiatives and Priorities
Initiative |# of Units] Initiative # of Units|
Accessible Units for Mobility Impairments 13 Continuum of Care Units 27
Accessible Units for Sensory Impairments 3
Use the City of Austin GIS Map to Answer the questions below
16} Is the property within 1/2 mile of an Imagine Austin Center or Corridor? Yes
17} Is the property within 1/4 mile of a High-Frequency Transit Stop?
18) Is the property within 3/4 mile of Transit Service? Yes
19) The property has Healthy Food Access? Yes
20) Estimated Sources and Uses of funds
Sources Uses
Debt Acquisition 4261000
Third Party Equity 15148485 Off-Site
Grant Site Work
Deferred Developer Fee Sit Amenities
Other 5731624 Building Costs 17723108
City of Austin 6400000 Contractor Fees 690000
Soft Costs 1692004
Financing 1241532
Developer Fees 1672467

Total $ 27,280,109 Total § 27,280,109



Development Schedule
Start Date End Date

Site Control Aug-18 Jan-00
Acquisition Aug-lBl [EE
Zoning No zoning change
Environmental Review NA - GO Bonds I
Pre-Development Mar-19 Mar-19
Contract Execution Mar-19| |
Closing of Other Financing Mar-19 Mar-19
Development Services Review
Construction Mar-19 Aug-20
Site Preparation Mar-19 May-19|
25% Complete Sep-19 ;
50% Complete lan-20
75% Complete May-20
100% Complete Aug-20}
Marketing Apr-20 Mar-21
Pre-Listing May-20 Jul-20
Marketing Plan Apr-20 Apr-20
Wait List Process Mar-21 Mar-21
Disposition Sep-20 May-21
Lease Up Sep-20 Feb-21
Close Out Feb-21 May-21
Dec-14 May-16 Sep-17 Feb-19 Jun-20 Oct-21
Site Control ' - 1 | 7 ' '
Acquisition L+
Zoning

Environmental Review
Pre-Development
Contract Execution L3
Closing of Other Financing
Development Services Review
Construction
Site Preparation .
25% Complete ¢
50% Complete ¢
75% Complete L
100% Complete 2 3
Marketing
Pre-Listing '
Marketing Plan
Wait List Process
Disposition

Lease Up I
Close Out




'b_évelopﬁ'nent Bq_dget

Requested AHFC
Total Project Cost Funds Oescription
Pre-Development
Appraisal 10,00('.]
Enviranmental Review 32,254| includes soils report
Engineering 0 included in architecture
Survey 11,460
Architectural 886,573
Subtotal Pre-Development Cost $940,287 50
Acquisition
Site and/or Land 4,261,000 3,200,000
Structures
Other (specify)
Subtotal Acquisition Cost 54,261,000 $3,200,000
Construction
Infrastructure 0
Site Work 1,694,325
Demolition 53,500
Concrete 717,634|
Masonry 331,515
Rough Carpentry 1,574,470 1,000,000|all carpentry
Finish Carpentry
Waterproofing and Insulation 189,950
Roofing and Sheet Metal 372,850
Plumbing/Hot Water 1,920,125 1,000,000]
HVAC/Mechanical 3,609,142 1,200,000
Electrical 2,036,980,
Doors/Windows/Glass 417,445
Lath and Plaster/Drywall and Acoustical 496,441
Tiel Work
Soft and Hard Floor 366,159
Paint/Decorating/Blinds/Shades
Specialties/Special Equipment 151,958
Cabinetry/Appliances 226,708
Carpet 15,420
Other (specify} 3,375,984 steel/metals, elevator, general conditions, fireproofing, flre spr
Construction Contingency 862,500
Subtotal Construction Cost| 518,413,106 $3,200,000
Soft & Carrying Costs
Legal 55,000
Audit/Accounting 11,284
Title/Recordin 100,000
Architectural {inspections) 4] Included In architectural predevelopment
Construction Interest 1,022,146 Includes const. loan fees, closing costs, Inspections
Construction Period Insurance 38,500
Construction Period Taxes 50,028
Retacation 8]
Marketing 115,000 includes cost of lease-up staffing, etc. until 50% occupancy acH
Davis-Bacon Monitoring 0
Other (specify) 2,273,758 market study, permits, consultants, soft cost contingency, tax
Subtotal Soft & Carrying Costs| $3,665,716 S0,
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET| " $27,280,109] $6,400,000
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Hime] Waterloo Terrace

Project 100% Atigrdable
Council District District 7
o 01 —

Cansus Tract] 18.29
2 29

AHFC Funding Reguest Amoun 56,400,000
Estimated Total Praject Cost 627,260,109

High Fraquency Transit

Im-lnl Austin

District Goal

=

High Opparti
Displacement Risk
ﬁlcﬁ Frequency Tramsit

reached with units
reached with units
reached with units

reached with units
reached with uhits

of annual goa! reached with units

Imagine Austin
Grogrophic Dispersion
Mm Corridor

SCORE|
< A0% MF|

[ of rental units at < 40% MFI
ental units at

< 50% M

[# of rental units at < 50% MFI

District Gool

Sl
High Uity
Dissocement Rk
High Freguency Transit

% of annual goal reached with units

Impgine Austin

Oeographic Disperiion
—

Mobility 8end Cotridor

—

% of annual goal reactied with units
% of annual goal reached with units

% of annual goa! reached with units

score|

ol Goats * 15

« BO% MFI|
< BO% MFI|
District Gool
Opportunity of annual goa raached with units
Displacernent Risk of annual goa reac hed with units
High Frequency Transit . of annual goa! reached with units
imagine Austin 0.00% ed with unlts
UL
Groprapbic Di d annual goal with units
Mability Bond Corridor annua! goal

Total # of units previded W 10 100 per year

Continuum of Care Score

total CoC Unfta/100 + HF Unaa/S0|°20 _

Access to Haalthy Food| Yes Within 1 Mile of Healthy Food {City GI.
Continuum of Cars ted Score 4 IMobllity, Access to Jobs, Communhy Institutions, Soclal Cohesion
Gedroom Units 0 otal Afiordable 2 Bedroom units
Bedroom Units 0 otal Affordable 3 Bedroom units
4 Bedroom Units 0 otal Aﬂordaw + Bedroom units
Multi-Generational H 0 ult-bedroom Unit/Total Units * 30
TEA Grad 7% lemnentary School Rating from TEA
Muiti-Genaratlonsl H 0 ucstional Attainment, Environment, Community Institutlons, Social Coheslen,
Accessible Units 16 moblitiy and sensory units
Non-PSH. Non-Voucher Under £ J0% Mt Total units under 20% MFI

[Accessibia Unit/Total Units * 20

Accassibity Scol
Matro Access Service|

Within 3/4 mile of fixed route transit
Acruscibifity Welphted Scors 1 obility, Community Institutions
Initiatives and Priorities Score]l 12— |MAXIMUM SCORE = 200
I _ UNDERWRITING] S : ; =
AMFCL 23% of total project cost funded th h AHFC reguest
Sp— 25 - [% laverage ® 25) 2
AHFC Per Unit Subsidy Amount of assistance unit
e Unit 300 {3200,000 - per unit subsldy}®25,/$200,00¢
ANFC Per Bedroom Subsidy Amount of asslstance per bedroom
Bedraom Sco {5200, 000 - per badroom subsidy! 5200004
Debt ¢ Agtio {Yeor 5} easured at the 5 Year mark
Debt Ratlo Score| Minimum = 1.0; Maximumi = 1.5; 1.25 = best scora
Underwriting Score| MAXIMUM SCORE = 100
L + ¢ = A
FINAL QUANTITATIVE SCORE| 126 [THRESHOLD SCORE = 50
Pravious Developments
Hﬂnmkwr
Proposal
Supportive Services
D!vcfggmmr Team
Mawmr Team

Notes




Max, James

From: Sabrina Butler <sabrina.butler@Foundcom.org>

Sent: Wednesday, January 30, 2019 4:14 PM

To: May, James

Cc: Tillie Croxdale

Subject: Waterloo Terrace RHDA Application

Attachments: Waterloo_RHDA_Application-1.30.19.xls; Waterloo RHDA App signature page.pdf
Jamey —

Attached is the completed application workbook, and signed application cover page, for Waterloo Terrace. Since NHCD
has previously reviewed and funded this application, | am following your guidance that only the workbook is needed by
the February 1 funding deadline. If you require any additional information about the project as you process the new
request, please let me know.

The application contemplates a total funding award of $6,400,000, which is inclusive of the $3,200,000 that the city has
already approved and funded back in August 2018. We are asking for an additional $3,200,000. As | mentioned
previously, | am hopeful that we will still be able to access a federal funding source that would reduce our additional
funding request by $850,000. However, we won't know for a couple weeks what the impact of the extended federal
government shutdown was on our ability to access these funds within our tight development timeline, so | am asking for
city funds to make up the difference in case this funding is no longer available to the project.

Since this is our first time completing the new application form, | wanted to flag a few things and see if you would like to
see them presented differently:

1. On the Summary Form I checked “yes” for occupied, but please note that there are only commercial uses on the
site. If this is only intended to be checked in the case of residential occupancy, let me know and | can revise.

2. 1have somewhat arbitrarily suggested hard cost line items to utilize the AHFC funds in column C on the
Development Budget tab. | assume that this is fungible and can change based on costs of each AHFC-funded
draw, so long as all costs are eligible?

3. Ithink the expectation for the Operating Pro Forma Debt Service section is that we only show mandatory debt
service and other required payments. Yes? We will have cash-flow contingent investor asset management fees,
services fees, and contingent debt service payments on soft loans. But | think you are not expecting to see these
here. Let me know if otherwise.

4. 1plan to print the workbook and deliver a hard copy to your attention at NHCD tomorrow per the application
submission instructions — unless you prefer NOT to receive & hard copy, in which case let me know.

Thank you in advance for your consideration and support!
Sabrina

Sabrina Butler

Director of Real Estate Development | Foundation Communities
3036 S. 1* Street

Austin, TX 78704

Direct: 512.610.4025

sabrina.butler@foundcom.org

www.foundcom.org

fIE




FOUNDATION

creating housing where
families succeed

3036 South First Street .
Austin, TX 78704 February 13, 2018

tel: 512-447-2026 David Potter

fax: 512-447-0288 Austin Housing Finance Corporation
The Street - Jones Building

www.foundcom.org

1000 East 11th Street

visit us on facebook Austin, Texas 78702

follow us on twitter

RE:  Waters Park Studios Apartments — Reguest for City of Austin Funding
2018 Low Income Housing Tax Credit Cycle

Dear David;

Please find attached a copy of the Application for Renial Development Funding for Waters
Park Studios- approximately 132 units of permanent supponive housing located in
Northwest Austin. The site is in close proximity to an abundance of retail, employment,
work opportunities, and medical centers. We are so excited 10 be pursuing a PSH
development to help provide affordable housing for Austin that helps meets the City’s goals
of geographic dispersion.

Waters Park Studios scores a 162 on the RHDA Pragram Scoring Criteria. Key hi-lights of
the site include: units set aside for the chronically homeless and all units affordable to 50%
MFT with an average income of just $15,960. Waters Park Studios will provide an
affardable, attractive home with 24-hour staffing and wraparound services that include case
management, supported employment, education, counseling, and emergency financial
assistance,

We have submitted a request of RHDA Program funding in the amount of $4,000,000. We
feel this amount is justified given the deep income targeting and the drop of pricing in the
1ax credit market.

Thank you for your time and consideration of our application. If you have any questions,
please contact Sabrinz Butler at 512-610-4025.

Best

W et Honss—

Walter Moreau
Executive Director

oighbofWarks®

CHARTEARD MimMEga
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CONSIDER SMOKE-FREE HOUSING

The City of Austin encourages the development of smoke-free rental housing.
Smoke-free housing protects the health of residents by decreasing exposure to harmful
secondhand smoke. Also, apartment owners and managers reap the benefits of more
efficient and less expensive unit turnovers, potentially lower insurance premiums, and
reduced risk of fires.

Smoke-free policies are legally permissible and can be a marketing advantage for
attracting and retaining residents. More than 80 percent of people living in the Austin area
do not use tobacco, and a 2011 survey conducted by the Austin/Travis County Health and
Human Services Department found that 77 percent of renters in Travis County would prefer
to live in tobacco-free housing.

Find out how you can protect the health of residents, make your property safer, and
save money by downloading a copy of “A Manager's Guide to Smoke-Free Housing

Policies” at: http://www.livetobaccofreeaustin.org/owners.php.

Please answer the following questions.

Is this development intended to have restrictions on smoking? _x Yes _ No
If “Yes,” what level of restriction Is intended?

_x_ No smoking anywhere on the property, inside or outside

_—_ No smoking Inside residents’ units

___ No smoking in outdoor exclusive use areas such as individual balconies or patios

— No smoking in outdoor common areas such as pool, parking lot, green spaces, etc.

— No smoking cutdoors within a reasonable distance from building entrances (such as 15 - 25 feet) to prevent
smoke from entering another resident’s open windows or doors.

RHDA Project Proposal Application - Page 2 of 23 - FY 2016-17
Rev 6-1-15



2. A. Non-profit applicants/developers, attached copies of the following:
1. A ‘“certificate of status” issued by the Texas Secretary of State.
2. Federal IRS certification granting non-profit tax-exempt status.
3

Certified financial audit for most recent year which include the auditor's opinion and
management letters.

4. Board resolution approving the proposed project and authorizing the request for funding
B. M_gnglm;_s_{_@v_am attach copies of the following:
For Corporations, Limited Partnerships, and Limited Liability Companies, a copy of a “certificate of
status” issued by the Texas Secretary of State.
2. A current financial statement
3. Proof of sufficient reserves or a line of credit available, if necessary, in order to complete the proposed

project.

3. Praject Type (Please check any that apply.) This project is considered:

Traditional Rental Housing (serving low-income households, and resident services may or may
not be provided)

Transitional Housing (case management services provided and residency limited to a certain
length of time, usually no more than 24 months)

Permanent Supportive Housing {Considered long-term rental housing for very low-income
families and individuals who are among the hardest to serve and who are most vulnerable to
homelessness. This type of housing provides case management services to residents as needed).

If you checked Permanent Supportive Housing, please complete the information below.

A. Numbers of proposed PSH Units:
132  Total Number of Units in project
7 Total Number of Permanent Supportive Housing {(PSH) Units Proposed

B. Check the population or sub-population(s) proposed to be served and indicate the
number of units dedicated to that population or sub-population.

1. Persons needing “Housing First,” a Permanent Supportive Housing model typically
designed for individuals or families who have complex service needs, who are often turned away
from other affordable housing settings, and/or who are least likely to be able to proactively seek
and obtain housing on their own, Housing First approaches also include rapid re-housing which
provides quick access to permanent housing through interim rental assistance and supportive
services on a time-limited basis.

NUMBER OF LINITS

Individuals or families headed by individuals that are:

2._X Chronically homeless as established in the HEARTH Act (Homeless Emergency and
Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009) found at 24 CFR Part 577.

NUMBERQFUNITS 7

3. Households that would otherwise meet the HUD definition of chronically homeless
per the HEARTH Act, but have been in an institution for over 90 days, including a jail,
prison, substance abuse facility, = mental health treatment facility, hospital or other similar
facility.

NUMBER OF UNITS

4, Unaccompanied youth or families with children defined as homeless under other
federal statutes who:

a. have experienced a long-term period without living independently in permanent
housing;

RHDA Project Proposal Application - Page 3 of 23 = FY 2016-17
Rev 6-1-15



b. have experienced persistent instability as measured by frequent moves over such
period; and

¢. can be expected to continue in such status for an extended period of time because of
chronic disabilities, chronic physical health or mental health conditions, substance
addiction, histories of domestic viclence or childhood abuse, the presence of a child or
youth with a disability, or multiple barriers to employment.

MNUMBER OF UNITS

5. A single aduit or household led by an adult ‘aging out’ of state custody of the
foster care or juvenile probation system, where the head of household is homeless or at-
risk of homelessness.

NUMBER OF UNITS

6. Any other population not defined above but who would otherwise be eligible for or
need permanent supportive housing services.

NUMBER OF UNITS

NOTE: APPLICANTS CHECKING B.1, B.2, B.3, or B.4 ABOVE MUST COLLECT AND REPORT
INFORMATION INTO THE HOMELESS MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICE
(HMIS)

Project Description. Provide a brief project description that addresses items “A"” through “L”
below.

Foundation Communities is applying for funding in the amount of $4,000,000 from the City of Austin for the
new construction of Waters Park Studios - approximately 132 units of affordable supportive housing located in
Northwest Austin. Two land parcels will be combined to form the Development Site. The parcels are located
at 12207 Waters Park Rd, Austin, 78759 and 12190 N Mo Pac Expy, Austin, 78758,

Waters Park Studios will build on Foundation Communities’ successful model of housing-plus-services proven
effective for single adults with high needs, low incomes, and housing instability. Waters Park Studios will
provide an affordable, attractive home with 24-hour staffing and wraparound services that include case
management, supported employment, education, counseling, and emergency financial assistance. The
property will serve individuals transitioning from homelessness, people with mental and/or physical disabilities,
veterans, older adults who live on fixed incomes, children aging out of foster care, and those with chronic
diseases. All residents will have incomes at 50% Median Family Income or lower, with an average income of
just $15,960.

This apartment community is designed as one building that includes common area spaces wrapped around an
interior courtyard. The building is three stories and includes surface parking. The site is located in a high
opportunity area of Northwest Austin in the shadow of The Domain - a sprawling outdoor mall, retail center,
restaurant and employment mecca - as well as across Mopac Expressway from St, David's North Austin
Medical Center. The area provides unparalleled employment opportunities, access to medical care and
proximity to amenities. These are all resources that will greatly benefit the target population.

With Waters Park Studios, FC continues to expand to meet demand for affordable permanent Supportive
Housing, The need for Supportive Housing is so high that FC maintains waiting lists at all properties. For
Supportive Housing, these waitlists are closed at 40 names for each property. Waters Park Studios will expand
FC's Supportive Housing portfolio from just 88 units in 2003 to 859 units upon completion.

Currently, Waters Park Studios scores very competitively in the 2018 9% Housing Tax Credit cycle. Foundation
Communities is striving to make our funding request to the City all at one time instead of coming in a few
different times. As Supportive Housing with very low rents, Waters Park Studios cannot support any hard debt
and must rely on fundraising to fill the gap. The City of Austin funding is a critical layer of funding and will
leverage millions of additional funding to complete the capital stack. In addition, the drop in tax credit pricing
due to uncertainty in the tax credit market makes this gap funding essential. The City's acknowledgement of a
funding application is critical to the tax credit application.

RHDA, Project Proposal Application - Page 4 of 23 - FY 2016-17
Rev 6-1-15



a. Describe the tenant population, income levels, and services, if any, to be provided to or made
available to residents.

All of Waters Park Studios will be available to extremely and very low-income individuals. Sixty percent of the
units (78 units} will be reserved for individuals with incomes below 50% of the Median Family Income. Twenty
percent of the units (27 units) will be reserved for individuals with incomes below 40% of the Median Family
Income and the remaining twenty percent of the units (27 units) will be reserved for individuals with incomes
below 30% of the Median Family Income. The reality is that most residents will have incomes below 30% MFL.
Five percent of the units (7 units) will be reserved for chronically homeless as established by the HEARTH act,
While we expect to serve more than 7 units with resident who were formerly chronically homeless, it is
challenging to reserve units for this population without rental subsidies and additional supportive service
funding in hand. We expect the remaining 125 units to include a mix of populations such as individuals on a
fixed income (elderly and/or persons with disabilities), persons with low wage employment, homeless persons
and persons on the verge of homelessness. Supportive services will be made available to all residents at
Waters Park Studios. The goal of the supportive services will be to promote stable housing through programs
that increase access to health assistance, promote increased and stable income, and provide services that
support self-development. The menu of supportive services at our permanent supportive housing properties
typically include:

= (Case management
Adult education classes
Money management classes
Information and referral to community services
Home health assistant
Education savings program
Free tax preparation
Financial stability programs
24-hour computer lab
Monthly food pantry
Welcome Home Baskets

Please see Section 16 for a more detailed explanation of services to be provided at Waters Park Studios.

b. Include the type of structure (muliti-family or single-family), number and size of units in
square feet,

Waters Park Studios will be a 132-unit single room cccupancy supportive housing rental community for
individuals. Each 518 square foot efficiency unit will contain a kitchenette and bathroom. Common
spaces for resident use will include a resident lounge, meeting room, clothes care center, and
supportive service staff office.

The unit mix for the property is as follows:

Unit Type # of units Square Footage

0 bedroom/1bath 132 518 sq. ft. per unit

68,376 sqg. ft. (total rentable square feet)

7,397 sq. ft. (common area spaces)

Total Sq. Ft. 75,773 sq. ft

c. Indicate whether the property is occupied at the time this application is being submitted.
The development site of Waters Park Studios features the combination of two land parcels. The
property is not currently occupied with any residential tenants. One parcel has an owner-occupied
business, for which Foundation Communities has provided a short, optional lease-back option after
acquisition that will terminate before construction start. The second site has a commercial tenant, but
the current lease allows for a 30-day lease cancellation. The construction will include the demolition of
both structures after vacated. Waters Park Studios itself is new construction.

d. Indicate whether the project meets the requirements of the City’'s Vertical Mixed-Use (VMU)
Ordinance, or is in a Planned-Unit Development {PUD) or Transit Oriented Development
(TOD), or is located less than .25 miles from a transit stop (not just a transit route).

Waters Park Studios is not located within a VMU, PUD, or TOD. Waters Park Studios Is within .454 miles
of a transit stop, but not within .25 miles of a transit stop.
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e,

f.

h.

Indicate whether the project will preserve existing affordable rental units.
Waters Park Studios is new construction and therefore will be adding 132 new units to Austin's
affordable housing stock. No existing units will be preserved as part of the project.

If there are existing structures, provide documentation from the taxing authority or another
third-party source indicating the year the structure was built.

Waters Park Studios is new construction therefore this section is not applicable. While there do exist
structures on each site, they will be demolished in preparation for the new construction of Waters Park
Studios,

Indicate the number of units reserved for Housing Choice Voucher holders (Section 8).
Waters Park Studios will not be reserving units for Section 8 vouchers. Instead, vouchers will be
accepted at our property.

Indicate the number of units that are or will be made accessible and adaptable for persons
with mobility, sight or hearing disabilities.

At a minimum, 10% of the total units 132 (13) will be designed for persons with Mobility Impairments
using Section 504 and Fair Housing Accessibility as guidelines. In addition, at a minimum, 2% of total
units (3) will be made accessible for persons with hearing and visual impairments,

Demonstrate the Project’s compatibility with current Neighborhood Plan (if applicable).
The proposed Waters Park Studios is not located in a current Neighborhood Plan.

Summarize the key financials of the project, clearly indicating the total project cost, the
amount and intended use of AHFC funds being requested, and the amount(s) and provider(s)
of other funding and the stage of those funding commitments.

The total cost to construct the 132-unit Waters Park Studios is approximately $24,992,554. The sources
of funds for this project include:

City of Austin, in the total amount of $4,000,000. These funds will be used to pay for acquisition and/or
hard and/or soft costs. Since this project is serving a population that can only afford to pay a minimal
amount in monthly rent, the project will only be feasible if there is no debt service to repay. We request
these funds from the City to be in the form of a deferred forgivable loan with a loan term of at least 40
years.

We understand that the City funds will be the first piece of funding brought into the project, but the
timing is critical to ensure the financial feasibility of our application in the LIHTC 9% tax credit cycle. In
order to count City funding, a 9% tax credit applicant needs to provide proof of the City funding
application. The City funds must be committed before an applicant signs and submits their 9% tax
credit commitment notice, if awarded 9% tax credits.

TDHCA Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC), in the amount of approximately $14,098,590
($1,500,000 annual allocation). The 9% tax credits will be used for construction costs. A pre-application
was submitted on January 9, 2018 and a final application will be submitted on March 1, 2018. We will
have final approval of tax credit award from TDHCA by August 1, 2018.

TDHCA Multifamily Direct Loan, in the amount of $1,000,000. The funding application for these funds
will be submitted at the same time as the 9% HTC application referenced above. We will be applying
under the Supportive Housing set-aside which provides deferred, forgivable funding to Supportive
Housing projects and those projects with significant units set-aside for persons with Extremely Low
Incomes.

Owner Equity in the amount of $4,710,628. Foundation Communities will commit $4,710,628 of its own
funding to Waters Park Studios as a placeholder for private fundraising that will be pursued during the
development of the project. We plan to reach out and apply to private sources, such as Federal Home
Loan Bank, NeighborWorks America and local foundations to fund this amount, If private fundraising
does not reach this level, then Foundation Communities is committed to providing equity in the amount
of $4,710,628 from its own reserves.

Deferred Developer Fee in the amount of $819,509,
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5.

City of Austin Fee Waivers in the amount of $363,827 are provided to the property through meeting the
SMART Housing program requirements and will be used as match for the Multifamily Direct Loan
program.

Please attach the following to the description of the above items:

k. A map (8 2" x 11"} indicating the property location and the distance to the nearest Capital
Metro Transit Stop to which residents will have access.

Please see ATTACHMENT 5 for a map of the property location and distance to the nearest Capital
Metro Transit Stop.

I A flood plain map generated by www.ATXFloodPro.com with the property parcel identified
and the legend displayed showing the various types of FEMA Flood Plain zones.

Please see ATTACHMENT 5 for a flood plain map of the property location generated by ATC Flood Pro.

Site Control and Demonstration of Value. Include evidence of site control such as a warranty deed
or a current earnest money contract, and provide a real estate appraisal or current tax
documentation that substantiates the value of the property.

Foundation Communities, Inc. has a contract for purchase for the two parcels that will be combined for form
the proposed site for Waters Park Studios. Please see ATTACHMENT 6: Contracts and ATTACHMENT 7:
Current Tax Documentation.

Zoning. Include a letter from the City of Austin’s Planning and Development Review Department
(PDRD} verifying that the current zoning of the site for the proposed project is compatible with the
anticipated use, or include documentation verifying that a request to change current zoning has
been submitted to PDRD. Should the project be approved for funding, the appropriate zoning must
be in place prior to execution of loan documents,

Please see ATTACHMENT 8: Zoning Verification Letter from Wendy Rhoades confirming the zoning for the
proposed use,

S.M.A.R.T. Housing™. Include a copy of the letter that indicates the project has been reviewed and meets
5.M.A.R.T. Housing™ requirements.

Please see ATTACHMENT 9 for SMART Housing Certification.

Development Team and Capacity. Identify below the persons or entities anticipated to be involved in the
project, such as lenders, attorneys, accountants, architects, engineers, general contractor, sub-contractors,
property managers and consultants. Also, indicate if any person or entity involved is certified by the City of
Austin as a minority or women-owned business enterprise (MBE/WABE), or if any of the entities are also non-
profit organizations,

MBE? | WBE? “L‘::‘t';"
Name and Contact Information (::E;;k (::ai;k (Ma!rk
Yes) Yes) eSULs
Yes)
Owner FC Waters Park Housing, LP, 3036 S. 1%t Street,
Austin, TX 78704
Developer Foundation Communities, Inc., 3036 S. 1t Street, X
Austin, TX 78704
Architect Forge Craft Architecture, 608 West Monroe St.
Suite C, Austin, TX 78704
Engineer Civilitude, 1210 Rosewood Ave, Austin, Texas, X
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78702

Construction TBD

Lender

Other TBD

Lenders

Attorney A, Rick Hightower, 901 South Mopac Expwy, Bldg
1 Ste 300, Austin, Texas 78746

Accountant Ann Clift, CFQ, Feundation Communities, Inc.,
3036 S. 1lst Street, Austin, TX 78704

General TBD

Contractor

Consultant {if True Casa Consulting, LLC, 4613 Cedar Point Dr,

applicable) Austin, 78723

Property Foundation Communities, Inc., 3036 S. 1st Street,

Management Austin, TX 78704

Provider

Other: Foundation Communities, In¢c., 3036 S. 1= Street,

Supportive Austin, TX 78704

Services

Providers

Foundation Communities has 25 years of experience contracting for and overseeing the construction and
rehabilitation of affordable housing. As the owner and manager of more than 3,300 apartments across 23
properties- 20 in Austin and three in Dallas/Fort Worth area- providing quality hemes for both families and
individuals. Eight of our existing communities were new construction projects financed with tax credits with
one additional community {132 units) currently in design and construction. Fourteen of our communities
were purchased as existing properties and greatly improved with renovations, green spaces and playscapes,
learning centers, landscaping, signage, lighting and green building features (solar panels and rain water
harvesting). Six properties are single room occupancy permanent supportive housing, two properties are
duplexes and the remaining 15 properties are multifamily properties

Housing Development Team - Qur Housing Development Team consists of the following FC staff (Please see
ATTACHMENT 10 for resumes);

Walter Moreau, Executive Director. During his 25-year career, Moreau has secured subsidy financing of more
than $200 million to create more than 3,000 units of service-enriched, nonprofit-owned affordable housing.
Moreau was recognized as a 2007 James A, Johnson Cemmunity Fellow by the Fannie Mae Foundation, He
was also awarded the 2005 Social Entrepreneur of the Year Award and the 2004 Texas Houser Award. He
holds a Master’s degree from UT's LB School of Public Affairs, He has been with Foundation Communities for
maore than 20 years.

Megan Matthews, Development Project Manager and licensed Architect, oversees the programming, design,
and construction management of all development projects. She focuses on green building and sustainability
issues (such as energy and water conservation) while seeking out the best design solutions for the end
users, Before joining the Foundation Communities team, Megan worked for the architectural firm responsible
for the design of M Station, Homestead Oaks, Lakeline Station, Cardinal Point, and The Jordan at Mueller and
was on the design team for four of those communities. Megan coordinates the RFQ and bid processes for the
architect, engineers, and general contractor and Is the direct link between the third party design and
construction professionals and FC's Development team. FC has been privileged to work with a number of
quality general contractors and invites those firms to bid on all projects developed by Foundation
Communities (in addition to other firms who might be interested).

Vicki McDonald, Director of Real Estate Operations, oversees the income and assets of the FC portfolio. She
has over 30 years of experience in owning and managing multifamily, office and retail developments. For 25
years, she owned and operated Vista Properties, a real estate firm specializing in the management, leasing
and brokerage of income producing assets. Vicki is the link between the development team and property
management as well as filling in on project management as the pipeline demands.
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a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

Sabrina Butler, Director of Housing Finance, pursues new development opportunities and identifies and
packages subsidy and conventional financing for multi-family housing. Packaging includes running project
proformas, applying for the funding, bidding out equity/mortgages, coordinating closings, and ensuring
compliance with construction-related funding provisions. Sabrina also coordinates due diligence reports such
as the Phase I ESA, appraisal, market studies, property condition reports, and surveys. Sabrina joined
Foundation Communities in 2017 with nearly 15 years of experience in nonprofit affordable housing and
community development finance.

Tillie Croxdale, Real Estate Project Manager, underwrites all new development proposals and manages initial
site analysis and due diligence. Tillie also assists the Director of Housing Finance with all phases of each
capital funding stack including preparation of funding applications (including LIHTC applications), solicitation
of mortgage and equity financing and coordination of financing closings. Tillie has a Bachelors in Architecture
and Masters in Real Estate Finance and several years’ experience in the affordable housing field.

Please also provide narrative information about the skills you or your development team
members have in the following areas:

Proj

Megan Matthews currently oversees the construction of Garden Terrace Phase III and the design of The
Jordan at Mueller. Megan coordinates the RFQ and bid process for the architect, engineers, and general
contractor. She also acts as the direct link between the third party design and construction professionals
and FC's Development team.

Market Analysis

Foundation Communities typically engages a third party firm to conduct market studies for each of our
proposed projects. The market study is ordered in the contract feasibility period. Sabrina Butler recelves bids
and engages each project's market analyst.

Site Selection and Control

Walter Moreau has 20 years of site selection experience, Sites are selected based on a variety of factors
including current funding priorities, availability of low-cost land, preservation of affordable housing
opportunities and availability of sites in close proximity to existing FC properties. Vicki McDonald is a
licensed real estate broker and is involved in all real estate contract negotiations. In addition, FC contracts
with a private, third party land broker to locate sites. Sabrina Butler works with the title company to ensure
all requirements are met on the buyer side and oversees the closing on behalf of Foundation Communities.

Planning and Construction

Foundation Communities contracts with third-party general contractors and has been privileged to work with
a number of quality ones. FC invites those firms to bid on all projects developed by Foundation
Communities {in addition to other firms who might be interested). Megan Matthews also oversees the hiring
of the design and engineering team,

Design, Architecture and Engineering
Megan Matthews also oversees the hiring of the design and engineering team. Typically, Megan issues an

RFQ to an invited list of bidders {(open to all interested parties.) The list is narrowed down based on
responses and then the FC development team including Walter, Vicki, Sabrina and Megan meet the finalists
and make a selection based on presentations.

A i
Rick Hightower has been the general counsel for Foundation Communities for the past 15+ years and
handles most real estate transactions. Foundation Communities has historically worked with Kutak Rock as
a tax credit counsel on LIHTC projects. All accounting is performed in-house by an accounting team led by
Ann Ciift, CFO. Tax returns, audits and cost certifications for tax credit properties are contracted out to
Novogradac and Company, LLC.

Federal Funding Rules:

Foundation Communities has extensive experience working with programs funded by HUD and their
associated federal regulations including: Federal Labor Standards, Davis Bacon Reporting, Section 3,
Affirmative Marketing, Environmental Clearances, Public Notices and Procurement Standards. Please see
ATTACHMENT 11 for the Foundation Communities Development Resume. Please see the FC Development
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Resume as ATTACHMENT 11 for a list of properties and the funding sources in place at each property. Also,
please see Question 11 for more detailed information on Financing Experience.

h) Other funding source rules (e.g. Low Income Housing Tax Credits):
Please see the FC Development Resume and ATTACHMENT 11 for a list of properties and the funding
sources in place at each property. Also, please see Question 12 for more detailed information on Financing
Experience.

9, Environmental Assessments. The City of Austin Brownfields Redevelopment Office has Environmental
Protection Agency funding available until September 1, 2017 to provide free Phase I Environmental Site
Assessments, Asbestos Inspections and Lead-based Paint Surveys to assist with property transactions,
developments and redevelopments, The Office can also complete Phase 11 ESAs at no cost for eligible entities.
Please contact the office to see if you are eligible to receive these free services to assist with your project at

http://austintexas.gov/brownfields or brownfields@austintexas.gov.

10. Development Schedule. Complete the grid below. You may re-order the steps according to the appropriate
sequence for your project and to add in anv other significant steps integral to your project’s development. If

the multiple properties are involved, provide a development schedule for each property.

DATE(S)
Acquisition and/or holding August 31, 2018-
In Progress
Environmental and/or historic review (AHFC) anuary = March
2018 -In Process
Securing and packaging project financing July = October
2018-In Process
Construction Specifications and Cost estimates D mber 2018 -
March 2019
Construction Bids March 2019
Construction Start April 2019
Anticipated Draws (list all) May 2019
June 2019
July 2019
Auqust 2019 |
End Construction June 2020 @ |
Start of Rent-up July 2020

Completion & Operation n 2021

11. Accessible and Adaptable Units. Indicate the number of units proposed to be accessible and adaptable
for persons with mobility, sight and hearing disabilities as required by RHDA Program Guidelines.
Units adaptable for persons with mobility disabilities
13 Units accessible for persons with mobility disabilities
Units adaptable for persons with sight and hearing disabilities
3 Units accessible for persons with sight and hearing disabilities

12. Developer Capacity. Provide narrative information on recent, similar, and successful experience in affordable
housing development. Include experience using multiple fund sources, managing affordable rental
developments, and previous working history with the Austin Housing Finance Corporation.

Recent Development Experience: Waters Park Studios will draw upon the recently completed new
construction of Cardinal Point, Homestead Oaks, Bluebonnet Studios, Live Oak Tralls, and Lakeline Station, as
well as The Jordan At Mueller currently in design. Please see ATTACHMENT 11 for a description of these
projects in the FC Development Resume. Waters Park Studios will draw heavily on the design of Bluebonnet

RHDA Project Proposal Application - Page 10 of 23 - FY 2016-17
Rev 6-1-15



Studios and Capital Studios, both newly constructed Supportive Housing communities designed by the same
architect.

Foundation Communities, Inc. has experience utilizing all funding tools available for the development of
affordable multifamily housing. We have an excellent track record of securing funding in competitive
allocations of the 9% LIHTC. We also have solid relationships with multiple lenders. Three most recently
completed projects utilize the following five layers of funding: 9% LIHTCs, City of Austin RHDA funding, FHLB
AHP program, construction/permanent loan and private fundraising.

LIHTCs and BONDS

Foundation Communities has applied for and been awarded 9% LIHTCs for 11 developments. Two of these
awards were forward commitments by the Texas Department of Housing Board of Directors giving testament to
Foundation Communities track record of high-quality developments with compelling missions. FC's development
team is well-versed in the LIHTC program and application process. Tax credit applications are completed
through a combination of in-house staff and affordable housing consulting firm True Casa. Staff also closely
follows the drafting of the Qualified Allocation Plan and is aware of changes to threshold and scoring items that
impact a high-scoring application. FC has a staff tearn that has over 15 years of tax credit compliance with a
record of no significant findings. FC also has relationships with muitiple tax credit investors and syndicators
including Enterprise Community Investment, Bank of America, Wells Fargo, Raymond James, NEF, BBVA
Compass and Capital One Bank, Foundation Communities built and financed the Southwest Trails Apartments
utilizing 4% LIHTC and private activity bonds. Bonds were issued by Austin Housing Finance Corporation.

City of Austin RHDA

The City of Austin has been a major contributor on every project completed by Foundation Communities in the
past 15 years. The FC Development team follows the release of the City's application rules and NOFA and has a
solid working relationship with City of Austin NHCD/AHFC staff,

EHLB AHP Program

Foundation Communities has applied for and received 11 awards through the FHLB Affordable Housing
Program.

Private Mortgages

Foundation Communities has excellent relationships with several lenders that allow for competitive rates and
pricing. We currently have private mortgages with Compass BBVA, Bank of America, Wells Fargo and Greater
Texas Federal Credit Union.

Private Fundraising

Unlike most affordable housing developers, Foundation Communities has a very strong track record of private
fundraising and individual donations. Past large foundation donors include Meadows, Topfer, Kendeda,
Enterprise, Home Depot, St. David’s, and the Michael & Susan Dell Foundations. In the last two years FC
secured two large private foundation grants, $2.4 million from the St. David’s Health Foundation and $2 million
from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation, to help with construction of health and education amenities onsite
at new affordable housing developments. FC hosts an annual Welcome Home lunch which raises approximately
$1 million from individual donors to fund support services.

In the last four years, Foundation Communities has been successful in raising over $10 million in private funds
to embark on a growth phase for our organization completing 433 units in 2016,

Property Management Experience: Foundation Communities performs all leasing, maintenance, accounting,
compliance and other property management functions for its 20 Austin properties. Foundation Communities
earns property management and asset management fees that help support the overall nonprofit mission. The
success of Foundation Communities’ property management is demonstrated through its high occupancy (usually
averaging more than 95 percent), low turnover (under 32 percent), ability to keep all properties performing
within their operating budgets, completion of capital repairs of over $535/unit, and a relatively high percentage
of move outs going to homeoawnership (20 percent).

A majority of Foundation Communities’ 23 properties feature a federal source of funding. Specifically,
Foundation Communities’ staff has experience with the compliance and reporting requirements of the Low
Income Housing Tax Credit program, HOME program, and HUD Continuum of Care Funding Programs.
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Please find attached ATTACHMENT 11 for a list of the properties managed by Foundation Communities and
the funding programs in place at the specific property. Waters Park Studios will be staffed with a property
manager, assistant property manager, lead maintenance, assistant maintenance and 24-hour front desk clerks,

13. Detailed Project Budget.

item the amounts from the

Use the following table, or comparable format, to provide a complete project
budget. Add line-items as necessary. If this project has already received funding from AHFC, indicate by line

prior award.

DETAILED PROJECT BUDGET

Prior award RHDA Description or Comments
of RHDA Funds
Cost Funds (if Requested
any)
PREDEVELOPMENT
Appraisal 56,500
Environmental Review $20,000
Engineering $69,773
Survey $20,000
Architectural $515,235
Market Analysis $7.500
Soils Report 56,500
TOTAL PREDEVELOPMENT $645,508
ACQUISITION
Site and/or Land $4,260,000 54,000,000
Structures
Other (specify) Closing Costs $1,000
TOTAL ACQUISITION $4,261,000
HARD COSTS
Infrastructure
Site work $1,857,000
Demolition $122,900
Concrete $647,025
Masonry $260,510
Metals $405,827
Woods and Plastics 52,634,821
Waterproofing & Insulation $226,565
Roofing & Sheet Metal $225,476
Plumbing/Hot Water (includes
HVAC) $2,747,907
HVAC
Electrical 51,619,406
Doors/Windows/Glass $420,648
Finishes $1,659,356
Specialties $163,342
Equipment $214,806
Elevators $174,313
FFE $150,000
General Requirements 5856,006
Overhead and Profit 51,140,389
Site Amenities $230,178
Construction Contingency $680,504
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION $16,436,979
SOFT & CARRYING COSTS
Legal $75,000
Audit/Accounting 530,000
Title/Recarding/Closing Costs $135,000
Architectural (Inspections) $17,500
Construction Interest $593,250
Loan Fees $130,000
Construction Period Insurance 548,000
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Construction Period Taxes $75,000
Relocation $65,000
Building Permit Fees $365,807
Tax Credit Fees 564,044
Developer Fee 51,772,467
Reserves (rent up and operating) $278,000
TOTAL SOFT & CARRYING $3,649,068
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET $24,992 554 $4,000,000

14. Funds Proposal. Provide the following information to facilitate financial review of the proposed project;

a. Sources and Uses of Funds - Complete Tables A & B (below), identifying all sources and uses of funds
to implement project and include evidence of funds anticipated (financial statements, commitment letters,

etc.).
Intended Use of Fund:
{Predevelopment,
TABLE A: SOURCES OF FUNDS SUMMARY Acquisition,
Construction,
Soft Costs})
Term Interest | Amount Evidence (Deed,
Rate Sales Contract)
g‘vzner ECIIJItY - Foundation Commy, $ 4,710,628 | COMMITTED Construction/hard/soft costs
Private Financing
Tax Credit Equity $14,098,590 Bra-fign Submikted 175718 Construction/hard ftoft costs
TDHCA Multifamily Direct Loan 40 0% $1,000,000 Pre-Dev, Hard or Soft Costs
Other Sources- City Fee Waivers $ 363,827 COMMITTED
Deferred Developer Fee $ 819,509 COMMITTED Construction/hard/soft costs
Proposed RHDA Funds 40 0% $ 4,000,000 | THIS APPLICATION | Acquisition/Constructian/hard/s
TOTAL $24,992,554

TABLE B: USES OF FUNDS SUMMARY
Total Cost Cost/Unit
Predevelopment $645,508 $4,890
Acquisition $4,261,000 $32,280
Hard Costs $16,436,979 $124,523
Soft & Carrying Costs $3,649,068 $27,644
TOTAL $24,992,554 $189,337

b. Leveraging - Complete Table C (below).
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_— A
TABLE C; PERCENTAGE OF RHDA FUNDS

RHDA Funds $4,000,000
Other Funds $20,992,554
Total Project Cost $24,992,554

RHDA Funds < Total Project Cost= | 16-00%

¢. Operating Proforma - In a format comparable to Table D below, prepare a minimum twenty (20) year
financial Operating Proforma which realistically reflects the operation of the project relative to current and
anticipated revenues, expenses and debt. The Proforma must indicate the anticipated debt coverage ratio
(DCR) calculated as follows: net operating income (NOI)/debt service (DS) = DCR. For projects that will
not carry debt, use the number “1" as the denominator in the equation.

Please see 20-year Operating Proforma as ATTACHMENT 12.

15. Good Neighbor Policy. Please refer to the City’s Good Neighbor Guidelines and demonstrate compliance with
the Good Neighbor Policy by completing the Good Neighbor Checklist and providing the documentation
requested.

Per a conversation with Ellis Morgan on 1/22/2018, a Good Neighbor Checklist is not required at this time.

16. Description of Supportive Services. If v rvi re NOT rovi ease stop here. For

all other projects, if supportive services are to be provided to residents, provide a description of the services
that includes the following information:

a. A description of the supportive services to be provided to residents and/or clients.

Foundation Communities is committed to providing not only the housing, but, as part of our mission to
create housing where residents succeed, the essential support services to stabilize and empower individuals
living in permanent suppartive housing. Foundation Communities’ model of housing-plus services provides
the supportive services that individuals need to successfully transition to stability, The target population of
Waters Park Studios will be mixed serving a small percentage of chronic homeless and a larger percentage of
individuals on fixed incomes and low-wage workers. Like the population, the array of services offered at
Waters Park Studios will be mixed with some residents needing mare and some needing less.

Services typically offered at FC's Permanent Supportive Housing properties include:
Mental health counseling and supported treatment;

Individual and group substance abuse supported treatment;

Daily living skills training;

Budgeting and money management skills;

Advocacy for benefits and entitlements including Social Security, Medicaid, and Food Stamps;
Health, wellness and recreational activities;

Supports for family reconnections;

Vocational and supported employment services;

Food pantry

GED and ESL classes

Eviction prevention

Case management

Home health assistant

Education savings program

Free tax preparation

24-hour computer lab

Welcome Home Baskets
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b. The number and types of residents/clients expected to be served annually.

Waters Park Studios will house 132 individuals at any given time. The service needs of the property will vary
according to the resident profile. We are targeting 7 of the units to chronic homeless and expect the service
needs of this population to be extremely high, We expect the balance of units to be filled by individuals on
fixed incomes and low-income workers who will still require a variety of services, but at a lower degree. With
an average turnover of 30%, we expect to serve approximately 172 individuals a year with some degree of
services.

c. Describe the developer's experience and qualifications in providing the services to be offered.

Foundation Communities, as the primary supportive service provider at Waters Park Studios, has 25 years
experience in the provision of supportive services to its residents. At all of our properties, we enable our
residents to increase their personal development, education, safety, and health at one convenient location in
their neighborhood. Talented volunteers help us increase adults’ earning potential through classes in English as
a Second Language, GED preparation, and computer skills, as well as employment counseling and social
service referrals. Qur new College Hub provides nontraditional students the wraparound services they need to
be successful in college. Our newest program area, Health Initiatives, brings healthier living to entire families
in the form of nutrition and cooking, active play, and exercise. We provide free tax preparation for more than
20,000 low-income workers and retirees each year. Refunds amount to nearly $34 million annually, and can
equal 25% of a family's yearly income. Additionally, we empower more than 600 families each year to become
smart consumers through economic education and financial coaching; at least 50% of them reduce their debt.
We assist students with the Cash for College program. Leveraging our tax centers and some of the same
volunteers, Insure Central Texas (ICT) provides a deeper level of service to our clients by assisting with
enrollment under the Affordable Care Act {(ACA).

Foundation Communities has been increasingly involved in serving the homeless since 2001, when, woarking
with the Homeless Alliance, we began looking at opportunities to develop supportive housing units for Austin’s
homeless population. In 2003, with the purchase and redevelopment of an abandoned nursing home, Garden
Terrace opened its doors. This was not only Foundation Communities’ first single rocom occupancy
(SRO}/permanent supportive housing (PSH) community, it was the first intentional SRO development in
Austin. We followed with the opening of Spring Terrace in 2006, Skyline Terrace in 2008 Arbor Terrace in
2012, Capital Studios in 2014, and Bluebonnet Studios in 2016 for a total of 707 PSH SRO units,

Providing apartments in our SRO communities does not in itself end homelessness on a long-term basis.

Cur strategy of 'wrap around’ supportive services helps our clients maintain housing and avoid a return to the
streets. Our low income PSH residents include individuals coming out of homelessness, those with severe and
persistent mental illness, people with physical disabilities, homeless and/or disabled veterans, older adults,
those suffering from chronic disease (e.g., hypertension, diabetes), and young adults aging out of foster care
with persistent mental and behavioral issues. We strive to provide - and increase - the services that will foster
maximum stability and progress in our residents. Each community is staffed by Case Managers and Supportive
Services Coordinators, who meet regularly with residents and assists them with maintaining housing through
accessing rental assistance, increasing income through employment, accessing public benefits to meet basic
needs (such as food stamps, SSI/SSDI, unemployment benefits, etc), assisting with educational opportunities,
and addressing behavioral issues. The Supportive Service Coordinator also works closely with property
management to help tenants negotiate payment plans or take steps to address the issues preventing them
from being self-sufficient. Case Managers work more intensely, and on a regular basis, with special needs
vulnerable tenants.

We have established a partnership with Lone Star Circle of Care to offer a "medical home” for many of our
residents, including psychiatric services, as this is critical to maintaining their stability. FC also retains a nurse
practitioner on staff to meet regular medical needs in this extremely vulnerable population. Other services
provided include: an on-site food pantry residents can access monthly and on an emergency basis, computer
classes, cooking classes, literacy tutoring, and counseling.

We further leverage services through partnerships and innovations including:
* Medication management and home chore assistance through a contract with Family Eldercare
* Adirect assistance fund that case managers can strategically use to support client goals (eg. books for
school or clothing for employment)
* The Terraces also receive and give referrals from many area agencies
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d. If services are not provided by the developer of the project, include a description of the
organization(s) providing the services and a memorandum of understanding or some other type
of agreement that indicates the relationship between the developer and service provider.

While Foundation Communities will be the main supportive service provider at Waters Park Studios, we rely on
partnerships with the following organizations to broaden and strengthen our service delivery:

Caritas of Austin: provides HUD subsidized rent and case management services for chranically
homeless and disabled unaccompanied adults living in our PSH communities.

Salvation Army/Passages: provides HUD subsidized rent and case management services for formerly
homeless individuals living at our PSH communities.

PLAN of Central Texas, Inc.: provides intensive clinical case management, peer to peer supports,
and clinical supervision to residents in our PSH housing.

Austin Recovery, Inc. — provides inpatient detox and substance abuse treatment services to
residents.

Communities for Recovery: provides peer to peer recovery aftercare services to residents.

Austin Clubhouse, Inc.: provides a work-ordered day program, as well as employment readiness
supports, and transitional/supportive employment services.

Family Eldercare: provides designated payee services, as well as in-home support including meal
preparation assistance, transportation, housekeeping assistance, and medication reminder assistance to
residents in our PSH communities (not just for oider adults).

The University of Texas School of Nursing: each semester, nursing students in the advanced
community nursing practicum provide medical case management to our residents assisting them in
better identifying and meeting their healthcare needs.

Integral Care (formerly Austin/Travis Co. MHMR): Co-facilitate Mental Health First Aid trainings
for the Austin community.

NAMI - Austin: Provides funding for free counseling and therapy sessions at Capital Area Counseling
for supportive housing residents,

Capital Area Food Bank: partners in providing food pantries at our supportive housing communities,
Also does Healthy Cooking Classes at with residents at our properties,

YMCA of Austin: Partners with our SRO resident services to provide reduced rate family memberships
for residents to participate in Fresh Start Fitness program. 12 residents can participate far 90 days,
after which they can continue personal membership in an income-based program, usually $10/month.
Austin Area Mental Health Consumers Self Help and Advocacy Center: Partners in providing
peer-to-peer wellness groups at our supportive housing communities.

Downtown Austin Community Court (DACC): Partners in providing units of PSH in our communities
for chroniczally homeless/disabled individuals who are chronic users of DACC resources.

Project Transitions: Partners in providing units of PSH for individuals living with HIV/AIDS.

Lone star Circle of Care: Provides integrated care (behavioral health & primary health care) for
residents.

Bluebonnet Trails Community Services: provides outreach, screening, assessment, and referral for
individuals attempting to recover from substance use disorders.

Veteran Affairs Supportive Housing Program: provides TBRA vouchers for homeless veterans.
Capital Area Counseling: partnership providing counseling/therapy to PSH residents.

Basic Need Coalition: Active participation.

Ending Community Homelessness Organization (ECHO): Both our Director of Supportive Housing
and Director of Supportive Services are active members and participate with the Housing Work Group,
These groups combine the efforts of roughly 75 participating agencles,

Referrals: FC's Supportive Housing receive and give referrals from many area agencies, including
Austin Travis County Integrated Care, SafePlace, Lifeworks, Salvation Army, Goodwill, Foundation for
the Homeless, Aids Services of Austin, Green Doors, and the U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs.

e. Provide resumes of key personnel who will be actively involved in the delivery of services.
Resumes should include information about certifications, licenses, years of experience, and
education.

Supportive Service Staff (Please see ATTACHMENT 13 for staff resumes):

Julian Huerta - Deputy Director - provides leadership for all Foundation Communities’ resident and community
services. Julian develops and directs education, financial stability and supportive housing programs that serve
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more than 20,000 working poor families and homeless adults annually. He brings over 20 years’ experience in
program development, nonprofit administration and fundraising.

Mario Cortez, Director of Supportive Housing. Mario has 15 years of experience working with homeless and low-
income populations, and holds a Masters in Social Work. Prior to joining Foundation Comrnunities, he spent 3
years developing the Keep Austin Housed AmeriCorps project. He Co-Chairs the Social Services Case
Management Network & the Housing Stability Committee of the Basic Needs Coalition, sits on the Executive
Committee of the Basic Needs Coalition, and [eads planning for Stand Up and Be Counted. Mario aversees all
supportive housing programs.

Sofia Barbato, Supportive Services Program Supervisor, has worked with Foundation Communities for 6 years as
Supportive Services Program Manager, Barbato holds a Master of Divinity and Master of Education from the
University of Notre Dame. As the Supportive Services Program Supervisor Barbato's serves as the lead resident
services staff member promating the health and well-being of residents through leadership and planning of
effective service delivery methods.

Andrea Albalawi, LMSW - Director of Health Initiatives. Andrea oversees all our health pregramming across 23
affordable housing communities. She works to address women's health issues and implement fitness and
nutrition programming. She holds a B.A. in Anthropology and a Master’s in Social Work from the University of
Texas at Austin. Andrea is also a licensed social worker and a USA Triathlon certified race director. She gained
experience implementing health initiatives while working with Abu Dhabi Health Authority, Dubai Foundation for
Women and Children, National Association of Social Workers Board of Directors, Heidelberg, Germany, and The
University of Texas School of Public Health.

Suppartive Service Coordinators and Case Managers work at the permanent supportive housing communities.
Waorking closely with property managers, they develop creative programs and establish and oversee partnerships
that support residents in successfully maintaining housing, accessing education and employment services and
contributing to a positive sense of community. Case managers work with a smaller number of high-needs clients
on a regular basis, e.g., weekly, to provide these individuals with the more intensive support they need to
maintain housing and stability. A Case Manager will be hired for Ben White Studios that meets the job
qualifications attached.

f. Demonstrate financial capacity to provide support services and/or operate a supportive
services program by providing the following information:

1. Sources of Funds: Identify sources and amounts of funds that will be or are expected to
be utilized to provide supportive services.

Services will be funded through cash flow from the property, the St. David's Foundation — Healthy Minds
pregram, PSH Supportive Service funding from the City of Austin, and Private Fundraising from individual

donors.

Sources:

Project Cash Flow w/in Operating budget $128,000
St. David’s Foundation - Healthy Minds $46,425
Clty of Austin PSH Supportive Services Funding $28,750
Private Fundraising — Ind. Donors $105,080

TOTAL $308,255
Please see ATTACHMENT 14 for a detailed Supportive Service budget.

2. Budget: Include a supportive services budget which reflects current and anticipated funding and
expenses associated with the provision of services for three (3) years.

Please see ATTACHMENT 14 for a detailed supportive services budget for Waters Park Studios

ATTENTION:

Please submit with the Application a completed “self-evaluation”
using the following Scoring Criteria.
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RHDA PROGRAM
SCORING CRITERIA

REQUIRED INFORMATION:

1, Applicant Information X 10, Accessible/Adaptable Units___ x
2a. Non-profit Required Items x 11. Experience/Qualifications X
OR 12. Project Budget X
2b. For-profit Required Items X 13. Funds Proposal:
3. Project Description X a. Sources X
4, Site Control/Value P b. Uses X
5. Zoning X c. Leveraging X
6. S.M.A.R.T. Housing X d. Operating Proforma X
7. Development Team ps 14. Good Neighbor Checklist _N/A
8. Development Schedule X 15. Flood Plain Map X
9. Developer Capacity X

EVALUATION CRITERIA:

Applications for proposed projects will be reviewed and scored on a competitive basis per the evaluation criteria
below. Applications must receive a minimum score of 150 points out of a maximum score of 240 points. PLEASE
NOTE: A score above the minimum score does not guarantee funding.

RE VALUES POINT

(Affordable Housing Core Values: Deeper levels of affordability, long-term affordability, and geographic
dispersion of affordable units throughout the City.)
Score

1. AFFORDABLE UNITS {maximum 25 points) 25

If development has a mix of 30%, 40%, and/or 50% MFI units, add the results for the percentage of units in each

income category up to the maximum of 25 points. If the percentage of units at a given MFI level is not a
multiple of 10, round up to the next closest multiple of 10 to get the score for that particular MFI level

% of Affordable Units in Project (only count units reserved for 50% MFI and below)

% MFI 10% of units | 20% of units | 30% of units | 40% of units | S50% of units | &0% of units
50% 3 5 10 15 20 25
40% 5 10 15 20 25
30% 10 15 20 25

Score
2. AFFORDABILITY PERIOD (25 points) 25
25 points: Affordability period is:
99 years;
OR
25 40 years, and project is applying for Low Income Housing Tax Credits. Note: AHFC funding is

contingent upon the award of Low Income Housing Tax Credits.
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Rolando B. Pablos

Corporations Section
Secretary of State

P.0O.Box 13697
Austin, Texas 78711-3697

Office of the Secretary of State

Certificate of Fact

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, does hereby certify that the document, Articles Of
Incorporation for FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC. (file number 114499001), a Domestic
Nonprofit Corporation, was filed in this office on March 05, 1990,

It is further certified that the entity status in Texas is in existence.

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto signed my name
officially and caused to be impressed hereon the Seal of
State at my office in Austin, Texas on February 13, 2018.

(A=

Rolando B. Pablos
Secretary of State

Come visit us on the internet at htip:/\wwiv.sos.state. te.us’

Phone: (512) 463-5555 Fax: (512) 463-5709
Prepared by; SOS-WEB TID: 10264

Dial: 7-1-1 for Relay Services
Document: 793848340002
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Internal Revenue Service
Department of the Treasury
P. O. Box 2508

Date: August 24, 2004 Cincinnati, OH 45201
Foundation Communities, Inc. Person to Contact:

3036 South First Street Janet M. Duncan 31-07676
Austin, TX 78704-6391 Customer Service Specialist

Toll Free Telephone Number:
8:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. EST

877-829-5500

Fax Number:
513-263-3756

Federa! ldentifications Number:
74-2563260

Group Exemption Number:
7171

Dear Sir or Madam:

This is in response to your request of July 6, 2004, regarding your organization's tax-exempt status.

In May 1990 we issued a determination letter that recognized your organization as exempt from federal income
tax. Our records indicate that your organization is currently exempt under section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal
Revenue Code.

Our records indicate that your organization is also classified as a public charity under section 509(a){2) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Based on the information supplied, we recognized the subordinates named on the list your organization
submitted as exempt from federat income tax under section 501{c}(3) of the Code.

Our records indicate that contributions to your organization are deductible under section 170 of the Code, and
that you are qualified to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106 or
2522 of the Internal Revenue Code.
If you have any quesiions, please cali us at the telephone number shown in the heading of this ietier.
Sincerely,
Janna K. Skufca, Director, TE/GE
Customer Account Services



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
DISTRICT DIRECTOR

1100 COMMERCE STREET
DALLAS, TX 75242-0000

Pate:
JUN 0§ 1385

CENTRAL TEXAS MUTUAL HOUSING
ASSOCIATION

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Emplover ldentification Number:
74-2563260

Case Number:
755122043

Contact Person:
ANNETTE SMITH

Cortact Telephone Number:
(214) 767-6023

C/0 CINDY CHRISTIANSEN
2812 8 TH 35 STE 350
ARUSTIN, T 78704-5751

Our Letter Dated:
May 23, 1990

Addendum Applies:
No

Dear Applicant:

This modifies our letter of the above date in which we stated that you
would be treated as an organization that is not a private foundation until the
expiration of your advance ruling period.

Your exempt status under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organization described in section 501(c){3) is still in effect. Based on the
information you submitted, we have determined that you are not a private
foundation within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are an
organization of the type described in section 509{a)(2).

Grantors and contributors may rely on this determination unless the
Internal Revenue Service publishes notice to the contrary. However, if you
lose your section 509{a){2) status, a grantor or contributor may not rely on
this determination if he or she was in part responsible for, or was aware of,
the act or failure to act, or the substantial or material change on the part of
the organization that resulted in your loss of such status, or if he or she
acquired knowledge that the Internal Revernue Service had given notice that you
wauld no longer be classified as a section 509(a}(2) organization.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the addendum enclosed is an integral part of this letter.

Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your private
foundation status, please keep it in vour permanent records.

If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and
talephone number are shown above.

Sincerely yours,

Bohby E, Scott
District Director

Letter 1050 (DO/CG)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Foundation Communities, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Foundation Communities, Inc.

(a nonprofit organization) and its affiliates, (collectively, “Foundation Communities™), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

MLE&R WEALTH MANAGEMENT wic



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Foundation Communities as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepied in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplemental schedule of Community Housing Development Organization property
tax reinvestment public expenditure test is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the consolidated financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations

Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
and the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards, which includes the State of Texas Single Audit
Circular, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

The supplemental schedules of financial position by entity and activity by entity have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 15, 2017, on our
consideration of Foundation Communities’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing on internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Foundation Communities’ internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, Foundation Communities changed its method of
accounting for debt issuance costs in 2016 as required by the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

MWW +Kiser, LLE

Austin, Texas
May 15, 2017



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts and notes receivable:

Trade

Grants and pledges
Interest

Notes receivable
Development fees

Escrow and security deposits
Prepaid expenses
Investment in partnerships
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Resident security deposits
Interest rate swap agreements

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Notes payable, net of unamortized debt issuance

costs of $630,232 and $699,968

Forgivable loans payable, net of unamortized debt

issuance costs of $71,269 and $75,607

Total liabilities

Net assets;
Unrestricted
Temporarily resiricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 145,022,605

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2016 2015

$ 16,505,021 $ 15,270,179
2,887,643 6,510,090
8,710,208 7,659,625
2,369,680 1,727,434
52,845,550 43,992,009
7,456,854 3,064,816

74,269,935 62,953,974

787,071 324,616

168,551 209,907

1,366,440 1,366,849

50,016,895 50,378,410

6,168 13,333

5,902,524 5,902,524

149,022,605 136,419,792

4,734,288 8,156,299

434,390 203,676

664,520 651,182

552,761 732,181

32,579,852 30,344,976

40,581,955 39,522,245

79,541,766 79,610,559

48,076,657 36,170,045

16,165,725 14,856,731

5,232,457 5,782,457

69,474,839 56,809,233

$ 136,419,792



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Revenue:
Rental income
Contributions and grants
Interest
Other property contractual fees
Net assets released from restriction
Total revenue

Expenses:
Programs;
Community social services
Property operations and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Utilities
Insurance
Real estate taxes
Management and general:
General and administrative
Fundraising
Total expenses

Change in net assets
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

17,348,224 - - 17,348,224
7,201,583 8,400,470 450,000 16,052,053
1,285,438 - - 1,285,438
7,210,461 - - 7,210,461
8,091,476 (7,091,476) (1,000,000} -
41,137,182 1,308,994 {550,000) 41,896,176
8,581,788 - - 8,581,788
6,191,412 - - 6,191,412
5,046,080 - - 5,046,080
2,722,576 - - 2,722,576
1,570,968 - - 1,570,968
485,991 - - 485,991
330,795 - - 330,795
3,595,376 - - 3,595,376
705,584 - - 705,584
29,230,570 — - 29,230,570
11,906,612 1,308,994 (550,000) 12,665,606
36,170,045 14,856,731 5,782,457 56,809,233
48,076,657 16,165,725 5,232,457 69,474,839

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Revenue:
Rental income
Contributions and grants
Interest
Other property contractual fees
Net assets released from restriction
Total revenue

Expenses:
Programs:
Community social services
Property operations and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Utilities
Insurance
Real estate taxes
Management and general:
General and administrative
Fundraising
Total expenses

Change in net assets before distribution to
SWA Housing, Ltd. investor limited partner

Distribution to SWA Housing, Ltd.
investor limited partner

Change in net assets
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
16,796,242 - - 16,796,242
8,197,030 6,645,693 480,000 15,322,723
786,902 - - 786,902
2,387,837 - - 2,387,837
4,408,590 (3,408,590) (1,000,000} -
32,576,601 3,237,103 (520,000) 35,293,704
7,972,820 - - 7,972,820
6,061,669 - - 6,061,669
5,150,821 - -- 5,150,821
3,174,708 - - 3,174,708
1,538,018 - -~ 1,538,018
520,639 - - 520,639
304,631 - - 304,631
3,360,571 - - 3,360,571
635,910 - - 635,210
28,719,787 - - 28,719,787
3,856,314 3,237,103 (520,000} 6,573,917
{425,000) - - (425,000)
3,431,814 - - 6,148,917
32,738,231 11,619,628 6,302,457 50,660,316
36,170,045 14,856,731 5,782,457 56,809,233

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Goodwill
Noncash acquisition of operating assets and liabilitics of SWA Housing, Ltd.
Noncash forgiveness on forgivable loans payable
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap agreements
Investment in new partnerships
{Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts and notes receivable:
Trade
Grants and pledges
Interest
Notes
Development fees
Escrow and security deposits
Prepaid expenses
(Decrease) increase in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Resident security deposits
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES-
Purchases of property and equipment

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Long-term borrowings on notes payable
Principal payments on noles payable
Long-term borrowings on forgivable loans payable
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalenis
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE-
Cash paid for interest

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2016 2015
12,665,606 6,148,917
—~  (5204,619)
~  (1,209457)
(231,310 (1,014,930)
5,046,080 5,150,821
(179,420) (16,092)
409 233
3,622,447 (2,129,134)
(1,050,583)  (2,589,370)
(642,246) 947,693
(8,853,541)  (7,534,390)
(4,392,038) 1,493,478
(462,455) 111,811
41,356 (117,567)
(3,422,011) 3,842,537
230,714 (47,112)
13,338 56,179
2386346 _ (2.111,002)
(4,677,400)  (3,454,357T)
3,853,086 7,513,249
(1,618,210)  (7,081,430)
1,201,000 4,259,931
3525896 4,691,750
1,234,842 (873,609)
15270,179 16,143,788
16,505.021 _ 15.270.179
3544242 3,096,255




FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Note 1: Description of the Organization and its Mission

Foundation Communities, Inc. (“FCI") is a Texas nonprofit corporation that provides development, asset
management, educational and social services, and property management to its affiliates. FCI and its affiliates are
collectively referred to as Foundation Communities.

Foundation Communities® stated purpose is to create housing where families succeed through programs and
services for low income families and individuals that include: affordable housing; on-site learning centers
offering educational programs for youth and adults; supportive housing including case management; asset
building opportunities which include financial literacy education, matched savings accounts, and free income tax
preparation assistance; and health initiatives that focus on wellness, prevention, and community resources.

The following are FCI’s affiliates:

¢ Buckingham Mutual Housing Corporation (“Buckingham”) was incorporated in 1991 and commenced
operations on June 1, 1991.

* Cherry Creek Mutual Housing Corporation (“Cherry Creek™) was incorporated in 1989 and
commenced operations on June 1, 1989,

» Crossroads Mutual Housing Corporation {“Crossroads™) was incorporated in 1990 and commenced
operations on April 1, 1990.

* St. Elmo Mutual Housing Corporation {dba Sierra Ridge) (“St. Elmo”) was incorporated in 1991 and
commenced operations on March 1, 1991.

» Daffodil Mutual Housing Corporation (*Daffodil”) was incorporated in 1996 and commenced
operations on February 26, 1996.

* Sleepy Hollow Mutual Housing Corporation (“Sleepy Hollow”) was incorporated in 1995 and
commenced operations on June 1, 1995.

» Shadow Brook Mutual Housing Corporation (“Shadow Brook™) was incorporated in 1995 and
commenced operations on June 1, 1995,

¢ Peter’s Colony Mutual Housing Corporation (“Peter’s Colony™) was incorporated in 1995 and
commenced operations on June |, 1995,

* Village Green Mutual Housing Corporation (dba Vintage Creek) (“Village Green™) was incorporated in
1999 and commenced operations on February 15, 2000.

* Garden Terrace Housing Corporation (“Garden Terrace”) was incorporated in 2001 and commenced
operations on February 28, 2002,

e Spring Terrace Housing Corporation (“Spring Terrace™) was incorporated in September 2006 and
commenced operations in December 2006.



¢ Central Texas/Searight Housing Corporation (“*CTSHC”) was formed in 1998 as the sole general
partner and .01% owner of Searight Park, Ltd., owner of Trails at the Park apartment complex. The
99.99% limited partnership interest was sold to raise tax credit equity for the project. Trails at the Park
is an affordable housing project, construction of which was completed in early 2000. The project costs,
totaling approximately $15,400,000, were financed by owner tax credits, mortgages, FCI reimbursable
reserves, and grants. FCI was the developer and is the manager of this project through its affiliation
with CTSHC. In November 2013, ownership of Trails at the Park apartment complex was transferred
to CTSHC and the partnership dissolved.

® Central Texas/SWA Mutual Housing Corporation (“CTSWA™) was created in March of 1999 and
commenced operations on February 1, 2000, CTSWA is the majority shareholder of CTSWA Funding
Corporation, a for profit corporation that acts as the sole general partner and .01% owner of SWA
Housing, Ltd., owner of the Southwest Trails apartment complex. The 99.99% limited partnership
interest was sold to raise tax credit equity. Construction of Southwest Trails, a 160 unit affordable
housing project in the Oak Hill area of Austin began in October of 2000. Construction was completed
in the fall 0f 2001. FCI, through its affiliation with CTSWA, was the developer and is the manager of
this project. The project costs, totaling approximately $12,750,000, were financed by owner tax
credits, the sale of private activity bonds, grants, and FCI reimbursable reserves. In March 2015,
CTSWA (non-profit affiliate of FCI) purchased the limited partnership interest in SWA Housing, Ltd.
The investor limited partner received $425,000 for the sale of the interest in the partnership. SWA
Funding Corp. (for-profit non-FClI affiliate) continues to own the general partnership interest. As of
December 31, 2016 and 20135, the partnership continues to own the low-income housing development.
Itis anticipated that the partnership will wind up its affairs and the property will be transferred in its
entirety to CTSWA upon refinancing the property in 2017.

* FC Skyline Terrace Housing, L.L.C. (“Skyline LLC”) was formed in 2006 as the sole general partner
and .01% owner of Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P., owner of the Skyline Terrace project. The 99.99%
limited partnership interest was sold in 2007 to raise tax credit equity for the project. Skyline Terrace is
a 100 unit affordable housing project undergoing renovations to the existing structure that began in
2007 and were completed in March 2008, The project costs, totaling approximately $10,450,000, were
financed by the owner tax credits and FCI reimbursable reserves and grants. FCI was the developer
and is the manager of this project through its affiliation with Skyline Terrace.

* FC M Station Housing, L.L.C. (*M Station LLC”) was formed in 2010 as the sole general partner
and .01% owner of M Station Housing, L.P., owner of the M Station project. The limited partnership
interest was sold to raise tax credit equity for the project. M Station is a 150 unit affordable housing
project completed during 2011. FCI was the developer and is the manager of this project through its
affiliation with M Station. The project costs, totaling approximately $21,000,000, were financed by
owner tax credits, the sale of private activity bonds, grants, and FCI reimbursable reserves.

* FC Shady Oaks Housing, L.L.C. (“Shady Oaks LLC") was formed in 2010 as the sole general partner
and .01% owner of Shady Oaks Housing, L.P., owner of the Sierra Vista project. The limited
partnership interest was sold in December 2010 to raise tax credit equity for the project. Sierra Vista is
a 238 unit affordable housing project renovated during 2011 and 2012. FCI was the developer and
manager of this project through its affiliation with Shady Oaks. Central Texas PC Mutual Housing
Corporation (“Central Texas PC Mutual”) purchased and operated Sierra Vista Apartments between
February and December 2010 when the property was transferred to Shady Oaks Housing, L.P.

* FC Austin One Housing Corporation was formed in 2007. In 2010, FC Austin One Housing
Corporation entered into a contract to purchase existing property to be developed into another
affordable housing property. As of December 31, 2011 the purchase was complete and renovations
were complete on 120 units of residential supportive housing. In 2011, FC Austin One Housing
Corporation changed its name to Arbor Terrace Housing Corp. (“Arbor Terrace™).



FC Austin Two Housing Corporation (“FC 2”') was formed in 2010. On December 31, 2012, FC 2
acquired the 99.99% limited partner interest in Searight Park, Ltd., owner of Trails at the Park
Apartments. In 2013, the general partner entity, CTSHC acquired the property and the partnership
dissolved. At December 31,2016 and 2015, FC 2 had no assets or liabilities.

FC Austin Three Housing Corporation (“FC 3") was formed in 2011. In April 2013, FC 3 purchased
two duplexes that were anticipated to become part of the tract for a future housing development but
were sold to another non-profit in 2014. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, FC 3 had no assets or
liabilities.

FC Austin Four Housing Corporation (“FC 4”) was formed in 2011. At December 31, 2016 and 2015,
FC 4 had no assets or liabilities.

FC Downtown Studios Housing LLC (“Capital Studios LLC”) was formed in 2012 as the sole general
partner and .01% owner of Capital Studios Housing, L.P. The limited partnership interest was sold in
2013 to raise tax credit equity for the Capital Studios project. Capital Studios is new construction of
135 units of affordable housing project with a completion date in November 2014. The project costs,
totaling approximately $21,000,000, were financed by owner tax credits, grants, and FCI reimbursable
reserves.

FC Austin Five, Six, Seven and Eight Housing Corporations (“FC 5, FC 6, FC 7, FC 8") were formed
in2013. None of these organizations had any assets or liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

FC Homestead Housing LLC (“Homestead LLC") was formed in 2013 as the sole general partner and
-01% owner of FC SW Housing, L.P. The limited partnership interest was sold in 2014 to raise tax
credit equity for the Homestead Oaks Apartments project. Homestead Oaks is new construction of

140 units of affordable housing with a completion date in December 2015. The project costs, totaling
approximately $23,000,000, were financed by owner tax credits, grants, and FCI reimbursable reserves.

FC Homestead General Contractor JV was formed in 2014 to construct the Homestead Oaks Apartment
project in conjunction with Bailey Elliott Construction, Inc. Foundation Communities, Inc. is the 99%
partner in the joint venture. The JV was dissolved upon completion of the Homestead Oaks project in
2015 and had no assets or liabilities at December 31, 2016.

FC Highway 71 Housing, LLC (“Live Oak LLC”} was formed in 2014 as the sole general partner and
01% owner of FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P. The limited partnership interest was sold in 2015 to
raise tax credit equity for the Live Oak Trails Apartments project. Live Oak Trails is new construction
of 58 units of affordable housing with a completion date in 2016. The project costs, totaling
approximately $15,000,000, were financed by owner tax credits, grants, and FCI reimbursable reserves.

FC SOLA Housing LLC (“Bluebonnet LLC") was formed in 2014 as the sole general partner and .01%
owner of FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P. The limited partnership interest was sold in 2015 to
raise tax credit equity for the Bluebonnet Studios project. Bluebonnet Studios is new construction of
107 units of affordable housing with a completion date in 2016. The project costs, totaling
approximately $20,000,000, were financed by owner tax credits, grants, and FCI reimbursable reserves.

FC Lakeline Housing LLC (“Lakeline LLC") was formed in 2014 as the sole general partner and .01%
owner of FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. The limited partnership interest was sold in 2015 to raise tax
credit equity for the Lakeline Station Apartments project. Lakeline Station is new construction of

128 units of affordable housing with a completion date in 2016. The project costs, totaling
approximately $27,000,000, were financed by owner tax credits, grants, and FCI reimbursable reserves.

FC 4Points Housing LLC (“4Points LLC") was formed in 2015 as the sole general partner and .01%
owner FC Cardinal Point Housing L.P. The limited partnership interest was sold in 2016 to raise tax
credit equity for the Cardinal Point Apartments project. Cardinal Point will be new construction of
120 units of affordable housing with an expected completion date in 2017.
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The financial statements of all the affiliates listed above are consolidated into the financial statements of FCI as
FCI has control over and economic interest in them. The Board of Directors for FCI also serve as the Directors of
the affiliated corporations. Funds are solicited, controlled, and disbursed at the direction of FCI for the benefit of
the affiliated corporations. All inter-organizational transactions and balances have been eliminated between the
affiliated corporations.

The 2016 and 2015 consolidated financial statements do not include the accounts of Skyline Terrace

Housing, L.P., M Station Housing, L.P, Shady Oaks Housing, L.P., Capital Studios Housing, L.P., FC SW
Housing, L.P., FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P., FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P., FC Rutledge Spur
Housing, L.P. and FC Cardinal Point Housing, L.P. since FCI does not have control over those entities. Related
party transactions with these entities are disclosed in Notes 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 and 24. Skyline Terrace
Housing, L.P., M Station Housing, L.P, Shady Oaks Housing, L.P., Capital Studios Housing, L.P., FC SW
Housing, L.P, FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P., FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P., and FC Rutledge Spur
Housing, L.P. are reported as separate entities and have their own audited financial statements. FC Cardinal Point
Housing, L.P. is also reported as a separate entity and will have a separate audit report when construction is
completed and rental operations begin in 2017,

Buckingham, Cherry Creek, Crossroads, St. Elmo, Daffodil, Sleepy Hollow, Shadow Brook, Peter’s Colony,
Village Green, Garden Terrace, Spring Terrace, CTSHC, CTSWA, Arbor Terrace, FC 2, FC 3, FC 4, FC 5, FC6,
FC 7 and FC 8 are Texas nonprofit 501(c)(3) corporations that either own and operate duplex and apartment
communities or own partnership interests in low-income housing tax credit partnerships. FC Highway 71
Housing, LLC, FC SOLA Housing, LLC, FC Lakeline Housing, LLC, and FC 4Points Housing, LLC are owned
100% by Foundation Communities and have not elected status as taxable corporations. Their purpose is to
promote charitable and educational activities and includes improving overall community stability through the
development and management of affordable housing alternatives for low income individuals and providing
educational activities to expand opportunities for the residents

Skyline LLC, M Station LLC, Shady Oaks LLC, Homestead LLC and SWA Funding Corp. are for profit entities
and are therefore not included in the group exemption maintained for the other affiliated corporations but are
included in these reports because they are 100% owned by FCI. FC Downtown Studios Housing LLC is 49%
owned and controlled by FCI, and as a for profit entity, it is also excluded from the group exemption maintained
for the other affiliated corporations.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) as
defined by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™),
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned regardless of when collected, and
expenses are recognized when the obligation is incurred regardless of when paid. Net assets, revenues, and
expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets
of Foundation Communities and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. Expenses are reported as
decreases in unrestricted net assets. Gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are
reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor
stipulation or by law.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations, which limit their use by
Foundation Communities to a specific purpose and/or the passage of time. When a restriction is satisfied or
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
consolidated statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. See Note 14 for restrictions.



Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations, which require them to
be maintained permanently by Foundation Communities. See Note 15 for restrictions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Fair Value Instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value accounting requires characterization of the
inputs used to measure fair value into a three-level fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An
active market is a market in which transactions occur with sufficient frequency and volume
to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2 - Observable inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources independent from
the entity.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect Foundation Communities’ own assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based
on the best information available.

There are three general valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value: 1) market approach - uses
prices generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities, 2) cost approach -
uses the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost),
and 3) income approach - uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to present amounts based on
current market expectations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, Foundation Communities considers unrestricted highly liquid assets
with an original maturity of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents.

Investments in Partnerships

Investments in partnerships are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The equity method is
required because Foundation Communities is a non-controlling general partner that has guaranteed 100% of the
partnerships’ debt.

Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubiful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the amount Foundation Communities expects to collect on outstanding
balances. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded as management believes all significant accounts
receivable to be collectible. Management records bad debts using the direct charge-off method. U.S. GAAP
requires that the allowance method be used to record bad debts; however, the effect of using the direct charge-off
method is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained using the allowance method.

Grants and Pledges Receivable

Grants and pledges receivable are recorded at the amount Foundation Communities expects to receive from
grantors and donors. Promises to give are recorded at fair value if expected to be collected in one year and at net
present value if expected to be collected in more than one year. Conditional promises to give are recognized
when conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Foundation Communities did not record a net
present value discount on contributions receivable at December 31, 2016 or 2015, as the amount would be
insignificant. No allowance for uncollectible grants receivable has been recorded as, historically, Foundation
Communities has not experienced material uncollectible amounts.
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Notes Receivable

Notes receivable represent loans issued to the tax credit partnerships. Notes receivable are stated at unpaid
principal balances and represent subordinate lien positions on the tax credit partnerships’ real estate. Refer to
Notes 5, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 and 24 for additional information.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 10 30 years. The composite
method is used for the housing unit buildings and improvements. Under the composite method, proceeds from the
retirement of assels are credited to accumulated depreciation. Gains or losses on disposition of property and
equipment (other than housing unit buildings and improvements) are credited or charged to operations.
Foundation Communities capitalizes expenditures over $500. However, certain expenditures for major renewals
and betterments that generally cost less than $500 related to major renovation projects are also capitalized, as well
as the costs that relate to the acquisition and development of properties. Interest costs are capitalized while
development is in progress. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Construction in progress represents construction costs and land development costs incurred on incomplete
properties not yet available for occupancy. Construction in progress is stated at cost and is not depreciated.
Depreciation on construction in progress commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Iniangible Assets
All intangible assets have been determined to have finite lives and as such are being amortized over their
respective useful lives. Leasehold interests are being amortized on a straight-line basis over 30 years.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization

Long-lived assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate
that the amount recorded may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized by the amount in which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds fair value, if the carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable.
Management believes there has been no impairment of such assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs associated with debt are recorded as a reduction of the related outstanding debt balance, and
amortized to interest expense over the term of the related debt arrangement.

Goodwill

Represents the net of the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed through CTSHC’s acquisition
of the Trails at the Park apartment property on December 31, 2012 and the acquisition of the limited partners’
interest on SWA Housing, Ltd. on March 3, 2015. No impairment existed at December 31, 2016 or 2015.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Interest rate swaps are valued based on market values provided by the third party intermediary. Foundation
Communities has two interest rate swap agreements with a bank that are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
These agreements are used to manage exposure to fluctuations in variable interest rates on three note payable
agreements. Foundation Communities records the interest rate swap agreements based on the fair value at the
statement of financial position date. The corresponding change in the fair value of the agreements is recognized
in the current period as an adjustment to interest expense.

Rental Income Recognition
Rental income is recognized as the rent becomes due under the terms of the related agreements. The apartment
and duplex units are leased under non-cancelable operating leases with up to twelve-month terms.

Government Grant Revenue Recognition

Revenue from certain grants received from federal, state, and local governments are earned based on Foundation
Communities incurring allowable costs or providing services. Therefore, revenue is recognized as those costs are
incurred or the services are provided.
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Contributions

All contributions are recorded at fair value and are considered to be available for operations of Foundation
Communities unless specifically restricted by the donor. Unconditional pledges to give cash and other assets are
reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of donated assets. Conditional pledges to give are recognized only when the conditions on which
they depend are substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. Contribution revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 includes $1,549,364 and $1,585,363, respectively, of interest imputed on twenty
eight no interest loans with interest imputed between 3% and 6% received from governmental entities (see

Note 11). There is no effect on the change in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, as
offsetting interest expense has been recorded for the same amount.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The expense information contained in the consolidated statements of activities is presented on a functional basis.
Accordingly, certain expenses are allocated between functional categories.

Federal Income Taxes

FCI and its affiliates are exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code,
with the exception of Skyline LLC, M Station LLC, Shady Oaks LLC, Homestead LLC, and SWA Funding Corp.
which are for profit entities solely owned by FCI and Capital Studios LLC which is majority controlled by FCI.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there was no significant tax liability related to these for profit entities. No
provision for income taxes has been included in Foundation Communities’ consolidated financial statements.
Foundation Communities is subject to routine examinations of its returns; however, there are no examinations
currently in progress.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014 and August 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Updates (*ASU™) No. 2014-09 and

No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in
ASC 6035, Revenue Recognition, and most industry-specific guidance included in the ASC. The standard requires
entities to recognize revenue in a way that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or
services. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and is o be applied
retrospectively and early application permitted. Foundation Communities is currently evaluating the impact the
new standard will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires the recognition of
lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for all leases, including leases previously classified as operating leases,
and modifies the classification criteria and accounting for sales-type and direct financing leases by lessors.
Leases continue to be classified as finance or operating leases by lessees and both classifications require the
recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments in the statement of financial position. Interest on the lease liability and amortization of the right-of-use
asset are recognized separately in the statement of operations for finance leases and as a single lease cost
recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease term for operating leases. The standard is effective using a
modified retrospective approach for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 and early adoption is
permitted. Foundation Communities is currently evaluating the impact the standard will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, which requires presentation on the face of the statements of
financial position amounts for two classes of net assets at the end of the period, net assets with donor restrictions
and net assets without donor restrictions, rather than the currently required three classes. The standard also
requires the presentation on the face of the statements of activities the amount of the change in each of these two
classes of net assets. The standard will no longer require the presentation or disclosure of the indirect method of
reporting cash flows if an entity elects to use the direct method, however it will be required for an entity to
provide enhanced disclosures about liquidity in the footnotes to the financial statements. The standard is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017 and early adoption is permitted. Foundation Communities is
currently evaluating the impact the standard will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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Change in Accounting Principle for Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

As aresult of changes in the accounting standards for debt issuance costs, debt issuance costs related to a
recognized debt liability are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as a direct deduction
from the carrying amount of that debt Iability, consistent with debt discounts, rather than as a deferred charge
presented as an asset. The standard was adopted effective January 1, 2016 and the guidance was applied
retrospectively to debt issuance costs existing as of that date and recognized subsequent to that date.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current
year. There was no impact on net assets.

Note 3: Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject Foundation Communities to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, investments in partnerships, and receivables. Foundation Communities
places its cash and cash equivalents with a limited number of high quality financial institutions and may exceed
the amount of insurance provided on such deposits. Management believes no significant risk exists with respect
to cash and cash equivalents. Investments in partnerships are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate
market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with these investments, it is possible that changes in
the near-term could materially affect the amounts reported in the statement of financial position. Foundation
Communities does not maintain collateral for its receivables and does not believe significant risk exists at
December 31, 2016 and 2015. One grantor accounted for 46% of gross receivables at December 31, 2016.

Note 4: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at December 31:

2016 2015
Cash available for operations 3 3,690,470 $ 4,804,240
IDA/AFI designated cash * 330,420 340,790
Reserve for contingencies ** 6,352,904 5,987,780
Reserve for security deposits 664,520 651,182
Reserve for Real Estate Investments*** 4,386,247 1,773,117
Temporarily restricted cash balance 999,999 - 1,711,239
Permanently restricted cash balance 80,461 1,831
Total $ 16,505,021 $ 15,270,179

*FCI maintains separate accounts for the funds designated for the resident matched savings program, which
provide matching funds to residents who save money for a qualified purchase of a home, education, or small
business purpose.

**FCI maintains a central reserve for all affiliated properties to cover possible contingencies for replacements and
cash flow shortages due to market fluctuations or unexpected expenses on their affiliates at a board designated
level of at least $1,000 per unit. Properties with excess cash flow make annual contributions to the central
reserve.

***FCI set up a Real Estate Investment Expansion Fund in 2012 to provide a means of raising funds for future

expansion of affordable housing projects. Initial funds were obtained from refinancing of Cherry Creek Duplexes
and Buckingham refinancing in 2013.
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Note 5: Accounts Receivable

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables represent primarily construction costs incurred by Foundation Communities to be reimbursed
per contract terms with governmental agencies and loan bridged financing agreements. Trade receivables also
include uncollected rents from residents at low-income housing properties, uncollected management fees from tax
credit properties not included in the consolidated group and accruals of payroll related items. Trade receivables
consisted of the following as of December 31:

2016 2015
Construction progress billings F 2,823,555 § 5,854,789
Uncollected rents 18,734 44,008
Uncollected management fees 29,410 21,698
Other receivable amounts 15,944 589,595
Total $ 2,887,643 $ 6,510,090
Grants and Pledges
Grants and pledges receivable consisted of the following as of December 31:
2016 2015
Grants 3 6,381,759 $ 5,536,779
Undesignated pledges 2,328,449 2,122,846
Total $ 8710208 §$ 7,659,625
The maturity of these receivables was as follows as of December 31:
2016 2015
Due in less than one year 5 6,673,363 5 6,537,774
Due in one to five years 2,036,845 1,121,851
Total $§ 8710208 § 7,659,625

Reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances in grants and pledges receivable was as follows as of
December 31:

Balance, December 31, 2014 3 5,070,255
Receipt of new grants and pledges 14,394,519
Payments on receivables (11,725,145)
Write off uncollectible {(80,004)

Balance, December 31, 2015 7,659,625
Receipt of new grants and pledges 15,246,447
Payments on receivables (14,039,958)
Write off uncollectible {155,906}

Balance, December 31, 2016 $ 8,710,208
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Interest Receivable

Interest receivable consists of interest accrued on notes receivable from tax credit partnerships not included in the
consolidated group (see Notes 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 and 24) consisted of the following as of

December 31:

2016 2015
Interest receivable - Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. $ 126,791 $ 113,881
Interest receivable - M Station Housing, L.P. 445,505 380,505
Interest receivable - Shady Oaks Housing, L.P, 356,934 261,333
Interest receivable - Capital Studios Housing, L.P. 233,081 486,499
Interest receivable - FC SW Housing, L.P. 229,687 131,294
Interest receivable - FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P. 194,963 86,408
Interest receivable - FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P. 302,601 114,470
Interest receivable - FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. 340,978 153,044
Interest receivable - FC Cardinal Point Housing, L.P. 139,140 -
Total $ 2,369,680 $ 1,727,434

Notes Receivable
Notes receivable from tax credit partnerships (See Notes 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 and 24) plus one note
receivable received through donation consisted of the following as of December 31:

2016 2015
Note receivable - Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. b 2,000,000 5 2,000,000
Note receivable - Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. 1,450,000 1,450,000
Note receivable - Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. 750,000 750,000
Note receivable - Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. 850,000 850,000
Note receivable - M Station Housing L.P. 2,000,000 2,000,000
Note receivable - M Station Housing L.P. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Note recejvable - M Station Housing, L.P. 1,500,000 1,500,000
Note receivable - Shady Qaks Housing, L.P. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Note receivable - Shady Oaks Housing, L.P. 2,550,000 2,550,000
Note receivable - Capital Studios Housing, L.P. 6,523,050 7,833,133
Note receivable - Capital Studios Housing, L.P. 1,000,000 1,000,000
Note receivable - FC SW Housing, L.P. 1,326,273 2,211,373
Note receivable - FC SW Housing, L.P. 1,000,000 1,000,000
Note receivable - FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P. 2,983,851 819,242
Note receivable - FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P. 2,045,690 1,545,690
Note receivable - FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P. 3,994,420 3,294,420
Note receivable - FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P. 1,430,000 980,000
Note receivable - FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P. 3,916,621 945,874
Note receivable - FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P. 1,500,000 -
Note receivable - FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. 2,475,000 2,475,000
Note receivable - FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. 500,000 500,000
Note receivable - FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. 294,820 294,820
Note receivable - FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. 3,236,507 1,165,729
Note receivable - FC Cardinal Point Housing, L.P. 3,519,318 2,800,355
Note receivable - KJ Smith (donated note) - 26,373
Total $ 52,845,550 £ 43,992,009




Development Fees Receivable

Foundation Communities earns development fees on new low-income housing projects. Unpaid balances upon
construction completion bear terms that payments are subject to cash flow from the property. Development fees

receivable consisted of the following as of December 31:

Development fees receivable - M Station Housing, L.P. h)

Development fees receivable - Shady Oaks Housing, L.P.
Development fees receivable - Capital Studios Housing, L.P.
Development fees receivable - FC SW Housing, L.P.

Development fees receivable - FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P.
Development fees receivable - FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P.
Development fees receivable - FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P.
Development fees receivable - FC Cardinal Point Housing, L.P.

Total )

Note 6: Investment in Partnerships

Investment in partnerships consisted of the following as of December 31:

Investment in Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. $
Investment in M Station Housing, L.P.

Investment in Shady Oaks Housing, L.P.

Investment in FC Downtown Studios Housing, L.P.

Investment in FC SW Housing, L.P.

Investment in FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P.

Investment in FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P.

Investment in FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P.

Investment in FC Cardinal Point Housing, L.P.

Total $

2016 2015
396,000 S 455,000
285,000 615,000
649,039 905,030

1,502,293 -

1,220,181 305,045

1,055,133 263,783

2,083,829 520,958
265,379 -

7.456,854 $§ 3,064,816

2016 2015

1,362,632 $ 1,362,651

(518) (442)
(420) (37D
(75) 1
900 1,000
974 1,000
957 1,000
990 1,000
1,000 1,000
1,366,440 § 1,366,849

These investments were recorded at fair value using the income approach and were measured at fair value on a

recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as follows:

Balance, December 31, 2014
Investment in new partnerships
Equity in net partnerships loss

Balance, December 31, 2015
Equity in net partnerships loss

Balance, December 31, 2016
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5 1,367,082
1,600
(1,233)

1,366,849
(409)

§ 1,366,440




Note 7: Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31:

2016 2015

Building and improvements $ 101,693,048 $ 98,780,583
Construction and renovations in progress 148,060 92,063
Furniture, appliances, and equipment 6.844,200 6,306,619
108,685,308 105,179,265

Less accumnulated depreciation {67.970,176) (63.035.025)
40,715,132 42,144,240
Land 9,301,763 8,234,170
Property and equipment, net § 50016895 § 50,378,410

Depreciation expense was approximately $5,039,000 and $5,143,000 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Note 8: Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following as of December 31:

2016 2015
Org. Costs 3 27,026 Y 27,026
Less accumulated amortization (20,858) (13,693)
Intangibles assets, net $ 6,168 3 13,333

Amortization expense was approximately $7,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Note 9: Business Combinations

On March 13, 2015, CTSWA acquired 99.99% ownership of SWA Housing, Ltd. No consideration was provided
to SWA Housing, Ltd. limited partners. Goodwill of $5,204,619 arising from the acquisition was assigned to the
acquiring affiliate. No impairment existed at December 31, 2016 or 2015.

The following table summarizes the amounts of the assets acquired and labilities assumed recognized at the
acquisition date, as well as the fair value at the acquisition date of the noncontrolling interest in SWA
Housing Lid., solely owned by CTSWA:

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Financial assets $ 246,649
Property and equipment, net 5,954,958
Intangible assets, net 196,445
Less financial liabilities {11,603,671)
Total net identifiable net assets (5,205,619)
Less noncontrolling interest in SWA Housing, Ltd. 1,000
Goodwill 3 (5,204,619)




The fair value of the financial assets acquired includes cash and receivables under operating leases. The fair value
of the acquired intangible assets relates to loan origination fees. SWA Housing, Ltd. does not have any collection
items or conditional promises to give. The fair value of the liabilities assumed include a $5,020,120 note payable
to a financial institution, $6,412,076 due to Foundation Communities and $171,475 in tenants prepaid rent and
other accrued current liabilities. The fair value of the noncontrolling interest in SWA Housing, Ltd. was
determined by applying the equity method of accounting. All inter-organizational transactions and balances were
eliminated as part of the consolidation process.

The remaining $697,905 recorded as goodwill on the consolidated statements of financial position as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, relates to the acquisition of the 99.99% ownership of Searight Park, Ltd by FC 2 on
December 31, 2012. No impairment existed at December 31, 2016 or 2015. In November 2013, Searight

Park, Ltd. was dissolved and the Trails at the Park Apartments were transferred to CTSHC the former general
partner in the partnership and affiliate of Foundation Communities.

Note 10: Notes Payable

Notes payable consisted of the following as of December 31:

2016 2015

Cherry Creck:
Promissory note, with a fixed interest rate of 3.50%, collateralized by
land, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, all
interest in tenant leases and income leases, and income from the
property. Principal and interest payable in monthly installments of
$25,107; due December 31, 2027. $ 2,759,136 3 2,958,089

Debt issuance costs, net of amortization. (21,096) (23,014)

Buckingham:
Promissory note, with a floating LIBOR interest rate which was
swapped for a fixed interest rate of 3.30%, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, all interest in
tenant leases, and income from the property. Principal and interest
payable in monthly installments of $33,333; due January 5, 2028. 4,433,333 4,833,333

Debt issuance costs, net of amortization. (32,356) (35,297)

Shadow Brook:
Promissory note, bearing interest at 4.5%, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, all interest in
tenant leases, and income from the property. Principal and interest
payable in monthly installments of $24,972; due August 1, 2029, 2,878,736 3,042,519

Debt issuance costs, net of amortization. (70,701 {76,319

Line of credit bearing variable interest rate at LIBOR + 2.65%,
collateralized by land, buildings and improvements, furniture and
equipment, all interest in tenant leases, and income from the
property. Interest payable in monthly installments; due May 26,
2017. 3,733,629 1,830,543
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Village Green:
Promissory note, wilh a floating LIBOR interest rate which was
swapped for a fixed interest rate of 5.75%, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, all interest in
tenant leases and income leases, and income from the property.
Principal and interest payable in monthly installments of $33,500;
remaining balance payable February 5, 2028. 3,471,08] 3,619,461

Debt issuance costs, net of amortization. (167,219) (174,686)

Central Texas Scaright Housing Corp. (Trails at the Park):
Promissory note, with a fixed interest rate of 3.5%, collateralized by
land, buildings and improvemenits, furniture and equipment, all
interest in tenant leases and income leases, and income from the
property. Principal and interest payable in monthly installments of
$40,736; due November 5, 2030, 5,379,865 5,675,585

Debt issuance costs, net of amortization. (155,400) (199,978)

SWA Housing, Ltd. (Southwest Trails);
Promissory note, with a fixed interest rate of 7.35%, collateralized by
land, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, all
interest in tenant leases and income leases, and income from the
property. Principal and interest payable in monthly installments of
$£35,411; due June 1, 2042, 4,889,032 4,952,081

Debt issuance costs, net of amortization. (183,460) {190,674)

FCI (Expansion Fund - Note 1):
Promissory note in the amount of $3,000,000 with initial due date of
October 17, 2016, extended to November 1, 2018, bearing an
interest rate of 0%. Payment due at maturity. 3,000,000 3,000,000

FCI (Expansion Fund - Note 2):
Promissory note in the amount of $2,000,000 with a maturity date of
November |, 2018, bearing an interest rate of 0%, Monthly
payments of $33,333 through maturity date. 733,333 1,133,333

FCI (EQ2):
Promissory note in the amount of $750,000 with a maturity date of
September 9, 2022, bearing an interest rate of 2%. Interest payable
quarterly in payments of $3,750 through maturity date with balance
due at maturity. 750,000 -

FCI (Airport Blvd. property):
Promissory note in the original amount of $1,200,000 with a maturity
date of July 1, 2026, bearing an interest rate of 3.27%. Monthly
payments of $6,819 through maturity date. 1,181,939 -

$ 32,579,852 $ 30,344,976

The loan agreements contain various covenants, including the requirement to maintain certain financial ratios.
Failure to comply with the covenants could result in the debt being called by the lender.
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Future required principal payments on debt obligations were as follows as of December 31, 2016:

Amortization

of Debt Notes Payable,
Principal [ssuance Costs net

2017 b 5,703,896 $ 69,737 $ 5,634,159
2018 4,864,411 69,737 4,794,674
2019 1,578,969 69,737 1,509,232
2020 2,129,187 69,737 2,059,450
2021 1,692,709 69,737 1,622,972
Thereafter 17,240,912 281,547 16,959,365
Total $ 33,210,084 3 630,232 $ 32,579,852

In prior years, Foundation Communities reported debt issuance costs as a deferred charge in the statement of
financial position and amortization of such costs in the statement of activities as depreciation and amartization.
To comply with new U.S. GAAP presentation requirements, in 2016 Foundation Communities began reporting
such costs as a direct deduction from the face amount of the related debt (as shown in the table below) and
reclassified prior year amounts, resulting in a reduction of total 2015 assets by $699,968. The change did not
affect net assets.

Similarly, Foundation Communities now reports amortization of debt issuance costs, $69,737 during the year
ended December 31, 2016, as interest expense and reclassified 2015 amounts accordingly. As a result, reported
interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2015 was increased and depreciation and amortization
decreased by $69,736, with no net effect on the change in net assets.

2016 2015
Principal amount $ 33,210,084 $ 31,044,944
Less unamortized debt issuance costs (630,232) (699,968)
Long-term debt, net of unamortized debt issuance costs $ 32,579.852 § 30,344,976

Note 11: Forgivable Loans Payable

Foundation Communities receives financial assistance for land acquisition and property development costs from
the City of Austin administered through the CHDO Program of Austin Housing Finance Corporation (“AHFC™)
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (“TDHCA") and other grantors. Under the terms of
agreements with AHFC, TDHCA and other grantors, funds are provided to Foundation Communities in the form
of forgivable loans. The agreements provide for the forgivable loan to be secured by deeds of trust on the
property acquired under the agreement. The loan under each agreement is forgiven upon adhering to the Land
Use Restrictions to provide housing to income qualified residents for the time period specified in each agreement,
Amounts received are reported as forgivable loans payable until all conditions necessary to secure the forgiveness
of the debt are met, at which time the forgivable loans are recognized as grant revenue. Forgivable loans payable

represent amounts received for which all conditions necessary to secure the forgiveness of the debt had not yet
been met.

r
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Forgivable loans payable consisted of the following as of December 31:

Crossroads:

Promissory note bearing no interest, collateralized by land, building
and improvements, furniture and equipment, all interest in tenant
leases and income from the property. No monthly installments are
due on the loan. Rather, the lender will defer payments and forgive
the principal contingent upon the property adhering to the restrictive
covenants until the maturity date of June 17, 2108. Foundation
Communities records interest expense based on the imputed rate of
4.5%, the market rate of interest at the origination date.

Debt issuance costs, net of amortization.

CTSWA (Southwest Trails):

Promissory note, bearing interest at 6.0%, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, all interest in
tenant leases, and income from the property. Principal and interest
payable in two instaliments, the first on December 21, 2011, unless
forgiven, and the second and final on December 21, 2020. Provided
the maker has not defaulted on any of the terms or conditions of the
note on the applicable due date, said instaliment payments shall be
forgiven.

Promissory note in the amount of $596,506 due February 28, 2021,
bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather,
the lender will forgive the Ioan upon compliance with 20 year
affordability requirements identified in a Certification A ffidavit
provided in the final application. Foundation Communities records
interest expense based on the imputed rate of 6.0%, the market rate
of interest at the origination date.

Garden Terrace:

Promissory note in the amount of $1,600,000 with an initial due date
of February 28, 2032, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements. No monthly installments are due on
the loan. Rather, the lender will extend the loan to February 28, 2064
upon compliance with 30 year affordability requirements identified
in the loan documentation. Foundation Communities records interest
expense based on the imputed rate of 6.0%, the market rate of
interest at the origination date,

Promissory note in the amount of $1,000,000 with a renewed maturity
date of January 9, 2023, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements. No monthly installments are due on
the loan. Rather, the lender will forgive the balance upon maturity
contingent upon the property adhering to Restrictive Covenants until
the maturity date. Foundation Communities records interest expense
based on the imputed rate of 6.0%, the market rate of interest at the
origination date.
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900,000 900,000
(71,269) (75,607)
500,000 500,000
596,506 596,506

1,600,000 1,600,000
1,000,000 1,000,000



Promissory note, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings
and improvements, furniture and equipment, all interest in tenant
leases, and income from the property. Payment of principal and
interest deferred until February 28, 2032. Foundation Communities
records interest expense based on the imputed rate of 6.0%, the
market rate of interest at the origination date.

Promissory note in the amount of $500,000 due June !, 2038, bearing
no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and improvements. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
forgive the loan upon compliance with 30 year affordability
requirements identified in a Certification Affidavit provided in the
final application. Foundation Communities imputes 6% interest
expense based on the market rate of interest at the origination date.

Promissory note in the amount of $176,070 with a due date of
September 30, 2035, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements owned by Garden Terrace Housing
Corp. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the
lender will defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon
the property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date.

Spring Terrace:

Promissory note in the amount of $786,446 with an initial due date of
December 19, 2035, bearing no interest. No monthly installments
are due on the loan. At maturity, the payment terms are to be
restructured based on actual net operating income. Foundation
Communities records interest expense based on the imputed rate of
6.0%, the market rate of interest at the origination date.

Promissory note up to an amount of $682,010 with an initial due date
of December 19, 2035, bearing no interest. No monthly installments
are due on the loan. At maturity, the payment terms are to be
restructured based on actual net operating income. Foundation
Communities records interest expense based on the imputed rate of
6.0%, the market rate of interest at the origination date.

FCI (Skyline Terrace):

Promissory note in the amount of $1,450,000 with an initial due date
of January 1, 2048, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings, and improvements owned by Skyline Terrace
Housing, L.P. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather,
the lender will waive repayment of principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Land Use Restriction Agreement until the
maturity date. Foundation Communities records interest expense
based on the imputed rate of 6.0%, the market rate of interest at the
origination date.
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Promissory note in the amount of $1,118,309 with an initial due date
of August 23, 2036, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings, and improvements owned by Skyline Terrace
Housing, L.P. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather,
the lender will defer payments and forgive the principal contingent
upon the property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the
maturity date. Foundation Communities records interest expense
based on the imputed rate of 6.0%, the market rate of interest at the
origination date.

Promissory note in the amount of $881,691 with an initial due date of
March 1, 2039, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings,
and improvements owned by Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 6.0%, the market rate of interest at the origination
date.

Promissory note in the amount of $1,516,850 with an initial due date
of June 12, 2048, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings, and improvements owned by Skyline Terrace
Housing, L.P. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather,
the lender will defer payments and forgive the principal contingent
upon the property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the
maturity date. Foundation Communities records interest expense
based on the imputed rate of 4.5%, the market rate of interest at the
origination date,

FCI (M Station):

Promissory note in the amount of $2,000,000 with a due date of
November 30, 2108, bearing 3% interest, secured by land for the
M Station project. Payment due at maturity or date FCI is required to
repay AHFC.

FCI (Shady Oaks):

Promissory note in the amount of $3,000,000 with a due date of
January 1, 2109, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings
and improvements owned by Shady Oaks Housing, L.P. No monthly
installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will defer
payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the property
adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity date.
Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date.

FCI (Capital Studios);

Promissory note in the amount of $4,660,000 with a due date of July 1,
2053, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements owned by Capital Studios Housing, L.P. No monthly
installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will defer
payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the property
adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity date.
Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date.
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FCI (Live Oak Trails):

Promissory note in the amount of $1,250,000 with a due date of
September 1, 2054, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements owned by FC Southwest Trails
Housing, L.P. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather,
the lender will defer payments and forgive the principal contingent
upon the property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the
maturity date. Foundation Communities records interest expense
based on the imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the
origination date.

Promissory note in the amount of $295,690 with a due date of July 31,
2055, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements owned by FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date.

Promissory note in the amount of $500,000 with a due date of July 31,
2055, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements owned by FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date.

FCI (Bluebonnet):

Promissory note in the amount of $2,000,000 with a due date of
September 1, 2054, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements owned by FC Bluebonnet Studios
Housing, L.P. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather,
the lender will defer payments and forgive the principal contingent
upon the property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the
maturity date. Foundation Communities records interest expense
based on the imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the
origination date.

Promissory note in the amount of $1,000,000 with a due date of
September !, 2054, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements owned by FC Bluebonnet Studios
Housing, L.P. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather,
the lender will defer payments and forgive the principal contingent
upon the property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the
maturity date. Foundation Communities records interest expense
based on the imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the
origination date.

Promissory note in the amount of $294,420 with a due date of June 30,
2035, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements owned by FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date,
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Promissory note in the amount of $700,000 with a due date of June 30,
2035, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements owned by FC Bluebonnet Studios Housing, L.P. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date. 700,000 -

FCI (Lakeline):
Promissory note in the amount of $2,475,000 with a due date of
October 1, 2054, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings
and improvements owned by FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date. 2,475,000 2,475,000

Promissory note in the amount of $500,000 with a due date of June 30,
2055, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements owned by FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date. 500,000 500,000

Promissory note in the amount of $294,820 with a due date of June 30,
2035, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements owned by FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. No
monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the lender will
defer payments and forgive the principal contingent upon the
property adhering to the Restrictive Covenants until the maturity
date. Foundation Communities records interest expense based on the
imputed rate of 3%, the market rate of interest at the origination date. 294.820 294,820

FC Austin One Housing Corp (Arbor Terrace):
Promissory note in the amount of $7,260,290 with a due date of July 1,
2042, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings and
improvements owned by AHFC and leased to FC Austin One
Housing Corp. Annual payments will become due beginning July 1,
2013. No monthly installments are due on the loan. Rather, the
lender will defer payments and forgive the principal each year
contingent upon the property adhering to the restrictive covenants
until the maturity date. Interest is imputed at 4% based upon the
market rate of interest at the origination date. 6,014,050 6,245,360

Promissory note in the amount of $2,000,000 with a due date of
June 30, 2110, bearing no interest, collateralized by land, buildings
and improvements owned by AHFC and leased to FC Austin One
Housing Corporation. Interest is imputed at 4% based upon the
market rate of interest at the origination date. 2,000,000 2,000,000
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FCI {Cardinal Point):
Promissory note in the amount of $1,875,000 with a due date of
August 31, 2055, bearing no interest, collateralized by land,
buildings and improvements owned by AHFC and leased to
Foundation Communities. Interest is imputed at 3% based upon the
market rate of interest at the origination date. 1,875,000 1,875,000

5 40,581,955 $ 39,522,245

There are no future required principal payments under the forgivable loans. Future amortization of debt issuance
costs was as follows as of December 31, 2016:

2017 b3 4,338
2018 4,338
2019 4,338
2020 4,338
2021 4,338
Thereafter 49,579
Total $ 71,269

In prior years, Foundation Communities reported debt issuance costs as a deferred charge in the statement of
financial position and amortization of such costs in the statement of activities as depreciation and amortization.
To comply with new U.S. GAAP presentation requirements, in 2016 Foundation Communities began reporting
such costs as a direct deduction from the face amount of the related debt (as shown in the table below) and
reclassified prior year amounts, resulting in a reduction of total 2015 assets by $75,607. The change did not affect
net assets.

Similarly, Foundation Communities now reports amortization of debt issuance costs, $4,338 during the year
ended December 31, 2016, as interest expense and reclassified 2015 amounts accordingly. As a result, reported
interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2015 was increased and depreciation and amortization
decreased by $4,338, with no net effect on the change in net assets.

2016 2015
Principal amount $ 40,653,224 § 39,597,852
Less unamortized debt issuance costs (71,269) (75,607)
Long-term debt, net of unamortized debt issuance costs $ 40,581,955 § 39,522,245

Note 12: Line of Credit

FCI has three lines of credit agreements with three separate financial institutions.

The first line of credit provides for a variable rate of interest (2.950% at December 31, 2016 and 2015) and
expires on November 5, 2018. The credit limit is $3,000,000 and is collateralized by the land, building and
improvements owned by Buckingham. There were no amounts outstanding and no draws during the year under
this line of credit as of December 31, 2016 or 2015.

The second line of credit provides for a variable rate of interest (LIBOR plus 2.65%) and expires on May 26,
2017. The credit limit is $6,000,000 and is collateralized by the land, building and improvements owned by
Shadow Brook. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015 the outstanding balance was $3,733,629 and $1 ,830,543,
respectively. These balances are included in the Notes Payable in Note 10.
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The third line of credit provides for a variable rate of interest (LIBOR plus 2.25%) with no expiration date. The
line of credit is collateralized by the Central Reserve fund held by FCI in an amount not to exceed $6,200,000.
There were no amounts outstanding and no draws during the year under this line of credit as of December 31,
2016 or 2015.

Note 13: Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In 2013, Buckingham entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank to hedge their exposure to interest
rate fluctuations resulting from their variable interest rate note payable agreements. In 2008, Village Green
entered into a similar agreement. The two interest rate swaps were valued using the market approach and inputs
were considered level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Level 2 hierarchy inputs are inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly. In the case of the interest rate swap
agreements, the observable inputs are the relevant interest rates. Under the interest rate swap agreements, the
affiliates agree to exchange the LIBOR based variable interest payment charged on the note payable agreements
for a fixed interest payment that approximates 3% on Buckingham and 6% on Village Green. The original
notional amount of the interest rate swap agreements approximated the respective outstanding principal balances
at the time the agreements were entered into. The original notional amounts decrease as principal payments are
made on the underlying note payable agreements. The interest rate swap agreements expire in January 2028 and
February 2028 for Buckingham and Village Green, respectively. In the event of default, Foundation
Communities would be exposed to interest rate fluctuations. Foundation Communities does not anticipate
nonperformance by the bank. Foundation Communities records the estimated fair value of these swap agreements
on the consolidated statements of financial position. The fair value at December 31, 2016 and 2015 resulted in a
liability of $20,445 and $71,692, respectively, for Buckingham; and a liability of $532,316 and $660,489 for
Village Green, respectively. The change in the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements is recorded as an
adjustment to interest expense.

Note 14: Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were restricted for the following purposes:

2016 2015
Affordable housing programs $ 15081095 $ 12,859,695
Asset building programs 537,250 725,150
Learning center programs 190,000 570,000
Supportive housing programs 348,990 460,700
Healthy living programs 8,390 241,186
Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 16,165,725 § 14,856,731

Included in temporarily restricted net assets are ten and eleven subsidies from the Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB") and AHFC totaling $8,900,000 and $8,050,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Information from these subsidies is included below.

In 2001, the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas (“FHLBD"™) granted a direct subsidy of $500,000 to CTSWA.
The FHLBD Grant and Subsidy agreements require the Southwest Trails property to be occupied by and
affordable for households whose income is at or below certain levels as specified in the agreement. In the event
of sale of the property or noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the
subsidy is required. This compliance requirement remained in effect until November of 2016.
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In 2004, the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (“FHLBA™) granted a direct subsidy of $500,000 to Garden
Terrace. The FHLBA Grant and Subsidy agreements require the Garden Terrace property to be occupied by and
affordable for households whose income is at or below certain levels as specified in the agreement. This
compliance requirement will remain in effect until November of 2017. In the event of sale of the property or
noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required.

In 2004, the City of Austin granted a direct subsidy of $150,000 to Village Green. The City Grant and Subsidy
agreements require the Village Green property to be occupied by and affordable for households whose income is
at or below certain levels as specified in the agreement. In the event of sale of the property or noncompliance
with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required. This compliance
requirement remained in effect until July of 2016.

In 2006, the FHLBD granted a direct subsidy of $350,000 to Spring Terrace. The FHLBD Grant and Subsidy
agreements require the Spring Terrace property to be occupied by and affordable for households whese income is
at or below certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance requirement will remain in effect until
November 7, 2021. In the event of sale of the property or noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance
requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required.

In 2006, the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco (“FHLBS”) granted a direct subsidy of $750,000 to FCI.
The FHLBS Grant and Subsidy agreements require the Skyline Terrace property to be occupied by and affordable
for households whose income is at or below certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance
requirement will remain in effect until September 1, 2021. In the event of sale of the property or noncompliance
with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required.

In 2009, the FHLBS granted a direct subsidy of $300,000 to FCI. The FHLBS Grant and Subsidy agreements
require the Garden Terrace property to be occupied by and affordable for households whose income is at or below
certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance requirement will remain in effect until January 16,
2023. In the event of sale of the property or noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements,
recapture of the subsidy is required.

In 2011, the FHLBS granted a direct subsidy of $1,500,000 to FCI. The FHLBS Grant and Subsidy agreements
require the M Station property to be occupied by and affordable for households whose income is at or below
certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance requirement will remain in effect until fifteen years
following the date construction was completed (September 2, 2011). In the event of sale of the property or
noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required.

In 2012, the FHLBS granted a direct subsidy of $1,000,000 to FCI. The FHLBS Grant and Subsidy agreements
require the Sierra Vista property owned by Shady Oaks Housing, L.P. to be occupied by and affordable for
households whose income is at or below certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance
requirement will remain in effect until fifteen years following the date construction was completed (May 2012),

In the event of sale of the property or noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture
of the subsidy is required.

In 2012, the FHLBA granted a direct subsidy of $1,000,000 to Arbor Terrace. The FHLBA Grant and Subsidy
agreements require the Arbor Terrace property to be occupied by and affordable for households whose income is
at or below certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance requirement will remain in effect until
fifteen years following the date construction was completed (August 2012). In the event of sale of the property or
noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required.

In 2014, the FHLBS granted a direct subsidy of $1,000,000 to FCI. The FHLBS Grant and Subsidy agreements
require the Capital Studios property to be occupied by and affordable for households whose income is at or below
certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance requirement will remain in effect until fifteen years
following the date construction was completed (November 2014). In the event of sale of the property or
noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required.

29



In 2015, the FHLBS granted a direct subsidy of $1,000,000 to FCI. The FHLBS Grant and Subsidy agreements
require the Homestead Oaks property to be occupied by and affordable for households whose income is at or
below certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance requirement will remain in effect until fifteen
years following the date construction was completed {December 2015). In the event of sale of the property or
noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required.

In 2016, the FHLBS granted a direct subsidy of 1,500,000 to FCI. The FHLBS Grant and Subsidy agreements
require the Bluebonnet Studios property to be occupied by and affordable for households whose income is at or
below certain levels as specified in the agreement. This compliance requirement will remain in effect until fifteen
years following the date construction was completed (December 2016). In the event of sale of the property or
noncompliance with the aforementioned compliance requirements, recapture of the subsidy is required.

FCI was awarded a $4,000,000 grant in September 2016 by the Community Development Financial Institutions

Fund for a Capital Magnet Fund. These funds were provided to capitalize an affordable housing fund. FCI will
use these funds to build and develop 833 units of affordable housing over the next five years.

Note 15: Permanently Restricted Net Assets

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, Foundation Communities had been awarded a total of $5,232,457 and
$5,782,457, respectively, in capital fund grants by Neighborworks America. These funds were awarded to
establish and maintain a capital fund for the expressed purpose of funding the costs of acquiring, constructing, or
rehabilitating real properties, and funding pre-development costs such as architectural and engineering. Under the
terms of the agreement, loan repayments and proceeds from capital projects must be returned to the capital fund to
ensure its perpetuity; thus, these funds have been accounted for as permanently restricted. Should Foundation
Communities fail to comply with any of the terms of the agreement, or become defunct, the remaining grant
funds, proceeds, and the loan and capital projects portfolios representing the uses of these funds shall revert back
to Neighborworks America. Neighborworks America issued capital conversions to reduce the permanently
restricted funds by $1,000,000 to make those funds available for operations during both years ending 2016 and
2015.

Capital fund grants are originally received by FCI and then passed through to the affiliates in the form of notes or
grants. The Capital Fund consisted of the following at December 31:

2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 3 81,460 § 1,831
Notes receivable from:
Village Green 834,135 834,135
Spring Terrace 131,275 1,131,275
Shady Oaks, LLC 500,000 500,000
M Station, LLC 1,000,000 1,000,000
Capital Studios, LLC 1,197,000 1,197,000
Arbor Terrace 58,587 200,000
Bluebonnet, LL.C 1,430,000 980,000
Total permanently restricted net assets $ 5232457 8 5,782,457
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Note 16: Related Party Transactions - Skvline Terrace Housing, L.P.

Note Receivable

Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. received funding of $5,050,000 from FClI for the purpose of paying development
and renovations for the affordable housing project. FCI received $1,450,000 from TDHCA, $750,000 from the
FHLBS (see Note 14) and $2,000,000 ($1,118,309 and $881,691) from AHFC. An additional $850,000 was
subsequently loaned to Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P. by FCI. The principal amounts bears interest at 0.25%.
The notes do not have a due date; however, they must be paid upon winding up of Skyline Terrace Housing, L.P.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal balance was $5,050,000, and interest of $126,791
and $113,881, respectively, was accrued.

Development Fee Earned
In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities was entitled to a development
fee of $898,000. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there was no outstanding balance.

Property Management Fee

As compensation for managing the property, Foundation Communities is entitled to a property management fee in
the amount of 6% of the monthly rental collections. During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
Foundation Communities earned $38,029 and $35,539 in total fees and $3,399 and $3,047 were receivable at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Note 17: Related Party Transactions - M Station Housing, L.P.

Note Receivable

M Station Housing, L.P. received funding of $6,500,000 from FCI for the purpose of paying for land acquisition
and development costs for the affordable housing project. FCI received $2,000,000 from AHFC and those funds
are included in the balance from M Station. Note terms are annual payments to the extent of available cash flow.,
The principal amounts bears interest at 1%. The additional $3,000,000 received by M Station was loaned by FCI
in2011. Funding sources include $1,500,000 from FHLBS (see Note 14), $1,000,000 from Neighborworks
America (see Note 15) and $2,000,000 from private donors and FCI’s unrestricted funds. At December 31, 2016
and 2015, the outstanding principal balance was $6,500,000, and interest of $445,505 and $380,505 had accrued,
respectively.

Development Fee Earned

In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities is entitled to a development
fee 0f $2,266,571. The unpaid development fee bears no interest. Payments on the amounts due for the
development fee are made from M Station Housing, L.P’s limited partner equity as determined in the partnership
agreement and then remaining balances will be paid from the partnership’s cash flow from operations. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, $396,000 and $455,000, respectively, was receivable.

Property Management Fee

As compensation for managing the property, Foundation Communities is entitled to a property management fee in
the amount of 5% of the monthly rental collections. During the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
Foundation Communities earned $69,628 and $68,621, respectively, in total fees and $6,260 and $6,895 was
receivable at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

General Partnership Asset Management Fee

As compensation for management of the partnership, M Station, LLC is entitled to an asset management fee in the
amount of $5,000 per year. Payment of the fees are subject to cash flow distribution rights as outlined in the
Limited Partnership agreement. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, $20,000 and $15,000 respectively, were
receivable as a result of this fee.
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Note I18: Related Party Transactions - Shadv Qaks Housing, L.P.

Note Receivable

As of December 31, 2010, FCI had funded $3,000,000 received from AHFC to Shady Oaks Housing, L.P, for
purpose of acquisition and development costs for the affordable housing project. In 2011 FCI loaned Shady Oaks
an additional $2,550,000 for development costs. Note terms are annual payments to the extent of available cash
flow. The principal amounts bears interest at 1%. At December 31, 2016, and 2015, the outstanding principal
balance was $5,550,000 and interest of $356,934 and $261,333, respectively, was accrued at December 31, 2016
and 2015,

Development Fee Earned

In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities is entitled to a development
fee of $1,493,850 upon completion of construction and other requirements set forth in the partnership agreement.
The unpaid development fee bears no interest. Payments on the amounts due for the development fee are made
from Shady Oaks Housing, L.P’s limited partner equity as determined in the partnership agreement and then
remaining balances will be paid from the partnership’s cash flow from operations. As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, $285,000 and $615,000 was receivable, respectively,

Property Management Fee

As compensation for managing the property, Foundation Communities is entitled to a property management fee in
the amount of 5.1% of the monthly rental collections. During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
Foundation Communities received $96,025 and $90,400, respectively, in total fees. As of December 3 1,2016 and
2015, $8,427 and $7,290 respectively, were receivable as a result of this fee.

General Partnership Asset Management Fee

As compensation for management of the partnership, Shady Oaks, LLC is entitled to an asset management fee in
the amount of $5,000 per year. Payment of the fees are subject to cash flow distribution rights as outlined in the
Limited Partnership agreement. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, $25,000 and $20,000 respectively, were
receivable as a result of this fee.

Note 19: Related Party Transactions - Capital Studios Housing, L.P.

Note Receivable

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, FCI had funded $8,833,133 to Capital Studios Housing, L.P. for purpose of
acquisition and development costs for the affordable housing project. FCI received $4,660,000 from AHFC as
well as $1,000,000 from FHLBS (see Note 14) and those funds are included in the balance from Capital Studios.
Note terms are annual payments to the extent of available cash flow. The principal amounts bears interest at 3%.
At December 31, 2016, and 2015 the outstanding principal balance was $7,523,050 and $8,833,133 and interest of
$233,081 and $486,499, respectively, was accrued at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Development Fee Earned

In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities is entitled to a development
fee of $1,409,492 upon completion of construction and other requirements set forth in the partnership agreement.
The unpaid development fee bears no interest. Payments on the amounts due for the development fee are made
from Capital Studios Housing, L.P’s limited partner equity as determined in the partnership agreement and then
remaining balances will be paid from the partnership’s cash flow from operations. As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, $649,039 and $905,030 was receivable, respectively.

Property Management Fee

As compensation for managing the property, Foundation Communities is entitled to a property management fee in
the amount of 6% of the monthly rental collections. During the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
Foundation Communities earned $57,900 and $55,199, respectively, in total fees. As of December 3 I,2016 and
2015, $5,314 and $4,466 respectively, were receivable as a result of this fee, respectively.
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Note 20: Related Party Transactions - FC SW Housing, L.P. {Homestead)

Note Receivable

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, FCI had funded $2,326,273 and $2,211,373 to FC SW Housing, L.P. for
purpose of acquisition and development costs for the Homestead Apartments affordable housing project. FCI
received $1,000,000 from FHLBS (see Note 14). Note terms are annual payments to the extent of available cash
flow. The principal amounts bears interest at 3%. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal
balance was $2,326,273 and $2,211,373, respectively, and interest of $229,687 and $13 1,294, was accrued at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Development Fee Earned
In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities is entitled to a development

fee of $2,123,831 upon completion of construction and other requirements set forth in the partnership agreement.
The unpaid development fee bears no interest. Payments on the amounts due for the development fee are made
from FC SW Housing, L.P’s limited partner equity as determined in the partnership agreement and then
remaining balances will be paid from the partnership’s cash flow from operations. As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, $1,502,293 and $0 was receivable, respectively, Additionally, at December 31, 2016 and 2015, $0 and
$1,640,844, respectively, in construction costs funded by FCI was receivable.

Property Management Fee

As compensation for managing the property, Foundation Communities is entitled to a property management fee in
the amount of 5.25% of the monthly rental collections. During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
Foundation Communities received $61,837 and $0, respectively, in total fees. As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, $6,010 and 30 respectively, were receivable as a result of this fee,

General Partnership Asset Management Fee

As compensation for management of the partnership, Homestead, LLC is entitled to an asset management fee in
the amount of $5,000 per year. Payment of the fees are subject to cash flow distribution rights as outlined in the
Limited Partnership agreement. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, $5,000 and $0 respectively, were receivable
as a result of this fee.

Note 21: Related Party Transactions - FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P. (Live Oak Trails)

Note Receivable

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, FCI had funded $5,029,541 and $2,364,932 to FC Southwest Trails
Housing, L.P. for purpose of acquisition and development costs for the Live Oak Trails affordable housing
project. FCI received $2,045,690 from AHFC and those funds are included in the balance from Live Oak. Note
terms are annual payments to the extent of available cash flow. The principal amounts bears interest at 3%. At
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal balance was $5,029,541 and $2,364,932, respectively,
and interest of $194,963 and $86,408, respectively, was accrued at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Development Fee Earned

In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities is entitled to a development
fee of $1,220,18 lupon completion of construction and other requirements set forth in the partnership agreement.
The unpaid development fee bears no interest. Payments on the amounts due for the development fee are made
from FC Southwest Trails Housing, L.P’s limited partner equity as determined in the partnership agreement and
then remaining balances will be paid from the partnership’s cash flow from operations. As of December 31, 2016
and 2015, $1,220,181 and $305,045, respectively, was receivable. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, $48,602 and
$1,187,653, respectively, in construction costs funded by FCI was receivable.
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Note 22: Related Party Transactions - FC Bluebonnet Housing, L.P. (Bluchonnet Studios)

Note Receivable :

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, FCI had funded $10,841,041 and $5,220,294, respectively, to FC Bluebonnet
Housing, L.P. for purpose of acquisition and development costs for the Bluebonnet Studios affordable housing
project. FCI received $3,994,420 from AHFC and $1,500,000 from FHLBS (See Note 14) and those funds are
included in the balance from Bluebonnet. Note terms are annual payments to the extent of available cash flow.
The principal amounts bears interest at 2.5%. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal balance
was $10,841,041 and $5,220,294, respectively, and interest of $302,601 and $114,470, respectively, was accrued
at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Development Fee Earned

In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities is entitled to a development
fee of $1,055,133 upon completion of construction and other requirements set forth in the partnership agreement.
The unpaid development fee bears no interest. Payments on the amounts due for the development fee are made
from FC Bluebonnet Housing, L.P’s limited partner equity as determined in the partnership agreement and then
remaining balances will be paid from the partnership’s cash flow from operations. As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, $1,055,133 and $263,783, respectively, was receivable. At December 31,2016 and 2015, $29,811 and
$1,337,308, respectively, in construction costs funded by FCI was receivable. :

Note 23: Related Party Transactions - FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P. (Lakeline Station)

Note Receivable

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, FCI had funded $6,506,327 and $4,435,549, respectively, to FC Rutledge
Spur Housing, L.P. for purpose of acquisition and development costs for the Lakeline Station affordable housing
project. FCI received $3,269,820 from AHFC and those funds are included in the balance from Lakeline. Note
terms are annual payments to the extent of available cash flow. The principal amounts bears interest at 3%. At
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal balance was $6,506,327 and $4,435,549, respectively,
and interest of $340,978 and $153,042, respectively, was accrued at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Development Fee Eamed

In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities is entitled to a development
fee of $2,083,829 upon completion of construction and other requirements set forth in the partnership agreement.
The unpaid development fee bears no interest. Payments on the amounts due for the development fee are made
from FC Rutledge Spur Housing, L.P’s limited partner equity as determined in the partnership agreement and then
remaining balances will be paid from the partnership’s cash flow from operations. As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, $2,083,829 and $520,958, respectively, was receivable. At December 31,2016 and 2015, $1,809,633 and
$1,688,984, respectively, in construction costs funded by FCI was receivable.

Note 24: Related Party Transactions - FC Cardinal Point Housing, L.P. (Cardinal Point)

Note Receivable

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, FCI had funded $3,519,318 and $2,800,355, respectively, to FC Cardinal
Point Housing L.P for purpose of acquisition and development costs for the Cardinal Point affordable housing
project. FCI received $1,875,000 from AHFC and those funds are included in the balance from Cardinal Point.
Note terms are annual payments to the extent of available cash flow. The principal amounts bears interest at 3%.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, $139,140 and $0 was receivable, respectively.
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Development Fee Earned

In consideration for acting as the developer of the project, Foundation Communities is entitled to a development
fee of 32,163,448 upon completion of construction and other requirements set forth in the partnership agreement.
Payments on the amounts due for the development fee are made from FC Cardinal Point Housing, L.P’s limited
partner equity as determined in the partnership agreement and then remaining balances will be paid from the
partnership’s cash flow from operations. The $1,298,069 balance of fees will be earned in 2017 upon
construction completion. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, $265,379 and $0, respectively, was receivable. At
December 31, 2016 and 2015, $935,509 and $0, respectively, in construction costs funded by FCI was receivable.

Note 25: Related Party Transactions - Personal Contributions from Board Members

Board contributions for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were $12,683 and $5,343, respectively.

Foundation Communities has a conflict of interest policy by which each Board member must abide. This policy
requires Board members to disclose any potential conflict of interest involving themselves or a family member in
regard to any matter which involves Foundation Communities.

Note 26: Leasehold Interests - Spring Terrace and Arbor Terrace

In 2005, Foundation Communities, through FC Ashford, acquired a hotel property for approximately $2,850,000.
In December 2005, FC Ashford sold the building and land to Austin Housing Finance Corporation, an unrelated
third party, for approximately $2,000,000 and retained a leasehold interest in the building valued at approximately
$850,000. Under the terms of the leasehold interest, Foundation Communities’ affiliate, Spring Terrace, is
allowed to use the building as a rental housing facility for qualified homeless and low-income individuals. The
lease term is 99 years and begins on the date of the initial tenant occupancy. The leasehold interest of $872,210 is
included in property and equipment at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and will be amortized over the expected
useful life of the building.

In 2011, Arbor Terrace entered into a leasehold agreement with Austin Housing Finance Corporation in
conjunction with Austin Housing Finance Corporation providing $2,000,000 to acquire existing property now
known as Arbor Terrace. Under the terms of the leasehold interest, Arbor Terrace is allowed to use the building
as a rental housing facility for qualified homeless and low-income individuals. The lease term is 99 years and
begun on June 6, 2011. Construction on the renovations to the property was completed in August 2012.

Note 27: Endowment Funds

During 2007, Foundation Communities established the Foundation Communities Next Generation Fund

(the “Fund"), a permanent endowment fund, at the Austin Community Foundation (“the Foundation”). The assets
are irrevocably held by the Foundation and are managed to accomplish Foundation Communities® designated
charitable purpose. The Fund’s assets are not recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position of
Foundation Communities as the Foundation reserves the power to modify any condition or restriction on the
distributions from the Fund. The balance in the Fund as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $219,901 and
$205,099, respectively. No distributions were received from the Fund during the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively.

Annually the Foundation’s Board of Governors makes a determination of the amount to grant to Foundation
Communities, based on the Foundation’s spending policy. The Foundation’s current spending policy is that five
percent of the Fund’s value as of December 31 each year shall be the available for distributien in the following
year. Such distribution will be available to Foundation Communities pursuant to a letter of instruction from
Foundation Communities, but subject to the Foundation’s Board of Governors approval. If the amount available
to grant is not distributed in a single year, any remaining balance available to grant will carry over to subsequent
years.
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Note 28: Employee Benefit Plans

In 1999, Foundation Communities adopted a defined contribution, 401(k) employee benefit plan covering
substantially all of its employees. Employees who elect to participate can contribute up to 75% of their gross pay
to the plan up to $17,500 and up to $23,000 if the participant is over 50 years of age. In accordance with the plan
document, Foundation Communities has elected to match the employee contribution up to 2% of the employee’s
gross pay. In addition, the employer may elect, on an annual basis through action of the Board of Directors, to
make an additional contribution of up to the maximum allowable under the plan provisions. Foundation
Communities” matching contributions expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 totaled $409,167
and $365,932, respectively.

Note 29: Compliance with Community Housing Development Organizations’ Tax Exemptions

Included in the supplementary information to these audited financial statements is a schedule titled Comnunity
Housing Development Organization Property Tax Reinvestment Public Expenditure Test that is included to show
Foundation Communities’ compliance with the exemption from ad valorem taxation for certain community
housing developmental organization requirements of Texas Property Tax Code 11.182 and 11.1825.

Note 30: Contingencies

Foundation Communities receives government grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by
government agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement for expenditures disallowed under
terms and conditions of the appropriate agency. In the opinion of Foundation Communities’ management, such
disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Note 31: Subsequent Events
Foundatjon Communities has evaluated subsequent events through May 15, 2017 (the date the consolidated

financial statements were available to be issued), and no events have occurred from the consolidated statement of
financial position date through that date that would impact the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Foundation Communities, Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Foundation Communities, Inc.
and its affiliates (collectively, “Foundation Communities™), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2016, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated May 15, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Foundation
Communities’ intemnal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Foundation Communities’
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Foundation Communities’
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

MLER WEALTH MANAGEMENT LLc



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Foundation Communities’ consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Foundation Communities’ internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Foundation Communities’ internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wowell Loche ¥ Kiglr, LLE

Austin, Texas
May 15, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND
STATE OF TEXAS UNIFORM GRANT MANAGEMENT STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Foundation Communities, Inc.:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the compliance of Foundation Communities, Inc. and its affiliates (coliectively, “Foundation
Communities”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance
Supplement and the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards (“UGMS”), which includes the State of
Texas Single Audit Circular, that could have a direct and material effect on each of Foundation Communities’
major federal and state programs for the year ended December 31, 2016. Foundation Communities’ major federal
and state programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Foundation Communities’ major federal and
state programs based on our audit for the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform
Guidance”) and UGMS. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and UGMS require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Foundation Communities’ compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with its major federal and

state programs. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Foundation Communities’
compliance,

ML&R WEALTH MANAGEMENT Lic



Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, Foundation Communities’ complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state
programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Foundation Communities is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered Foundation Communities internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal and state programs to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for its major federal and state programs and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and UGMS, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of Foundation Communities’ internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and UGMS. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wanweld Loske v Risr, LLP

Austin, Texas
May 15, 2017



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Federal or State Granilor/ Federal Agency
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Pass-Through
Program Title Number Numb Expeniitures
FEDERAL AWARDS
1.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Internal Revenue Service
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance {VITA) Matching Grant Program 21.009 NIA 105,600
Volunteer Incame Tax Assistance {VITA) Matching Grant Program 21.009 NiA 58,702
Passed through United Way of Metropolitan Dallas
Volunteer lucome Tax Assistance (ViTA) Matching Grant Program 21.009 N/A 41,465
Total CFDA 21.009 205,767
Passed through Neighborworks of America
Neighborworks Capital Grant 21.000 NiA 450,000
Neighbarworks Expendable Grant 21 000 N/A 250,000
Total CFDA 2] 000 700,000
LS 0 I V|
Assets for Independence Demonstration Program 93.602 NiA 50,142
1.5 DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed through Texas Education Agency
Twenty-First Century Community Leaming Centers 84287 N/A 79,570
LS, DEPART, ISING IRBAN DEVELOPN
Passed through Austin Housing Finance Corporation
CDBG-Entitlement Grants Cluster
CDBG-Entitlement Grants Cluster: Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants Program Loan 14218 B-02-MC-48-0500 1,600,000
CDBG-Eatitlement Grants Clusier: Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants Program Loan 14218 B-10-MC-48-0500 1,101,065
CDBG-Entitlement Grants Cluster Community Development Block Grants/Eatitlement Grants Program Loan 14218 B-12-MC-48-0500 1,150,000
Total CFDA 14218 and CDBG-Entitlement Gramt Cluster 3,851,066
HOME Investment Parinerships Program Loan 14239 M-02-MC-45-0500 500,000
HOME Investment Parinerships Program Loan 14.239 M-06-MC-48-0500 956,003
HOME Invesiment Partnerships Program Loan 14.23% M-02-MC-48-0500 175,750
HOME Invesimeni Partnerships Program Loan 14.239 M-14-MY <18-0500 294 420
HOME [nvesunent Parmerships Program Loan 14,239 M-14-MY-&-0500 295,650
HOME [nvestment Partnerships Program Loan 14239 M-14-MY 480500 294,820
HOME Investment Paninerships Program Loan 14.239 M-14-MY-18-0500 86,682
Passed through Texas Department of lousing and Cammunity Affairs
HOME Investinent Partnerships Program Loan 14.239 M-06-SG-48-0(00 1,450,000
HOME Investment Parinerships Program Loan 14.239 M-01-5G-43-0100 1,000,000
HOME Investment Pannerships Progeam Loan 14.239 M-05-5G-48-0100 786,446
Total CFDA 14.239 5.839 811
Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program and Non-Entitlement
Grants in Hawaii - Neighborhood Stabilization Program Loan 14.228 B-08-DN-18-0001 6,245,360
18 JU8
Passed through Safeplace
Transitional Housing Assistance for Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence,
Stalking, or Sexual Assault 16.736 2015-WH-AX-0006 79,749
Passed through Travis County
Edward Byme Memorial Competitive Grant Program: - Justice Reinvestment [nitiatives 16751 4400001395 12,377
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 17,063,842
STATE AWARDS
TIE DEPARTMENT OF ISING AND COMMUNITY AFFAL
Housing Trust Fund Loan - for Southwest Trails 596,506

Housing Trust Fund Loan - for Spring Terrace
TOTAL EXPENIMTURES OF STATE AWARDS
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards.
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682,010
1,278,516
$ 18.342.358



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the “Schedule™) includes the federal and
state award activity of Foundation Communities under programs of the federal and state government for the year
ended December 31, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (*Uniform Guidance”) and the State of Texas Uniform Grant
Management Standards (“UGMS”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
Foundation Communities, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or
cash flows of Foundation Communities.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Schedule includes the federal and state activity of Foundation Communities and is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB
Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, or the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance or UGMS, where certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this Schedule may differ from amounts presented in or used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Foundation Communities has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Included in the Schedule are balances at December 31, 2016 of loans from the Neighborhood Stabilization
Program, HOME, CDBG and the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs for the construction and
remodeling of affordable low income housing projects. The Uniform Guidance and UGMS require that the
Schedule include the total amount of federal and state awards expended for loan or loan guarantee programs
which include the value of new loans made or received during the year plus the beginning of the period balance of
loans from previous years for which the federal or state government imposes continuing compliance requirements.

Note 3: Loan or Loan Guarantee Programs

The following table includes the balances of loans and loan guarantee programs outstanding at December 31,
2016 in accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.502(b) which could differ from balances presented in the Schedule.
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Outstanding Loan

. Program CFDA Number Balance at.
December 31, 2016
CDBG-Entitlement Grants 14.218 $1,600,000

Cluster: Community
Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants
Program Loan

CDBG-Entitlement Grants 14,218 $1,101,066
Cluster: Community
Development Block

Grants/Entitlement Grants

Program Loan

CDBG-Entitlement Grants 14.218 $1,150,000
Cluster: Community
Development Block

Grants/Entitlement Grants
Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 $500,000
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 $956,003
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 $175,750
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 £294 420
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 $295,690
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 $294,820
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 586,682
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 $£1,450,000
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 $1,000,000
Partnerships Program Loan

HOME Investment 14.239 $786,446
Partnerships Program Loan
Community Development 14.228 $6,014,050*

Block Grants/State's Program
and Non-Entitlement Grants in
Hawaii - Neighborhood
Stabilization Program Loan

*Difference from Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is due to a portion of the debt forgiven
during the year ended December 31, 2016.



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial
statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP: unmodified

[nternal control over financial reporting:

® Material weakness(es) identified? yes X
* Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X

FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

no

none reported

no

Identification of major programs and type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for each major program:

Federalor | CFDA Number Name of Federal or State Program Type of Auditors®
State Major Report Issued on
Program Compliance for Major
Federal or State
Program
Federal U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development - Passed through Austin Housing .
—— Finance Corporation - HOME Investment LG
Partnerships Program Loan
State Texas Department of Housing and Community
n/a Affairs - Housing Trust Fund Loan — Southwest Unmodified
Trails
Internal control over major programs:
* Material weakness(es) identified? yes X_no
* Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes x___hone reported
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) or UGMS? yes X__no
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Federal type A and type B programs: $750,000
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
State type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

SECTION 11 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No findings required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AND STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No findings or questioned costs required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance or UGMS for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
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ATTACHMENT 4:
RESOLUTION



RESOLUTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
Foundation Communities, Inc.
Waters Park Studios

WHEREAS, Foundation Communities, Inc., a non-profit Community Housing Development Organization,
is applying for funding from the Austin Housing Finance Corporation in Rental Housing Development
Assistance Funding for the following project:

Rental Housing Development Assistance Funding for a proposed affordable housing, rental
community located at 12207 Waters Park Road, 78759 and 12190 N Mopac Expwy, 78758 in Austin,
Texas. The funding will be used for acquisition and/or construction costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of Foundation Communities, Inc. hereby authorizes making
an application for funding to the Austin Housing Finance Corporation.

Adopted and approved by the Board of Directors on the i Bl_n day of February, 2018.

FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES, INC.

Y chpr———

MiekEe WkulS | chair

Board of Directors of Foundation Communities, Inc.
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WATERS PARK STUDIOS

Distance to nearest transit (June 2018 changes) — Route 142 — Metric Flyer
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5. EARNEST MONEY:
A. Nat later than 3 days after the effective date, Buyer must deposit § $20,000.00 es eamesl money

with Stewart Title {tile company)
at 801 S Mopac Ste 3-100, Austin, TX 78746 (address)} Shawna Fletcher {closer).

If Buyer fails to timely deposit the eamest money, Seller may terminate this coniract or exercise any of
Seller's ather remedias under Paragraph 15 by providing written notice to Buyer bafore Buyer deposits

the earnest money,

B. Buyer will deposit an additional amount of $ 10,000.00 with the title company to be mage
part of the eamest money on or befora;

@ (i) days after Buyer’s right to terminate under Paragraph 78 expires; or
(i) Juns 1, 2018

Buyar will be in default if Buyer falls to deposit the additional amount required by this Paragraph S.B
within 3 days afier Seller nofifies Buyer that Buyer has not limely deposled the additional amount.

C. Buyer may Insiruct the title company to deposit the earnest money In an interest-bearing account at a
federally insured financlal instilution and to credit any interest to Buyer.

6. TITLE POLICY, SURVEY, AND UCC SEARCH:;
A. Title Pollcy:

(1) Seller, at Seller's expense, will furnish Buyar an Owner's Policy of Title Insurance (the title palicy)
issued by any underwriter of the fitle company in the amount of the sales price, dated at or after
clesing, Insuring Buyer against loss under the title policy, subject only to:

{a} thase title exceptions permitted by this contract or as may be approved by Buyer In writing; and

{b) the standard printed excaptions contained In the promulgated form of tille policy unless this
contract provides otherwise.

(2) The standard printed exception as to discrepancies, conflicis, or ghortagss in erea and boundary
lines, or any encroachments or protrusions, or any overlapping improvements:
(a) will not be amended or deleted from the ttle policy.
(b) will be amended to read "shortages in areas” at the expense of [X]Buyer [JSellsr.

(3) Within _30 _ days aiter the sffective date, Seller will furnish Buyer a commitment for title insurance
(the commitment) including legible coples of recorded documents evidencing title exceptions. Seller
authorizes the tille company lo deliver the commitment and related documents to Buyer at Buyer's
addrass,

(TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Initialed for Identfication by Seller £/, \/C_, and Buyer A Pege 2 of 14
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B. Survev: Within __80 _ days after the effective date:

Xl (1) Buyer will obtaln a survey of the Property at Buyer's expense and deliver a copy of the survey to
Seller. The survey must be made in accordance with the: ({} ALTA/JACSM Land Tille Survey
standards, or (ff) Texas Soclety of Professional Surveyors' standards for a Calegory 1A survey
under the appropriate condition.-Seller-wilkreimbusse-Buyer- —finsert

D (2) Seller, at Seller's expense, will furnish Buyer a survey of the Property dated afier the effective date.
The survey must be made in accordance with the: () ALTA/ACSM Land Title Survey standalds, or
() Texas Society of Professional Surveyors' standards for a Category 1A survay under the
appropriate condition,

|:| (3) Seller will deliver to Buyer and the title company a true and correct copy of Seller's most recent
survay of the Properly along with an affidavit required by the fitte company for approval of the
exisling survey. If the existing survey is not acceplable to the itle company, Seller, at Seller's
expense, will oblain a8 new or updated survey acceptable {o the fitle company and deliver the
acceplable survey to Buyer and the title company within 20 days after Seller recelves nofice that
the exisling survey Is not acceptable to the fitle company. The closing date will be extended dally
up to 20 days if necessary for Selier {0 deliver an acceptable survey within the time requirad, Buyer
will reimburse Seller (Insert amount) of the cost of the new or updated survpy

at closing, If closing occurs.

C. YoG Seareh:

(1) Within _30 _ days after Buyer raceives the commitment, copies of the documents evidencing the
fille exceptions, any required survey, and any required UCC search, Buyer may objec! to matters
disclosed in the ltems If; (a) the matters disclosed are a restriclion upon the Property or constitute a
defect or encumbrance to Uitle {o the real or personal property described In Paragraph 2 other than
those permitted by this contract or liens that Seller will salisfy at closing or Buyer will assume at
closing; or (b) the items show that any part of the Property lles in a speclal ficod hazard area (an
“A” or *V" zone as defined by FEMA), If Paragraph 68(1) applles, Buyer Is deemed to recsive the
survey on the earlier of: (i) the dale Buyer actually receives the survey, or (li) the deadline specified
in Paragraph 6B.

(2) Seller may, but is not obligated to, cure Buyer's timely objections within 16 days afler Seller
receives the objections, The closing date will be extended as nacessary to provide such time to
cure the objections. If Seller fails to cure the abjections by the ime required, Buyer may lerminate
this contract by providing written notice to Seller within 5 days after the time by which Seller must
cure the objections. If Buyer terminates, the eamest money, less any independent consideration
under Paragraph 78(1), will be refunded to Buyar.

(3) Buyer's fallure to timely object or terminate under this Paragraph 6D is a waiver of Buyer's right to
ebject axcept that Buyer will not waive the requirements In Schedule C of the commitment.
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7. PROPERTY CONDITION:

A. Present Condition: Buyar accepts the Properly in ils present condition except that Seller, at Saller's
expense, will complete the following before closing:

8. Feasibility Period: Buyer may terminate this contract for any reascn within- by March 1, 2018 days after the
effective date (feasibility period) by providing Sefler written notice of terminalion. (Check only one bo:g.)

X (0ir Buyer tarminates unc}sr this Paragraph 7B, the eamest money will be refunded to Buyer less
$ 100.00 that Seller will retaln as independent consideration for Buyer's unrastricted

[ (2) Notater than 3 days afier the effective date, Buyer must pay Seller $ as
independent consideration for Buyer's right to terminale by tendering such amount to Seller or
Sefler's agent. If Buyer terminates under this Paragraph 7B, the eamest money will be refunded to
Buyer and Seller will refain the Independent consideration. The Independent consideration will be
credited to the sales prica only upon closing of the sale.
Ma - Buver t3 g

C. Inspections, Stydles, or Assessments:

(1) During the feasibility period, Buyer, at Buyer's expense, may complete or cause to ba completed
any and all inspections, studles, or assessments of the Praperly (Including all Improvements and
fixtures) desired by Buyer.

(2) Seller, at Seller's expense, will tum on all utliities necessary for Buyer to maka Inspections, studies,
or assessments,

(3) Buyer must:
(a) employ only tralned and qualified Inspeclors and assessors;
(b) notify Saller, in advance, of when the Inspeclors or assessors will be on the Property;
(c) abide by any reasonable entry rules or requirements of Seller;
(d} not interfere with existing operations or occupants of the Property; and
(e) restore the Properly to Its original condition i altered due to Inspections, studles, or
assessments that Buyer completes or causes to be complated,

(4) Except for thosa matters that arise from the negligence of Seller or Seller's agenis, Buyer is
responsible for any claim, liability, encumbrance, cause of action, and expense rasulting from
Buyer's inspections, sludies, or assessments, including any property damage or personal injury.
Buyer will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Seller and Saller's agents against any clal
involving a matter for which Buyer is responsible under this paragraph. This paragraph survives
tarmination of this contraot,

D. Property Information:

(1) Delivery of Property Information: Within 30 days after the affective date, Seller will daliver to
Buyer: (Check all that apply.)
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(a} a current rent roll of all leases affecting the Property cerlified by Seller as true and comrect;
(b} coples of all current leases periaining to the Property, including any modifications, supplements,
or amendments {o the leases;
(c) a current Inventory of all personal property to be conveyad under this contract ang coples of
any leases for such personal property;
[ (d) copies of all notes and deeds of trust agalinst the Property that Buyer will assume or that Seller
will not pay in full on or before closing:
(e) coples of all current service, maintenance, and managemeant agreements relating to the
_ ownership and operation of the Praperty; -
1 () coples of chirent uthtity capacity letters from the Property’s waler and sewer service provider;
_| (g) coples of all current warrantles and guaranties relating lo all or pari of the Properly;
|| {h} coples of fire, hazard, llabllity, and other insurance policles that cumrently relate to the Property:
| | (i) coples of all leasing or commission agreements {hat currently relate to the tenants of all or part
_ of the Property;
! () acopy of the “as-bull\" plans and specifications and plat of the Praperty;
i (k) copies of all Invoices for utlliles and repairs incurred by Seller for the Property in the 24 months
immedlately praceding the effective dale;
[J (0 acopy of Saller's income and expense stalement for the Property from
to H
O (m)copies of all previous environmental assessments, geotechnical reports, studles, or analyses
made on or refating to the Property;
B {n) real & personal property tax stataments for the Property for the previous 2 calendar years; and
{o) Tenant raconciliation statements Including, operaling expenses, insurance and taxes for the
Properly from to s and

(] (p) Phase 1 Environmental Study (if availabls)

+

(2) Return of Property Information: if this contract terminates for any reason, Buyer will, not later than
10 days afler the termination date: (Check all that apply.)
(X] (a) return to Seller alf those flems described in Paragraph 7D{1) that Seller delivered to Buyer in
olher than an electronic format and all coples that Buyer made of thoss items;
[ (b) delete or destroy all electronic versions of those items described in Paragraph 7D(1) that Seller
delivared to Buyer or Buyer copled; and
[ (c) daliver copies of all inspection and assessment reporis related to the Property that Buyer
compleled or caused to be complsted.
This Paragraph 7D{2) survives termination of this contract.

E. Contracls Affecting Operations: Until closing, Seller; (1) will operate the Properly in the same manner
as on the effective date under reasonably prudent business standards; and (2) will not transfer or
dispose of any part of the Property, any interest ar right in the Property, or any of the personal property
ar other items described in Paragraph 2B or sold under this contract. After the feasibllity period ends,
Seller may not enter into, amend, or terminate any other contract that affects the operations of the
Propanty without Buyer's written approval.

8. LEASES:

A. Each written lease Ssller is to assign lo Buyer under this contract must be In full force and effect
according to its terms. Seller may not enter inio any new leass, fall to comply with any existing lease,
or make any amendment or modification to any existing lsase without Buyer's written consent. Seller
must disclose, in wriling, if any of the following exist at the time Seller provides the leases 1o the Buyer
ar subsaquently occur before closing:

{1) any failure by Seller to comply with Seller's obligations under the leases;

(2) any circumstances under any Jease that entitle the tenant to terminale the lease or seek any offsets
or damages; :

{TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Initielad for (dentiication by Seller’gﬂs, ‘ S}D and Buyer !é!é!: . Page 5 of 14
Mchigan s8I8

Producad with 2pFormp by sologi 18079 Filtesn MIs Road, Frasar, 13190 4 Mopac




Commercial Conlract - Impraved Proparty cancerning 12190 N Mo Pac

(3) any non-oceupancy of the leased premisses by a tenant;

(4) any advance sums paid by a tenant under any lease;

(5) any concesslons, bonuses, fres rants, rebates, brokerage commisslons, or olher matters that affect
any leass; and

(6) any amounts payable under the leases that have been assignad or encumbered, except as security
for loan(s) assumed or taken subject to under this contract,

B. Esloppel Cerlificates: Within 90 days afler the effective date, Seller will deliver to Buyer esioppel
certificales signed not eariler than January 1, 2018 1by each lenant that leases space
in the Property. The estoppel cerlificates must include the certifications conlained In the current versipn
of TAR Form 1838 - Commerclal Tenant Estoppel Certificate and any additional information requested
by a third party lender providing financing under Paragraph 4 if the third party lender requests suph
additional Information at teast 0 days prior to the earllest date thal Seller may deliver the signad
ostoppel cerlificatas,

9. BROKERS:
A. Tha brokers to this sale are:

Principal Broker: Gall Whitfisld dba ‘The Whitfield Cooperating Broker;

Company

Agent: Gall Whitfield Agent:

Address: 1101 8 Capital of Texss Hwy Bis A101 Address:

Phane & Fax: {512)476-8900 Phone & Fax:

E-mali: pali@ithawhitfleldco.com E-mali:

License No.: 0318233 License No.:

Principal Broker: (Check only one box.) Cooperating Broker represents Buyer.
represents Seller only.
represents Buyer anly.

is anintermediary between Seller and Buyer.

B. Eses: (Check only (1) or (2) below.)
{Complste the Agraement Between Brokers on page 14 only if (1) is selected.)

[J (1) Seller will pay Principal Broker the fee spacified by separale written commieslon agreement
betwaen Principal Broker and Seller. Principal Broker will pay Cooperating Broker the fee spacified
In the Agresment Between Brokers found balow the parties’ signatures 1o this contract,

X (2) Atthe closing of this sale, Sefler will pay:

Principal Broker a lotal cash fee of: Cooperating Broker a total cash fee of:

3000 _ % of the sales price, % of the sales price.

[ | .

The cash fees will be pald in Travis County, Texas. Seller authorizes

the title company to pay the brokers from ihe Saller's proceeds at closing.

NOTICE: Chépter 62, Texas Property Code, authorizes a broker to secure an earned conwnission
with a llen against the Property.

{TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Initialed for Identification by SeHeI(QQQrM € and Buyer WH . Paga & of 14
Produced with toForm® by ziplogn 18070 Fiteen Mia Fioza, Frassr, Michigan 48028 yrwr.ziol oo oorm 13098 N Mopar



Commercial Contract - Improved Proparty conceming 12990 N Mo Pag

C. The parties may not amend this Paragraph 9 without the writlen consent of the brokers affectad by the
amendment,

10. CLOSING:

A. The date of the closing of Ihe sale (closing date) will be on or before the later of:
(1) days after the expiration of the feasibility perlod.

August 31, 2018 __ (spacific date).

{2} 7 days after objectlons made under Paragraph 6D have been cured or waived.

B. If sither party falls to close by the closing date, the non-defaulting party may exercise the remadies in
Paragraph 15,

C. Atclosing, Seller will executs and deliver to Buyer, at Seller's expense, a ] general [ ] special warranty
deed. The deed must include a vendor's lien if any parl of the sales price Is financed. The deed must
convey good and indefeasible title to the Properly and show no exceplions other than those permitted
under Paragraph 6 or other provislons of this coniract. Selle; must convey the Properly:

(1) with no liens, assessments, or Uniform Gommerclal Code or cother security interests against the
Property which will not be satisfied out of the sales price, unless securing loans Buyer assumes;

(2) without any assumed loans In defauit; and

(3} with no persans in possession of any part of the Proparty as lessees, tenanls at sufferance, or
{raspassers except tanants under the written leases asslgned to Buyer under this contracl.

D. Atclosing, Seller, at Seller's expense, will also deliver to Buyer:

(1) tax statements shawing no delinquent taxes on the Property;

(2) a bilk of sale with warrantles to title conveying tille, free and clear of all liens, to any personal
property defined as part of tha Property In Paragraph 2 or sold under this contract;

(3) an assignment of all leases to or on the Property;

(4) to the extent that the folfowing itams are assignable, an assignment to Buyer of the following items
as they relate to the Property or its operations:

(8) licenses and permits;
(b) maintenance, management, and other contracts; and
{c) warranties and guaranties;

(6} a rent roll cument on the day of the closing certified by Seller as true and correct;

(6) evidence that the person exacuting this contract is legally capabls and authorized to bind Seller:

(7) an affidavit acceptable to the tiile campany staling that Seller Is not a forelgn person or, if Seller Is
a foreign person, a written authorization for the title company to: (i) withhold from Seller's proceeds
an amount sufficlent to comply applicable tax law; and () deliver tha amount to the Interngt
Revenue Service together with appropriate tax forms; and

(8) any nolices, stalements, certificates, affidavits, releases, and other documents raquired by this
contract, the commitment, or law necessary for the closing of the sale and the Issuance of the fitle
policy, all of which musi be completed and exaculed by Seller s necessary.

E. Atclosing, Buyer will:
(1) pay the sales price in gnod funds acceplable (o the title company;
(2) deliver evidencs that the persan executing this contract is legally capable and authorized to bind
Buyer;
(3) sign and send to each tenant in the Property a writtan statement that;
(a) acknowledges Buyer has received and is responsible for the tenant's security deposit; and

(b) specifles the exact dollar amotnt of the securi:}( deposit;
(4) slgn an assumption of all ieasas then In effact; an

(5) execute and deliver any notices, slatements, cerlificates, or other documents raquirad by this
contracl or law necessary to close the sale.
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F. Unless the parlies agree otherwise, the closing documents will be as found in the basic forms In the
current editlon of the State Bar of Texas Real Estate Forms Manual without any additional clauses,

11, POSSESSION: Seller will deliver possession of the Property to Buyer upon closing and funding of this sale
in its present condition with any rapairs Seller is obligated to complate under this conlract, ordinary wear
and tear excepted. Any possession by Buyer befors closing or by Saller after closing that is not authorlzed
by a separate writien lease agreement is a landlord-tenant at sufferance relationship between the parties.

12, SPECIAL PROVISIONS: The foliowing special provisions apply and will control In the event of a conflict
with other provisions of this contracl. (If spacial provislons are conlained in an Addsndum, identify the
Addendum here and reference the Addendum In Paragraph 22D.)

Buyer at Buyers expansa may obtain a Phase One Environmental Report. Saller will coopsrate with
Buyer to fill out reports and allow access to the Property. Seller shall be allowed to Lease back the
Property for six (6) months after closing for $500 per month.

Projact Entitlamants. Seller hereby authorizes Buyer to, upon or after the Effective Date of the
Contract, make application to any and all applicable governmental entitles and authorities
regulating development of the Property (the "Governmental Authorities”) for approval of all permits
necessary to construct and devalop a multifamily housing project and related roadways, parking,
drainage/water quality facilities, utilitles, Infrastructure and amenities on the Property (the
"Project”), Including without limitation: (a) all approvals which are requirad for developmaent of the
Project; and (b) all site development permits, building permits and other approvals which are
required for the Project (collectively the “Projact Entitlements”). Howaver, Buyer shall have the
right to contact all governmental authorities to assure Its satisfaction with all review matters,
howaver no change of any kind wil be made without the express written consent of Seller. Buyer
shall bear all costs associated with obtaining the Project Entitlements from the Governmental
Authorities. Seller agrees ta reasonably cooperate with Buyer in obtaining the Project Entitlaments
(at no cost to Saller and with no obligation to appear or otherwise particlpate In any hearings,
meetings or proceedings) and to sign any applications or other documents which may be requirad
Continued... See Addendum Special Provisions 1

13. SALES EXPENSES:

A. Selle’s Expanses: Seller will pay for the following at or befora closing:
(1) releases of existing liens, other than thosae liens assumed by Buyer, including prepayment penallies
and recording fees;
(2) release of Seller's loan liabllity, if applicable;
(3) ax statements or certificates;
{4) preparation of the dead and any bill of sals;
() one-half of any escrow fee;
{6) costs to record any documents to cure title objections that Seller must cure; and
(7) other expenses that Seller wiil pay under other provisions of this contract.

B. Buvers Expenses: Buyer will pay for lhe following at or before closing:
(1) all loan expenses and fees;
(2) preparation fees of any deed of trusl;
(3) recording fees for the deed and any dead of lrust;
(4) premlums for flood and hazard insurance as may be required by Buyer's lender;
(6) one-half of any escrow fee; and
(6) other expenses that Buyer will pay undar other provislons of this contract.

(TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Iniiialed for Identification by Saum&/j&m' . and Buyer , Page 8 of 14
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14, PRORATIONS:

A. Prorations:

(1) Interest on any assumed loan, taxes, rents, and any expense reimbursements from tenants will be
prorated through the closing date.

(2) If the amount of ad valorem taxes for the year in which the sale closes Is not avallable on the
closing date, taxes wil! be prorated on the basis of taxes assessed in the previous year, If the taxes
for the year in which the sale closes vary from the amount prorated at closing, the parties will adjust
the prorations when the tax statements for the year in which the sale closes become avallable. This
Paragraph 14A(2) survives closing.

(3) If Buyer assumes a loan or Is taking the Property subject to an exisling lien, Seller will transfer all
reserve deposiis held by the lander for the payment of laxes, insurance premiums, and other
charges to Buyer at closing and Buyer will reimburse such amounts to Seller by &n appropriate
adjustment at closing.

B. Roliback Taxes: If Seller's use or change in use of the Property before closing results in the
assessment of additional taxes, penaities, or interest (assessments) for periods before closing, the
assessments will be the obligalion of Seller, If this sale or Buyer's use of the Property after closing
resufls in additional assessments for periods before closing, the assessments will be the obligation of
Buyer. This Paragraph 148 survives clasing,

C. Renl and Security Deposits: At closing, Saller wilt tender to Buyer all security deposlts and the following
advance paymentis racelved by Seller for periods after closing: prepald expenses, advance rental
payments, and other advance payments paid by lenants. Rents prorated to one party but raceived py
the other party will be remitted by the racipient to the party lo whom it was prorated within 5 days after
the rent is recelved. This Paragraph 14C survives closing.

15. DEFAULT:

A. If Buyer falls to comply with this contract, Buyer is in default and Seller, as Seller's sole remedy(ies),
may terminale this contract and recelve the earnest maney, as liquidated damages for Buyst’s failure
except for any damages resuiting from Buyer's inspactions, studies or assessments in accordance with
Paragraph 7C{4) which Seller may pursue, of
(Check if applicable)

[ entfarce specific performance, or seek such other relief as may be provided by law,

If. without fault, Seller Is unable within the time allowed to deliver the estoppel certificates, survey or the

commiiment, Buyer may:

{1) terminate this contract and recelve the eamest money, less any independent consideration under
Paragraph 7B8(1), as lquidated damages and as Buyer's sole ramedy; or

(2) extend the time for performance up to 15 days and the closing will be extended as necesaary.

C. Except as provided In Paragraph 15B, if Seller fails 1o comply with this contract, Seller is in default and
Buyer may: :
(1) terminate this contract and racelve the eamast monay, less any indepandent consideration under
Paragraph 7B(1), as liquidated damages and as Buyer's sole remedy; or
(2) snforce specific performance, or seek such other rellef as may be provided by law, or both.

16. CASUALTY LOSS AND CONDEMNATION:

A. If any part of the Properly Is damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty afier the effective date,
Seller must restore the Property to its previous condition as soon as reasonably possible and not later
than the closing dale. If, withoul fault, Seller is unable to do so, Buyer may:

(1) lerminate this coniract and the earnest money, less any Independent consideration under
Paragraph 7B(1), will be refunded to Buyer;
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Commercial Conlract - Improved Property conearming 12180 N Mo Pac

(2) extend the time for performance up lo 15 days and closing will be extended as hecaessary; or

(3) accept at closing: (i) the Property in its damaged condition; (i) an assignment of any Insurance
proceeds Selier Is entilled to racelve along with the insurer's conssnt to the assignment; and (i) a
credit to the sales price in the amount of any unpaid deductible under the pollicy for the loss.

B. If before closing, condemnation proceedings are commenced against any part of the Property, Buyer
may:;

(1) terminate this contract by praviding written notice fo Seller within 15 days after Buyer is advised of
the condemnation proceedings and the eamest money, less any independent consideration under
Paragraph 78(1), will be refunded to Buyer; or ;

(2) eppear and defend the condemnation proceedings and any award will, at Buyer's election, belong
to: {a) Seller and the sales price will be reducad by the same amount; or (b) Buyer and the sales
price will not be raducad,

17. ATTORNEY'S FEES: If Buyer, Seller, any broker, or the title company Is a prevalling party in any legal
proceeding braught under or with relation to this contract or this transaction, such parly is entitled to
recover from the nan-prevalling parties all costs of such proceeding and reasonable altorey's faes. This
Paragraph 17 survives termination of this contract,

18, ESCROW:

A. Atclosing, the eamest money will be applied first to any cash down payment, then to Buyer's closing
costs, and any excess will be refunded o Buyer. If no closing occurs, the fitle company may require
payment of unpaid expenses incurred on behalf of the parties and a writien release of liabllity of the
tile company from all parties.

B. If one parly makes written demand for the eamnest maney, the tile company wlll give notice of the
demand by providing o the other party a copy of the demand. If the tille company does not recelve
written objection to the demand from the other party within 15 days afler the date the title company
sent the demand to the other party, the title company may disburse the eamast monsy o the party
meking demand, reduced by the amount of unpaid expenses incurred on behalf of the parly receiving
the eamest money and the title company may pay the same fo the eraditors.

C. The litle company will deduct any independent consideration under Paragraph 7B(1) before disbursing
any eamest money to Buyer and will pay the Indepandent conslderation to Seller.

D. Ifthe title company complies with this Paragraph 18, each party hereby releases the tile company from
all claims refated to the disbursal of the earnest moneay,

E. Naotices under this Paragraph 18 must be sent by certified mall, retum recelpt requested. Notlces to the
title company are effective upon receipt by the title company.

F. Any parly who wrongfully falls or refuses to sign a release accaptabie fo the title company within 7 days
after receipt of the request will be lisble o the other party for: (i} damages; (ii) the eamest money; (jii)
reasonable attomey’s fees; and (iv) all costs of suit.

G. (] Seller [JBuyer intend({s} lo complste this transaction as a part of an exchange of like-kind properties
in accordance with Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. All expsnses in
connection with the contemplated exchange will be paid by the exchanging party, The other party will
not incur any expense or liabliity with respect to the exchange. The parties agree fo cooperate fully and
In good faith to arrange and consummate the exchange so as to comply to the maximum extent
feasible with the provisions of Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. The aother provisions of this
contract will not be affecied in the event the contemplated exchange fails to occur.

{TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Initiglad for Identification by Selle@;; [, and Buyer JAM . Page 10 of 14
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Commerclal Coniract - improved Property conceming 12190 NMa Pac
19. MATERIAL FACTS: To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief: (Check only one box.)

[ A. Seller is not aware of any material defects to the Properly except as stated in the attached Commercial
Property Condition Statement {TAR-1 408),

[] B. Except as otherwise pravided in this coatract, Seller is not aware of:

(1) any subsurface: structures, pits, waste, springs, or improvaments;

(2) any pending ar threatened litigation, condemnation, or assessment affacting the Properly;

(3) any environmental hazards or conditions that malerially affect the Property;

(4) whether the Property Is or has been used for the storage or disposal of hazardous materials or
toxic waste, a dump site or landfill, or any underground tanks or containers;

(5) whether radon, asbsstos contalning malerials, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, lead-based
paint, toxic mold (to the extent that it adversely affects the health of ordinary occupants), or other
pollutants or contaminants of any nature now exist or ever axisted on the Property;

(6) any wetlands, as defined by faderat or state law or regulation, on the Property;

(7) any threatened or endangsred spacies or their habitat on the Property;

(8) any pressnt or past Infestation of wood-destroying insecls In the Property's Improvements;

(9) any cortemplated material changes to the Property or surrounding area that would materially and
detrimentally affect the ordinary use of the Property;

{10)any material physical defects In the improvemenis on the Property; or

{11)any condition on the Property that viclates any law or ordinanca.

{Describe any exceptions to (1)-(11)} in Paragraph 12 or an addendum.)

20. NOTICES: All notices betwean the parties under thls contract must be in writing and are effeclive when
hand-delivered, malled by certified mail return recaipt requested, or sent by facsimile transmission to the
parlies addresses or facsimile numbers slated in Paragraph 1. The parles will send coples of any notices
to the broker reprasenting the party to whom the notices are sent.

A. Seller also consents to recelve any notices by e-mall at Seller's e-mall address stated in Paragraph 1.
B. Buyer also consenis to raceive any notices by e-mall at Buyer's e-mail address stated in Paragraph 1.

"21. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: The parlies agree to negoliate in good faith in an effort to resolve any dispute
related to this contract that may arise. If the dispute cannot be resclvad by negoliation, the partias will
submit the dispute to mediation before resorting to arbitration or litigation and will equally share the costs
of a mutually acceplable medlator. This paragraph survives termination of this cantract This paragraph
doas not preclude a party from seeking equitable rellef from a court of competant jurisdiction.

22. AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES:

A. This contract Is binding on the parties, their heirs, executors, reprasentatives, successors, and
permitted assigns. This contract Is to be construed In accardance with the laws of the State of Texas. if
any term or condition of this contract shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
coniract shall ot be affecled thereby.

B. This contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and may not be changed except In writing.

C. Ifthis contract Is exacuted in a number of identical counterparts, each counterpart is an original and all
counterparts, colleclively, constitute one agreement,

D. Addenda which are part of this contract are: (Check all that apply.)
(1) Property Description Exhibit identified in Paragraph 2:
{2) Commercial Contract Condominium Addendum {TAR-1930);
(3) Commercial Contract Financing Addendum {TAR-1831);
(4} Commercial Property Condition Statement (T. AR-1408B);
(5) Commercial Contract Addendum for Special Pravisions {TAR-1940);

(TAR-1801) 1-1-16 lnlflaled for Idantfication by Selldﬂ_&. N and Buyer Ld‘ég! . Page 11 of 14

Produced with 2ipFormi by Hiplogls 18070 Fifeen Allls Rioad, Froser Mathican 43026 ST Mg




Cammercial Contract - Improved Praperty concerning 12150 N Mo Pac

(7 (8) Addendum for Seller's Disclosure of Information on Lead-Based Paint and Lead-Based Palnt
Hazards (TAR-1906);
(7) Notlice to Purchaser of Reat Property in a Waler District (MUD);
(8) Addendum for Coastal Area Property (TAR-1915);
(8) Addendum for Property Located Seaward of the Gulf Intracoastal Waterway (TAR-1918);
(10)information Abaut Brokerage Services (TAR-2501); and
(1)

{Nole: Counsel far the Texas Assoclation of REALTORS® (TAR) has detarminad that any of the foregoing addenda which ere
promulgated by the Texas Real Eslala Commission {FREC) or published by TAR sre appropriate for use with this form.}

E. Buyer XImay [Jmay not assign this contract, {-Buyer-assigra-this-sentrast-Buyer-will- be-ralieved,
- N E 1=1*~| & = ape 1 -y prmy Ry B R = e :',:_E‘;’ :".":.. T M 'E - - :_ = :J 0
ebilgatiens-underthic-eentraet. o AL NFEALLATE o euiIIVH| QovTOLLCOD R
Fou ;J[MT 1o
23. TIME: Time Is of the essence In this contract. The partles require strict compliance wi times for WA
performance, If the last day to perform under a provision of this contract falls on a Salurday, Sunday, or

legal holiday, the time for performance Is extended untll the end of the next day which Is not a Saturday,
Sunday, or legal hollday.

24. EFFECTIVE DATE: The effactive date of this contract for the purpose of performance of all obligations Is
the dats the title company receipts this contract after all parties execute this contract,

25. ADDITIONAL NOTICES:

A. Buyer should have an abstract covering the Properly examined by an attomey of Buyer's selection, or
Buyer should be furnished with or abtain a title policy.

B. ifthe Property Is sltuated In a ulllity or other statutorily created district providing water, sewer, drainage,
or flood control facilities and services, Chapter 49, Texas Water Code, requires Sefler to deliver and
Buyer to sign the statutory notice relating to the tax rate, bonded indebtedness, or standby fees of the
district before final exacution of this contract.

C. Notice Required by §13.257, Water Cods: “The real property, described below, that you are about to
purchase may be located In a cerificated water or sewer service area, which Is authorized by law to
provide waler or sewer service to the properiles In the certificated area. If your property (s located in a
certificated area there may be spacial costs or charges that you will ba required to pay before you can
recelve waler or sewer service. There may be a period raquired to construct lines or other facllities
necassary to provide water or sewer service to your property. You are advised to determine If the
property Is In a certificaled area and contact the utility service provider to datermine the cost thal you
will be required to pay and the perlod, if any, that is required to provide waler or sewer service to your
property. The undersigned purchaser heraby acknowledges receipt of the faregoing notice a! or before
the execulion of a binding contract for the purchase of the real property described in the notice or pt
closing of purchase of the rea! property.” The real property is described in Paragraph 2 of this conlract.

D. If the Property adjoins or shares a common boundary with the tidally influenced submerged lands of
ihe slate, §33.135, Texas Nalural Resources Code, requires a nolice regarding coastal area proparty
fo be Included as part of this contract.

E. If the Property is localed seaward of the Gulf Infracoastal Walerway, §61.025, Texas Natural

Resources Code, requires a notice regarding the seaward location of the Property to be included as
part of this contract.

F. If the Property is located outside the limlts of a municipality, the Property may now or later be included
in the extra-tenritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) of & municipality and may now or later be subject to annexation
by the munlcipality. Each municipality maintains a map that depicts its boundarles and ETJ. To

(TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Inltialed for (dentiflcation by smmﬂ@gﬁ& and Buyer . Page 12 of 14
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delermine if the Property is located within a municipality’s ETJ, Buyer should contact alf municipalities
located In tha general proximity of the Property for further information.

G. [f apariments or other residential uniis are on the Property and the units were built before 1978, faderal
law requires a lead-based paint and hazard disclosure siatement 1o be made part of this contracl.

H. Section 1958.154, Occupations Code requires Seller to provide Buyer a copy of any mold remadiation
certificate issued for the Property during the 5 years preceding the date the Seller sells the Properly,

I Brokers are not qualified to perform properly Inspecilons, surveys, engineering studles, environmental

' assessmenits, or inspactions to determine compliance with zoning, govemmenta! regulations, or laws.,
Buyer should seek experts to perform such services. Buyer should review local building codes,
ordinances and other applicable laws to determine their effect on the Property. Selection of experis,
Inspactors, and repairmen is the responsibility of Buyer and not the brokers. Brokers are not qualified
1o determine the credit warthiness of the parties,

J. NOTICE OF WATER LEVEL FLUCTUATIONS: If the Property adjoins an Impoundment of water,
Including & reservolr or lake, constructed and maintained under Chapter 11, Waler Code, that has a
storage capacily of at least 5,000 acre-feet at the impoundment's normal operating leval, Seller heraby
nolifies Buyer: “The water leve} of the impoundment of water adjoining the Property fluctuates for
varlous reasons, including as a result of: (1) an entity Iawfully exercising its right to use the water stored
in the impoundment; or (2) drought or flood conditions.”

26, CONTRACT AS OFFER: The execution of this contract by the first party constilutes an offer to buy or sejl
the Praperty. Unless the other party accepts the offer by 6:00 p.m., In the time zone in which the Property
Is located, on _December 11, 2017, the offer will lapse and becoma null and void,

READ THIS CONTRACT CAREFULLY. The brokers and agents make no representation or
recommendation as to the legal sufficiency, lagal effect, or tax consequences of this document or
transaction. CONSULT your attorney BEFORE signing.

Foundation Communities, Inc. (a Texas Non-Profit

Seller: Robart A & Vickia Chaffes Buyer:Gorporation)

By: —Wzﬁm P
By {signatufe)* .

Prinled Name:

Printed Name: (A)g Fad.
Tile: Title: X0 R bt
By: - By:
By (signature): ~ \ ¢ L By (slgnaturs).
Printad Name: _\/ \¢_Xe G\~ SRa O Printad Name:
Tie: O vone ™ Title:
{TAR-1801) 1-1-18 Page 130l 14
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AGREEMENT BETWEEN BROKERS
(use only if Paragraph 88(1) Is effsctive)

Principal Broker agrees to pay {Cooperating Broker) a
fee when the Principal Broker's fee is received. The fee to be paid o Cooperating Broker will be:

ar

% of the sales price, or

% of the Principal Broker's fae,

The title company is authorized and directed to pay Cooperating Broker from Principal Broker's fee at closing.

This Agrasment Between Brokers supersedaes any prior offers and agresments for compensation between
brokers,

Principai Broker: Cooperaling Broker;
By: By
ATTORNEYS
Seller's atlnmayﬂ) Ve J. QW-\C’\“\ Buyar's allomey: A. Rick Hightowsr ILM —
&0
Addness: "ig2. B.lo Grapde SFhreet Address:
Bonsaiv  TTEXAS 878y Austin ™ 78748

Phone &Fax:_Sa2  19¢-<1\4C Phons & Fax: {512)480-8882
Emal: ol ik @ < frﬂﬁ‘jorc’mn- C oM E-mail: ickarhtexan.com
Seller's altomey requests capies of documents, Buyer's aliorney requests copies of documents,
notices, and other Information: nofices, and other information:

the title company sends to Seller. X| the titte company sends to Buyer.
|| Buyer sends to Seller. X] Seller sends to Buyer. |

ESCROW RECEIPT

The tile company acknowlodges recelpt of:

A. the contract on this day Décembey (3, 2017 (effective date); .

B. eamest maney in the amount of § 20,000 In the form of Wiye.

on .
. (U
Tite wmpany:%""‘f AL T O-O ﬁu.g"hh ,LL address: Q01 5. WoDdac. EXWUG\
) 1) O L)

By: N Phone & Fax: "5\7 11 47-97 30,617 - 417 -210)

Assigned fila number (GF#): E-mailwmww

(TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Page 14 of 14
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ADDENDUM
PROPERTY:

1) Speclal Provislons

In connsction therewith, subject to Sallar's prior approval which shall not be unreasonably
conditioned, withheld or delayed. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, Buyer shall
havs no obligation to purchase the Property, and no transfer of title to the Buyer may occur, unless
and until the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (the "Department”) has provided
Buyer and/or Seller with a written notification tha " i

(A) it has complated a faderally required environmental review and its request for release of faderal
funds has been approved and, subject to any other Contingencles in this Contract,

(i) the purchase may praceed, or

(i1} the purchase may proceed only If certain conditiong to address issues in the environmental
review shall be satisfied before or after the purchase of the property: or

B} it has determined that the purchase Is exem t from federal environmental review and a re uest

for release of funds Is not required. The Department shall use Its best efforts to conclude the
environmental review of the property expaditiously.

Dae: |2,/ ( | ':J Dale: {2 }?' , l?

W%?._i . Z /‘L } zf[h At A~
ignafure Signature

pate: __(3-)(, 2 )—(’ Dale:
Ny I
Signatura S Signature
Addendum
The Whiifleld Comprny, 1381 3 Caplta) of Trznp My, Sig A-10) Axoia, TX TH70L Phane: 3124709010 Far S1L4L3ITY 13990 N Mopas
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COMMERCIAL LEASE ADDENDUM FOR CONTINGENT
TERMINATION

ADDENDUM TO THE COMMERCIAL LEASE
BETWEEN THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES
CONCERNING THE LEAST PREMISES AT 12190 N.
MOPAC EXPW, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78757

Landlord: Robert Chaffee & Vickie Chaffee
Tenant: Late European, LLC

A. Tenant Agrees to the following:

(1). Tenant agrees that Landlord can Terminate the Lease upon
30 days written notice without compensation or payment to
Tenant.

(2). Tenant agrees that the consideration for this agreement is
the release from the obligations under the lease for any rents due
after the date of the termination of this lease.

(3). Tenant agrees that this Agreement does not release it from
any of the payments and obligations under the lease. These will
continue until fully paid, including interest and penalties.

Landlord: Robert A. and Vickie Chaffee Tenant: Late
European, LLC

By: Robert Chaffee \ By: Steve Latej—-
Signature: * M C—ﬁhc///,.-——— Signature: U

Printed Name: RoBERT Chattee PrintedName: c¢7r) ¢ LITE
Title: o wac Title: Pﬁlfigmﬁm

By: Vickie Chaffee
Signature: ARG
Printed Name: \( \¢ \\e_ c%:cc@l—eq,

Title: AW




<

TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®
COMMERCIAL CONTRACT AMENDMENT

mwmmmmmmmmwmmmmw mmmtsnmwnmm.
wmmummnmu

AMENDMENT TO COMMERGCIAL CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNDERSIGNED BUYER AND SELLER
CONCERNING THE PROPERTY AT

12190 N Mo Pac

Effective December 12, 2017 » Seller and Buyer amend the contract as follows: (Check alf applicable
boxes,)

X A Sales Price: The sales price in Paragraph 3 of the contract is changed to;

Cash portion payable by Buyer at closing. . ... .. OOy P i $ 2,600,000.00

Sum of all financing described In thecontract. ..................... .. $

Sales price (sum of cash portion and sum of al| financing).............. $ 2,800,000.00
e =L T o RO s T B

(] B. Property Description: The Proparty's lagal description in Paragraph 2A of the contraci is changed to;

| C. Repalrs: Buyer accepls the Property in its present condition except that Sefler, at Seller's expense, will
complete the following before closing:

{TAR-1832) 1-26-10 Inialed for Identification by Seter 3P VO  ana Buyar:m. s Page 1of2
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Amendment to Commercial Contract oun:emlng'iﬁmmm_

D D. m@[ﬂy_&m For nominal conslderation, the recelpt of which Selier acknowledges,
and the consideration described under (1) or (2) below, if any, Buyer’s right to terminate under
Paragraph 78 of ths contract Is extended until 11:59 p.m. on

1 (1) T™he Independent consideration for Buyer's right to terminate that will be deductad from the eamest
money if Buyer lerminates the contract under Paragraph 7B(1) Is increased to a total amount of
. {Insert an amount greater than the amount in Paragraph 78(1) of the contract.)

[7] (2) Buyer has paid Seller additional consideration of $ for the extension. This
additional consideration || will (] will not be credited i the sales price upon the closing of the sale.

(1 E. Closing: The closing date in Paragraph 10A of the conlract is changed 1o

[]F Expensas: At closing Seller wili pay the first § of Buyer's expenses under
Paragraph 13 of the contract.

[l e Waiver of Right to Tenminate: Upon final acceptance of this Amendment, Buyer walves the right ta
terminate under Paragraph 7B of the contract,

[] H. Other Modlfications;
Seller: Buyer: LY X _ \
By: By:
By (signature) # By (signature):
Printed Name:; ¥ Printed Name:
Title: _ewney Title: EXPruatue Dirr
By: [y By:
By (signatura): {\c\ By (signature):
Printed Name: < <. Printed Name:
Title: Hwdryve Title:
({TAR-1932) 1.26-10 Pags 2 of 2
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5. EARNEST MONEY:
A. Not later than 3 days after the effective date, Buyer must deposk $ $20,000.00 as earmes{ money

with a (ite company)
at 901 S Mopac Ste 3-100 Austin, TX 78748 {(2ddrass) Shawna Fletcher (closer).

If Buyer fails to timely deposit the eamest money, Seller may terminate this contract or exercise any of

Seller's other remedies under Paragraph 15 by providing written notice to Buyer before Buyer deposits
the eamest money.

B. Buyer will deposit an additional amount of $ with the title company to be made
part of the eamest money on or befora:
{H days after Buyer's right to terminate under Paragraph 7B expires; or
@ .
Buyer will ba In default if Buyer fails to deposit the additonal amount required by this Paragraph 58
within 3 days after Seller notifies Buyer that Buyer has not timely deposited the addifional amount.

C. Buyer may instruct the title company to deposit the earmest money in an Interest-bearing account at a
federally insured financial insfitution and lo credit any interest to Buyer.

6. TITLE POLICY, SURVEY, AND UCC SEARCH:
A. Titis Poligy:

(1} Selier, at Seller's expense, will furnish Buyer an Owner's Policy of Title Insurance {the title policy)
issued by any underwriter of the file company in the amount of the sales price, dated at or afier
closing, Insuring Buyer against loss under the title palicy, subject only fo:

(a) those title exceptions permitted by this contract or as may be approved by Buyer in writing; and

(b} the standard printed exceplions contained in the promulgated form of title policy unless this
contract provides otherwise.

(2) The standard printed excepfion as o discrepancies, confliets, or shorlages in area and boundary
lines, or any encroachments or protrusions, or any overlapping improvements:

(a) will not be amended or deleted from the title policy.

X| (b) will be amended to read "shortages in areas” at the expense of XlBuyer []sefler.

(3) Within _30__ days after the effective date, Seller will furnish Buyer a commitment for title Insurance
(the commitment) including legible coples of recorded documents evidencing title exceplions, Seller

authorizes the title campany to deliver the commitment and related documents to Buyer at Buyer's
addrass,

(TAR-1801} 1-1-18 Intisled for Identification by SeuerDKE_J. CY Cana Buyer WA\ Paga 2 of 14
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B. Survey: Within ___60 _ days afler the effective date:

[ﬂ {1) Buyer will obtaln a survey of the Property at Buyer's expense and deliver a copy of the survey to
Seller. The survey must be made in accordance with the: (i) ALTA/ACSM Land Title Survey

standards, or (i) Texas Sociely of Professional Surveyors' standards for a Calegory 1A survey
under the appropriate condition. ~finsert

D {2) Seller, at Seller's expense, will fumnish Buyer a survey of the Proparty dated after the effective date.
The strvey must be made in accordance with the: (i) ALTAJACSM Land Title Survey standards, or
(i) Texas Sociely of Professional Surveyors' standards for a Catsgory 1A survey under the
appropriate condition.

at closing, if closing occurs.

C. UGG Searoh:

gL 8 Ublections ta tha Com mitmen VY, SRf-Oo-Nanran:

(1) Within __30 _ days afier Buyer recelves the commitment, coples of the documants evidencing the
tile exceptions, any required survey, and any required UCC search, Buyer may object to matters
disclosed in the itemns if: (2) the matiers disclnsed are & restriction upon the Praperty or constitute a
defect or encumbrance to title to the real or personal property described in Paragraph 2 other than
those permitted by this contract or fiens that Seller will satisfy at closing or Buyar will assume at
closing; or (b) the items show that any part of the Property lies in a special floed hazard area (an
“A” or V" zone as defined by FEMA). If Paragraph 6B(1) applies, Buyer Is deemed to receive tha

survey on the eariter of: (1) the date Buyer actually recaives the survey; or (il) the deadline specified
in Paragraph 68. .

(2) Seller may, but is not obligated to, cure Buyer's timaly objections' within 15 days afier Seller
receives the objections. The closing date will be exiended as necessary to provide such time to

cure the objections. if Buyer terminates, the earest mone » less any Independent canslderation
under Paragraph 78(1), will be refunded to Buyer.

(3) Buyer's fallure to timely oblect or terminate under this Paragraph 6D Is a walver of Buyer's right to
object except that Buyer will not walve the requirements In Scheduls C of the commitment.

(TAR-1801) 1118 intiated for Identiication by Seter KAy, £}y and Buyer YN, Page 3 of 14
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Commercial Contract - Improvad Property conceming 12207 Watars Park Bd
7. PROPERTY CONDITION:

A. Present Condition: Buyer accepts the Property in Its present condition excepl that Seller, at Seller's
expense, will complete the following before closing:

B. Esasibility Period: Buyer may terminate this contract for any reason witkin- by March 1. 2M8-days after the
efiective date (feasibility periad) by providing Sefier writtsn notice of termination. (Chsck only one box.)

Dd (0 Buyer terminates under this Paragraph 7B, the eamest money will be refunded to Buyer less
$ 100.00 that Seller will retain as independent consideration: for Buyer's unrestricted
right to terminate. Buyer has tendered the independent consideration to Seller upon payment of the
amount specified in Paragraph 5A to the title company. The independent consideration Is to be

credited to the sales price only upon closing of the sale,

a1 FTons

{7 (2) Not later than 3 days after the effective date, Buyer must pay Seller $ as
Independent consideration for Buyer's right to terminate by tendering such amount to Seler or
Seller's agent. If Buyer terminates under this Paragraph 7B, the eamest money Wil be refunded to
Buyer and Seller will retain the independent consideration. The independent consideration will be
credited fo the sales price only upon closing of the sale. i

[y il L EH

=21081531)

(1) During the feasibliity period, Buyer, at Buyer's expense, may complete or cause to be completad

any and all inspactions, studies, or assessments of the Property (including all Improvements and
fixtures) desired by Buyer,

(2) Seller, at Seller's expense, will tum on all utities necessary for Buyer to make Inspections, studies,
or assessments,

(3) Buyer must
(a) employ only trained and qualified Inspectors and assessors;
(b} notify Seller, in advance, of when the inspectors or assessors will be on the Property;
(c) abide by any reasonable entry rules or requirements of Seller:
(d) notinterfera with existing operations or occupants of the Property; and
(e) restore the Property to fts original condition if altered due to inspections, studies, or
assessments that Buyer completes or causes to be completed. '

(4) Excepl for those matters that arise from the negligence of Seller or Seliers agents, Buyer is
responsible for any claim, Hability, encumbrance, cause of action, and expense resulling from
Buyer's inspections, studies, or assessments, including any property damage or personal injury.
Buyer will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Seller and Seller's agents against any claim

involving a matter for which Buyer is responsible under this paragraph. This paragraph survives
{ermination of this contract.

D. Propery Information:

(1) mmntemmm: Within 30 __ days after the effective date, Seller will deliver to
Buyer: (Check all that apply.)

(TAR-1801) 1-1-18 Inltigted for Identification by Sellerw& ,co-)band Euyarm. Page 4 of 14
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Commercial Contract - Improved Property concaming

12207 Watees Park Rd
(a) a cument rent roli of all leases affecting the Property certified by Seller as true and toact,
(b) coples of all current laases pertaining ta the Property, Ineluding any modifications, supplements,
oramendments to the leases;
{c) a current inventory of ali personal properly to be conveyed under this contract and coples of
any leases for such personal property; :
(] (d) copies of alf notes and deeds of trust against the Property that Buyer will assume or that Seller
will not pay in full on or before closing; :
1 (e) copies of all cument service, maintenance, and management agresments relating to the
ownership and opsration of the Property;
(0 copies of current ulility capacity letters from the Property’s water and sewer service provider;
(9) copies of all current warranties and guaranties relating to all or part of the Property;
(h) copies of fire, hazard, fiabillty, and other insurance policies that currently relate to the Property;
() coples of all leasing or commission agreements that currently relate 1o the tenants of all or part
of the Property;
(0 acopy of the “as-built" plans and specifications and plat of the Propery;
(K) coples of all invaices for utilities and repairs incurred by Seller for the Property in the 24 months
immediately preceding the effective date; :
O a copy of Seller's income and expense statement for the Propesty from”

[}
3 (m)copies of al previous environmental assessments, geotechnical reperts, siudies, or analyses
made an or relating to the Property; )
H (n) real & personal properly tax statements for the Property for the previous 2 calendar years; and
(o) Tenant reconciliation statements Including, operating expenses, Insurance and taxes for tha
Properly from to ;and

(r) Phase 1 Environmental Study (if available)

(2) Rﬂum_nLEmpgmuntqnnﬂm: If this contract terminates for any reason, Buyaer will, not later than
10 days after the termination date: (Check aff that apply.)
(X! (a) retum to Seller all those items deseribed in Paragraph 7D(1) that Seller dalivared to Buyer in
other than an electronic format and alf copies that Buyer made of those items;
[] () delete or destroy all electronic varsions of those items described in Paragraph 7D(1) that Seller
delivered to Buyer or Buyer copled; and ;
[J () deliver copies of all inspection and =ssessment reports related to the Property that Buyer
completed or caused to be completed,
This Paragraph 7D(2) survives termination of this contract.

E.' Contracts Affecting Qperations: Until closing, Sefler: (1) will operate the Property In the same manner
es on the effective dale under reasonably prudent business standards; and (2) will not transfer or
dispose of any part of the Property, any Interest or right In the Property, or any of the personal property
or other items deseribed In Paragraph 28 or sold under this contract, After the feasibility period ends,
Seller may not enter Inio, amend, or terminate any other contract that affacts the operalions of the
Property without Buyer's written epproval,

8. LEASES:

A. Each wrilten lease Seller Is to assign te Buyer under this contract must be In full force end effect
according to its terms. Seller may not enter into any new lease, falf to comply with any existing laase,
or make any amendment or modification o any existing lease without Buyer's written consent. Seller
must disclose, In writing, if any of the following exist at the time Saller provides ths leases to the Buyer
or subsequently occur before closing:

(1) any fallure by Seller to comply with Seller's obfigations under the leases;

{2) ang circumstances under any lease that entitle the tenant to terminate the leass or seck any offeets
or damages; .

({TAR-1801) 1-1.16 Initisled fof identification by Sal!nr%, L.)Band Buyarm. —_ Page 5 of 14
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Commercial Contract - Improved Property concerning 12207 Watars Park Rd
(3) any non-occupancy of the leased premises by a tenant;
(4) any advance sums pald by a tenant under any lease;

(5) any concesslons, bonuses, free rents, rebates, brokerage commissions, or other matters that affect
any lease; and

{6) any amounts payable under the leases that have been assigned or encumbered, except as security
for loan(s) assumed or taken subject to under this contract,

certificates ign ot earlier than | January 1, 201 ’ by eaeh16 pace
\2‘5 in the Proparty. The estoppet certificales must Include the cedifications containad in the current version
S"(b of TAR Form 1838 - Commercial Tenant Est CSftiicate and any additiona) information reguested

(/ by a third pary lsnder provi rl‘é'm'g'ﬁ'?:i?r Paragraph 4 if the third party lander requests such
\‘N\ additional Inf: east 10 days prior to the earliest date that Seller may daliver the signed
9. BROKERS:
A. The brokers to this sale are:

Prinelpal Broker: Mﬂhﬁﬂﬂﬁ_ Cooparating Broker:

Company

Agent Gall Whitfield Agent

Address: 1101 8 Capltal of Texas Hwy Ste A101 Addrass;

Phione & Fax: (512)478.5300 Phone & Fax

E-meit gali@thewhitfieldeo.com E-mall

Licansa Ne.; 0316253 Licanse No.:

Princlpal Broker: (Check only one box.) Cooperating Broker represents Buyer.

| represents Seller only,
| | represents Buyer anly.
X! fsan intarmediary between Sefler and Buyer.

B. Eess: (Check only (1) or (2) below.)
(Complete the Agreement Between Brokers on page 14 only if {1) is selacted.)

[ (1) Selter wil pay Principal Broker the fee specified by separale written commission agreement
between Principal Broker and Selier, Principal Broker will pay Cooperating Broker the fee specified
in the Agreement Between Brokers found below the partles' signatures 1o this contract,

X (2) Atthe closing of this sale, Seller will pay:

Principal Broker a totz! cash fee of: Coaperating Broker a total cash fea of:

3.000 _ % of the sales price. % of the sales price.

] .

The cash fees will be paid in Travis | County, Texas. Seller authorizes

the title company to pay the brokers from the Seller's praceeds at closing.

NOTICE: Chapler 62, Texas Proparty Code, authorizes a broker to secure an eamed commlssion
with a lien against the Property.
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Commerclal Conbract - Improvad Property conceming 12207 Watnrs Park Rd

C. The parties may not amend this Paragraph 9 without the written consent of the brokers affected by the

amendment. . .
10. CLOSING:

A. The date of the closing of the sala {clasing date) will be on or before the later of:

(1) days after the expiration of the feasibility period.
August 31, 2018 (specific date). '
(2) 7 days after objections made under Paragraph 6D have been cured or walved.

B. If either party fafls to close by the closing date, the non-defaulting party may exercise the remediss in
Paragraph 15. _ 'DKQ’ U‘Sb .

C. Atclosing, Seller will execute and deliver io Buyer, at Seller's expense, Bﬁ genaralE/spaciaI waranty
deed. The deed must include a vendor's lien if any part of the sajes price Is financed. The deed must
convey good and Indefeasible #itle to the Property and show no exceptions other than those permitted
under Paragraph 6 or bthe_r provisions of this contract. Seller must convey the Property:

(1) with no liens, assessments, or Uniform Commercial Code or other securily interests against the
Property which will not be salisfied out of the sales prics, unless sscuring loans Buyer assumes:

(2) without any assumed loans in default; and = .

(3) with no persons in possession of any part of the Property as lessees, tenants at sufferance, or
trespassers except tenants under the written leases assigned to Buyer under this contract.

D. Atclosing, Seller; at Seller's expense, will also deliver to Buyer:

(1) tax statements showing no delinquent taxes on the Property:

(2) a bl of sale with wamranties to title conveying title, free and clear of all liens, to any personal
property defined as part of the Property in Paragraph 2 or sold under this cantract;

(3) an assignment of all leases to or on the Property;

(4) to the extent that the following items are assignable, an assignment to Buyer of the foliowing items
as they refate to the Properly or its operations: .

(a) ¥censes and permits;
(b} maintenance, management, and other contracts; and
(c) warranties and guaranties;

(5) a rent roll current on the day of the closing certified by Seller as true and correct:

(6) evidence that the person execuling this contract is legally capable and authorized to bind Seller:

(7) an affidavit acceptable fo the tille company stating that Seller is not foreign person or, If Seller is
a forelgn person, a written authorization for the titte company to: (i) withhold from Seller's proceeds
an amount sufficient to comply applicable tax law; and (i) deliver the amount to the Intemal
Revenue Service together with appropriate tax forms; and

(8) any notices, statements, certificates, affidavits, releases, and other documents required by this
contract, the commitment, or law necessary for the closing of the sale and the Issuance of the title
policy, all of which must be completed and executed by Seller as necessary, -

E. At closing, Buyer will:

(1) pay the sales price in good funds acceptable to the title company;

(2) deliver evidence that tha person executing this contract is legally capable and authorized to bind
Buyer; :

(3) slgn and send to each tenant in the Property a written statemnent that:
{a) acknowledges Buyer has received and Is responsible for the tenant's security deposit, and
(b) specifies the exact dollar amount of the seculw deposit:

(4} sign an assumption of all leases then in effact; a

{5) execute and defiver any notices, statements, certificales, or other documents required by this
contract or law necessary to close the sale,

(TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Initialed wmﬁﬁuuonwsm%&ﬂ}m Buysr iEE; Page 7 of 14
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Commercial Contract - improved Property conceming 12207 Waters Pack B

F. Unless tha parties agree otherwise, the closing documents will be as found In the basic forms in the
current edition of the State Bar of Texas Real Estate Forms Manual without any additional clauses,

11. POSSESSION: Seller will deliver possession of the Property to Buyer upon closing and funding of this sale
in its present condition with any repairs Seller is abligated 1o complete under this contract, ordinary wear
and tear excepted, Any possession by Buyer before closing or by Seller after closing that Is not authorized
by a separate writlten lease agreement Is a landlord-tenant at sufferance relationship between the parties.

12. SPECIAL PROVISIONS: The follawing special provisions apply and will control in the event of a conflict
with other provisions of this contract. (If special provisions are contained in an Addendum, identify the
Addendum here and reference the Addendum in Paragraph 22D.)

Buyer at Buyara expense may obtain a Phase One Environmental Report. Seller wil! cooperate with
Buyer to fill out reports and allow access to the Property. Seller shall be allowed to Lease back the
Property for six {(6) months after clesing for $600 per month.

Project Entitlements. Selier hereby authorizes Buyer to, upon or after the Effective Date of the
Conlract, make application to any and all applicable governmentat entities and authorities
regulating development of the Property (the “Governmental Authorities™) for appraval of all permiis
hecessary fo construct and develop a multifamily housing project and relatad roadways, parking,
drainagefwater quallty facilities, utilities, infrastructure and amenities on the Property {the
“Project”), Including without limitation: (a) all appravals which are required for development of the
Project; and (b) all aita development permits, building permits and other approvals which are
required for the Project {collectively the “Project Entitlements”). However, Buyer shall have the

13. SALES EXPENSES:

A. Seller's Expenses: Seller will pay for the following at or before closing:

(1) releases of existing liens, other than those liens assumed by Buyer, including prepayment penalties
and recording fees;

(2) release of Seller's loan Fabllity, if applicable;

(3) tax statements or certificates:

(4) preparation of the deed and any bill of sale;

(5) one-half of any escrow fee:

(6) costs to record any documents 1o cure titie objections that Seller must cure; and
{7) other expenses that Seller will Pay under other pravisions of this coniract.

B. Buver's Expenses: Buyer will pay for the following at or before closing:
(1) allloan expenses and fees;

(2) preparation fees of any deed of trust;

(3) recording fees for the deed and any deed of trust;

(4) premlums for flood and hazard insurance as may be required by Buyer's lender;
(5) one-half of any escrow fee; and

(6) other expenses that Buyer will pay under other provisions of this contract.
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Commerciet Contract - Improved Propesty concerning 42207 Watara Park Rd
14. PRORATIONS:

A. Proratiops:

(1) Interest on any assumed loan, taxes, rents, and any expense reimbursements from tenants will be
prorated through the closing date,

(2) I the amount of ad valorem taxes for the year in which the sale closes js not available on the
closing date, taxes will he prorated on the basis of taxes assessed in the previous year. If the taxes
for the year in which the sale closas vary from the amount prorated at closing, the parties will adjust

the prorations when the tax statements for the year in which the sale closes become available. This

Paragraph 14A(2) survives closing. | !

(3) If Buyer assumes a ioan or Is taking the Praperty subjact to an existing llen, Seller will transfer all
reserve deposits held by the lender for tha payment of taxes, Insurance premiums, and other

charges fo Buyer at clesing and Buyer will reimburse such amounts fo Seller by an appropriate
adjustment al closing.

B. Rollback Taxes: if Seller's use or change in use of the Property bafore closing results in the
assessment of additional taxes, penalties, or Interest (assessments) for periods before closing, the
assessments will be tha obligation of Seller. If this sale or Buyers use of the Property afier closing
results in additional assassments for periods before closing, the assessments will be the obligation of
Buyer, This Paragraph 14B survives closing.

18. DEFAULT:

A. If Buyer falls to comply with this contract, Buyer Is in default and Seller, as Seller's sole remedy(les),
may terminate this cantract and recelve the earnest money, as fiquidated damages for Buyer's fallure
except for any damages resulting from Buyer's Inspections, studles or assessments in accordance with
Paragraph 7C(4) which Sallér may pursue, or
{Check if applicabls)

7 enforce specific performance, or seek such other ralief as may be provided by law.

B. If, without fault, Seller is unable within the time allowed to deliver the estoppel cedificates, survay or the
commitment, Buyer may: :
(1) terminate this contract and receive the earnast money, less any independent consideration under
Paragraph 78(1), as liquidated damages and as Buyer's sole remedy; or
(2) extend the time for performance up to 15 days and the closing will be extended as necessary,

C. Except as provided in Paragraph 158, if Saller fails to camiply with this contract, Seller is in dsfault and
Buyer may: - ' '
{1) terminate this contract and receive the eamest money, less any independent conslderation under
Paragraph 7B(1); as liquidated damages and as Buyer's sole remedy; or - -
(2) enforce specific performance, or seek such other relief as may be provided by law, or both.

16. CASUALTY LOSS AND CONDEMNATION:

A. If any part of the Property Is damaged or destroyed by fire or other casually after the effective date,
Seller must restore the Property to its previous condition as Soon as reasonably possible and not Jater
than the closing date. If, without fault, Seller Is unable to do so, Buyer may:

(1) terminate thls contract and the eamest money, less any independent conslderation under
Paragraph 78(1), will be refunded to Buyer;
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(2) extend the time for performance up to 15 days and closing wil be extended as necessary; or

(3) accept at closing: () the Propetty In its damaged condition; (%} an assignment of any insurance
proceeds Seller is entitled to receive along with the insurer's consant o the assignment; and (ili) a
credit to the sales price in the amount of any unpaid deductible under the policy for the loss.

8. '!f before closing, condemnation proceadings are commenced against any part of the Property, Buyer
may:

(1) terminate this contract by praviding written notice to Seller within 15 days after Buyer is advised of
the condemnation proceedings and the eamest money, less any Independent consideration under
Paragraph 7B(1), will be refunded to Buyer; or

(2) appear and defend the condemnation proceedings and any award will, at Buyer's election, belong

to: (a) Seller and the sales price will be reduced by the same amount; or (b} Buyer and the sales
price will not be reduced.

17. ATTORNEY'S FEES: If Buyer, Seller, any broker, or the title company Is a pravailing party in any legal
proceeding brought under or with relation to this contract or this transaction, such pary Is enfitled to
recover from the non-prevailing parties all costs of such proceeding and reasonable altorney's fees. This
Paragraph 17 survives termination of this contract.

18. ESCROW:

A. At dosing, the earnest money will be applied first to any cash down payment, then to Buyer's closing,
costs, and any excess will be refunded to Buyer. If no closing occurs, the title company may require

payment of unpaid expenses incurred on behalf of the parties and a writien release of liability of the
title company from all parties.

B. If one party makes written demand for the earnest money, the fitle company will give nofice of the
demand by providing to the other parly a copy of the demand. If the tifle company does nol receive
written objection to the demand from the other parly within 15 days after the date the title company
sent the demand to the other party, the fitle company may disburse the earnest money to the party
making demand, reduced by the amount of unpald expenses incurred on behalf of the party receiving
the eamest money and the title company may pay the same to the creditors,

C. The title company will deduct any independent consideration under Paragraph 7B(1) before disbursing
any eamest money to Buyer and will pay the independent conslideration to Seller.

D. If the title company complies with this Paragraph 18, each party hereby releases the tlle company fram
2ll claims related to the disbursal of the eamest money.

E. Notices under this Paragraph 18 must be sent by certified mall, return receipt requesled. Notices to the
title company are effective upon raceipt by the title company.

F. Any party who wrongfully falls or refuses to sign a release acceptabls to the title company within 7 days
after recelpt of the request will be liable to the other party for: (i) damages; (i) the eamest money; (i)
reasonable attomey's fees; and (iv) all casts of suit.

G. ESaller D Buyer intend(s) to complete this transaction as a part of an exchange of like-kind properties
in accordance with Section 1031 of the [nternal Revenue Code, as amended. All expenses in
connection with the contemplated exchange will be paid by the exchanging party. The other party will
not incur any expense or liability with respect to the exchange. The parties agree to cooperate fuliy and
in good faith to amange and consummate the &xchange so as to comply to the maximum extent
feasible with the provislons of Section 1031 of the Intemal Revenue Code, The other provisians of this
contract will not be affected In the event the contemplated exchange falls 1o cecur.
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19. MATERIAL FACTS: To the best of Seller's knowledge and befief, (Check only one box.)

ﬂ A. Seller Is not aware of any material defects[t_o the P erty pxcept-as-slataddatha-attachad Commarcial
s -.._...;.m.‘1‘,];:_\‘_."1_—,21.;-:-{_}.‘_::_'____ e D)z& {)'D w
[J B. Except as otherwise provided in this contract, Seller is notEware of:

(1) any subsurface: structures, pits, wasle, springs, or improvements;

{2} any pending or threatened litigation, condemnation, or assessment affecting the Property;

(3) any environmental hazards or conditions that materially affect the Property;

(4) whether the Property is or has been used for the storage or disposal of hazardous materials or
toxic waste, a dump site or landfill, or any underground tanks or containers;

(5) whether radon, asbestos containing materlals, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, lead-based
paint, toxic mold (to the extent that it adversely affects the health of ordinary occupanis), or other
pollutants or contaminants of any nature now exist or ever existed an the Property;

{6) any wetlands, as defined by federal or state law or regulation, on tha Property;

(7) any threatened or andangered spacles or their habitat on the Property;

- (B) any present or past Infastation of woad-dastroying insecls in the Property's improvements;

(9) any contemplaled material changes to the Property or sumounding area that would materially and
detrimentally affect the ordinary use of the Property;

(10)any material physical defects in the improvements on the Property; or

{11)any condition on the Property that violates any law or ordinance,

{Doscribe any excsptions to (1)-(11) In Paragraph 12 or an addendum.)

20. NOTICES: All nofices between the parties under this contract must be in writing and are effoctive when
hand-delivered, malled by certified mall return receipt requested, or sent by facsimile transmission to the
parties addresses or facsimile numbers staled in Paragraph 1. The parties will send copies of any notices
to the broker representing the party to whom the notices are sent.

A. Sellsr also consents ta recelve any notices by e-mall at Seller's e-mail address stated In Paragraph 1,
B.. Buyer also consents to recelve any natices by e-mall at Buyer's e-mall addrass stated In Paragraph 1.

21. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: The parties agree to negotiate In good faith in an effort to resolve any dispute
related to this contract that may arise. If the dispuie cannot be resolved by negotiation, the parties wili
submit the dispute to madiation before resorting to arbitration or litigation and will equally share the costs
of a mutually acceptable mediator. This paragraph survives termination of this contract. This paragraph
does not preclude a party from sesking equitable relief from a court of competent Jurisdiction.

22, AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES:

A. This contract Is binding on the parties, thelr heirs, executors, representatives, successors, and
permitted aesigns. This contract is to be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, If
any term or candition of this contract shall be held to be Invalld or unenforceable, the remalinder of this
contract shall not be affected thereby. -

B. . This contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and may not be changed except in writing,

C. If this contract Is executed In a number of identical counterpasts, each counterpart Is an original and all
counterparts, collectively, constitute one agreement.

D. Addenda which are part of this contract are: {Check all that apply.)
X] (1) Property Description Exhibit Identified in Paragraph 2:

| (2) Commerclal Gontract Condominium Addendum (TAR-1930);
(3) Commerclal Contract Financing Addendum {TAR-1931);

(4) Commerclal Properly Condition Statement (TAR-1408);

(5) Commercial Contract Addendum for Special Provisions (TAR-1940);
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Commercial Contract - Improved Property concerning 12207 Waterm Park R
] (6) Addendum for Seller's Disclosure of Information on Lead-Based Paint and Lead-Based Paint
Hazards (TAR-1906);
(7) Notica to Purchaser of Real Property in a Water District (MUDY;
{8) Addendum for Coastal Area Properly (TAR-191 5);

(9) Addendum for Properly Located Seaward of the Guif Intracoastat Waterway (TAR-1916);
(10)information About Brokerage Services (T, AR-2501); and
(1)

(Nola: Counssl for the Texas Association of REALTORS® (TAR) has determined that any of the foragoing addenda which are
promuigated by the Taxas Real Estate Commission (TREC) or published by TAR are appropriate for us with this form.)

E. Buyer [XImay [Imay not assign this contract. If Buyer assigns this contract, Buyer will be relieved

of any future Hability under this contract only if the assignee assumes, in wriling, all of Buyers
obligations under this contract.

23. TIME: Time Is- of the essence In this contract. The parties requira stict compkance with the times for
perfermance. If the last day to perform under a provision of this contract falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or

legal holiday, the time for performance Is extended until the end of the next day which Is not a Saturday,
Sunday, or legal holiday.

24. EFFECTIVE DATE: The effactive date of this contract for the purpose of performance of all obligations is
the date the fitle company receipls this contract after all parties execute this contract,

25. ADDITIONAL NOTICES:

A. Buyer should have an abstract covering the Property examined by an atterney of Buyer's selection, or
Buyer should be furnished with or obtain a title policy.

B. Ifthe Property is situated in a utllity or other statutorily created district providing water, sewer, drainage,
or fioed control facilities and services, Chapter 49, Texas Water Code, requires Seller to deliver and

Buyer to sign the statutory notice relating to the tax rate, bonded indebtedness, or standby fees of the
district before final execution of this contract.

C. Nolice Required by §13.257, Water Code: “The reat Property, described below, that you ara about to
purchase may be localed in a certificated water or sewer service area, which is authorized by law to
provide water or sewer service to the properties in the certificated area, if your property Is located in a
certificated area there may be special costs ar charges that you will be required to pay before you can
receive water or sewer service. There may be a period required to construct fines or other facilitles

will be required to pay and the periad, if any, that is required fo provide water or sewer sefvice fo your
Property. The undersigned purchaser hereby acknowledges receipt of the foregoing notice at or bafore
the execution of a binding contract for the purchase of the real property described in the nofice or at
closing of purchase of the real Property.” The real property is described in Paragraph 2 of this contract,

If the Property adjoins or shares a commen boundary with the tidally influenced submerged lands of
the state, §33.135, Texas Natural Resources Code, requires a notice regarding coastal area property
lo be included as part of this contract,

E. If the Property is located seaward of the Gulf Intracoastal Waterway, §61.025, Texas Natural

Resources Code, requires 2 notice regarding the seaward location of the Property to be included as
part of this contract.

F. If the Property is located autside the firmfis of a municipality, the Property may now or later be included
in the extra-teritonal jurisdiction (ETJ) of a municipality and may now or later be subject to annexation
by the municipality. Each municipality maintains a map that depicts its boundaries and ETJ, To

(TAR-1801) 1-1-18 Inltialed for ldanﬁﬁmonbymermmd Buyer A\ Pags 12 of 14
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Commercial Contract - Improved Property conceming

12207 Waters Park Rl

datermine if the Property is located within a municipality's ETJ, Buyaer should contact all munlélpalitles
located in the general proximity of the Property for further information.

G. If apartments or other residential units are on the Property and the units were bullt befora 1978, federal
law requires a lead-based paint and hazard disclosure statement to ba made part of this contract.

H. Section 1958.154, Occupations Code requires Seller to provide Buyer a copy of any mold mmediéﬁon
certificate issued for the Property during the 5 years preceding the date the Saller sells the Property.

I Brokers are nat qualified to perform property inspections, surveys, engineering studies, environmental
assessments, or inspections to determine compliance with zoning, govemnmental regulations, or laws.
Buyer should sesk experis to perform such services. Buyer should review local building codes,

L NOTICE OF WATER LEVEL FLUCTUATIONS: If the Property adjoins an impoundment of water,
including a reservolr or lake, constructed and maintained under Chapter 11, Water Code, that has a
storage capacity of at least 5,000 acre-feet at the impoundment's normal operating level, Seller heraby

: notifies Buyer. "The water level of the impoundment of water adjoining the Property fluctuates for

various reasons, including as a result of: (1) an entity lawfully exeraislng its right to use the water stored
in the Impoundment; or (2) drought or floed conditions.”

26. CONTRACT AS OFFER: The execution of this contract by the first party constitutes an offer to buy or sell
the Property. Unless the other party accapis the offer by 5:00 p.m., in the time zone in which the Property

Venn 7

. o
T CAREFULLY.

g g_l;ep offer will lapse and become null and vold.
The "brokers and agents make no representation or

recommendation as to the legal sufficlency, legal effect, or tax consequences of this document or
transaction. CONSULT your attomey BEFORE signing.

Seller: Daniel K & Cathy J Baird_

Foundation Communities, inc. (a Texas Non-Profit

Buyer:Corporation)

By {signatura:

Y

By: L, T
8y (signature); 2 e

Printed Nmsmgp___ Printad Name: @L@f&m

Titie: Tile: g, DNcP o~
By: -&ﬂ&!ﬁ;&gA&J By:

By (signature): . By (signature):

Prnled Nome: C. =TS Printed Name:

Title: : Title:
(TAR-1801) 1-1-16 Page 13 of 14
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Commercial Contract - Improvad Proparly conceming 12207 Watare Park Rd

AGREEMENT BETWEEN BROKERS
{use only if Paragraph 98(1} is effaclive)

Principal Broker agrees to pay

(Cooperafing Broker)

fee when the Principal Broker's foe Is receivad, Tha fee 1o be paid to Cooperating Brokes will be:
5

o or
% of the sales price, or

pay Cooperating Broker from Pri
any prior offers and agreements for compensation belween

% of the Principal Broker's fee.

The title company is autherized and directed to
This Agreement Between Brokers supersedes

ncipal Broker's fee at closing.

a

brokers.
Principal Broker Cooperating Broken
By By

ATTORNEYS
Sefier's atlorney: Buyer's attomey: A Rick Hightower
Address: Address: 3003 Bas Caves Rd $ta D-200

Austln X 78748

Phone & Fax Phone & Fax {5921480-8882
E-mail: E-mait dek@arhinxgs com

Seller's attorney requests coples of documeants,
notices, and other information:
the tile company sends to Seller.

Buyer's attorney requests copies of documents,
nofices, and other information:
the fitle company sends to Buyer.

Buyer sends to Seller. Seller sends to Buyer.
ESCROW RECEIPT

The title company acknowledpes recelpt of.

A. the contract on this day Novery [, 201 Hefective date);

B. earn“es:( r&n'c‘o;l\ey In the amount of 3 Lp.000 in the form of_QAZ44 49967

on Mo v
iy TITLE OF AUSTIN, LLC

Title company: Steaioue s Tiste, STRYART TITLE ’

By:

Assigned fils numbar {GF#%: l L‘ 6' Hrﬁ

JING THE-SUTTE-160 511-—53;2;‘-‘1L'Eifi’£)m)
#h ’ 21— -db

AU g
Ma St ter Qenoimrt com

E-mat £

{TAR-1801) 1-1-16
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ADDENDUM
PROPERTY:

1} Speclal Provisions
in connection ;herewl_tl_x, sublect to Seller's prior approval, which shall not be unreasonably
conditioned, withheld or delayed.

Date: _AJMEMQ/ !@;_Q—
Nl rim,

Slgnature Signature
Date; Octr ber 3/, 306)7 Date:
Signature Signature

T pe—— “—_%
Addendum

Tha Whitleld Compuny, 1015 Caplal o Texas Hwy, S A-10) Aarla, TX 75144 oo S1.47%.9%8 Fuc S13aax ey D8 Walm Park
Call Wikicleld Wm#mnm tmmul-mrmw.umm S0ww 7iol pofy enm



. ¢
TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®
COMMERCIAL CONTRACT AMENDMENT

LSE OF THIS FORW BY PEREOND WHOAYE NOT MEIAIERE OF THE TEXAS ASEOCIATION OF REALSDASS 1 HOF AUTHORIZED.
Olaras Asxucivion df ATAM YORSD, lne. 2310

AMENDMENT TO COMMERCIAL CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNDERSIGNED BUYER AND SELLER
CONCERNING THE PROPERTY AT

12207 Walters Park Rd

Effective {1 = ©1~QQV] | selier and Buyer amend the tontrac as follows: (Cheék all spplicable
hoxes.)

[J A. Sales Price: The sales prica In Paragraph 3 of the contraét is changed to:

Cash porlion payable by Buyeratclosing. .. _...._........oou0s0 VeedS
Sum of all financing descitbed inthe contract. ....vevvvevcenrneens..§
Seles price (sum of cash poriion and sum of all financing) ... ........... 3

] B, Propery Desgriptlon: The Property's legal description In Paragraph 2A of the confract is changed to:

|| C. Repaim: Buyer acespis the Properly in its present condilion ekcepl that Seller, al Seller's expense, will
complete the following before closing:

(TAR-1432) 1-28-10 Inktlaled for Identification by sm&?;_. f,_&- and Buyer M Page1of2
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Adnidriant 10 Commersal Cofitdds eoncemrng {2207 Waters Pack Rd

D. Exiension of Feasiity Preicd: For nomingl consideration, the receipt of which Seller acknowiedges.
and the consideration descnbed under (1) or [2) delow.  any. Buyers nght to terminate under
Paragraph 7B of the contract 5 extended until 1459 p.m, on

]

{1) Tae indegendent considerabon far Buyer's right to tesrminate that will be deducted from the earnest
money i Huyer taeminates the contract under Paragraph 78(1) s increased to g fotal amount of
S - {inserl an ameunt grealer than the amount in Paragraph 78(1} of he ¢ontract.j

L. {2) Buyer has paid Seller additional consideration of 5 for the extension. This
additional considaralion _ wil]_ will not be credited to the sales price upan the cipsing of the sale,

| E. Closing: The ciosing dale in Paragraph {0A of the conlraet & changed to

] F. Expsnses: At closing Seller will pay the first S of Buyer's expenses under
Paragraph 13 sf the contract.

| | G. Waiver of Right g Termingte: Upon final acceptange of this Amendment, Buyer waives the right 1o
termunate under Paragraph 7B of the contract.

}( H. Oiher Medificalions:
6. B. Survey- Buyer shall have 150 days from the efective date of the centract to obtaln @ new
survey. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Gontract. Buyer shall have no obligation to
purchase the Property, and no transier of title to the Buyer may sccur, uniess and until the
Texas Department of Housing and Comitininity Affairs (the "Departmant”} has provided Buyer
andfer Seller with a written natification that: (A) it has eamplated a federally required
erwironmental reviow and its request for relepse of federal funds has been approved aed,
subject 1o any other Contingencies in this Contrace, (i) the purchase may proceed, or {it) the
purghase moy proceet anly if cortaln conditions to addrass issues in the environmental review
shall be satisfied before or after the purcthase of the propernty: or {B) it bas determined that the
purchase is exempt fram federal environmental review and a retquest for release of funds is not
requirad. The Department shall use 1ts best efforts to concludo the environmentu! review of the
properny expaditiousty,

seier: Domet X & CG}B_EEC\' N T

By _ - s Y By i
By isigralure) By (signature): LL’A-“? L/! ELTTA b
Printad Name. Printed Name: e T2 IR AR Pl
Title: L.!,q Titte® B XEDLTINE DARIT ER,

By 8y x N T e i

y(agﬂaluf&)m W By {signature) P

. e

Frinted Name: %{# ;5: U~y cua-gg Printod Name:

Title. ___}_k} l{ﬁ _ . R Title: -

(TAR.13352] 1-26-19 Pogel ol
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TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®
COMMERCIAL CONTRACT AMENDMENT
2

AMENDMENT TO COMMERCIAL CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNDERSIGNED BUYER AND SELLER
CONCERNING THE PROPERTY AT

12207 Waters Park Rd

Effactive November 1. 2017 » Seller and Buyer amend the contract as follows: {Check sl applicabla
boxas.)

A. Sales Prica; The sales price in Paragraph 3 of the contract is changad lo:

Gashporﬁonpayablehyauyaralclmlng..........,.................S 1,660.000.00
Sum of all financing descrbed In tha contract. EERAS e e e n
Salas price (sum of cash portion and sum of all financing)......... 8000 1.880,000.00

{1 B. Progerv Descrptign: The Property’s egal deseription In Paragraph 2A of the contract [s changed to;

O c. Repals: Buyer accapls the Properly in its present condition except that Ssller, al Sellar's axpense, will

complela the foliowing befora closing:
(TAR-1532) 1-26-10 qummumwsmm{ﬁ .ﬁé&. aulﬂunruyi_' L. Page 102
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Mendmhcwnmlcomdmnm 12207 Watern PatkBd

[J D. Extension of Fanshiiky Pariod: For nominal conslderation, the recelpt of which Seller ackn

owladgas,
and the conslderation described under (1) or (2) below, i any, Buyars right to terminate undes
ParagmphTBofﬂlsmnhadlsa:dandad untll 11:69 p.m. on

7 (1) The independant consideration for Buyer's right io terminals that will be deductad from the esmast
money if Buyer tarminales tha contract undar Paragraph 78(1) Is Incraased to a folal amauat of
§ - (Insert an amount greater than the amount In Paragraph 78(1) of the coniract,)

[ (2) Buyer has pald Selter sdditional conslderation of § for the extansion. This
additional consideration [ |wil|_wil not be credited Io the saies price upon tha clozing of tha sale,

e. Qlashg:macloslngdatehpmmmmaummm:smugedm .

] F. Expensas; At closing Saller il pay the first $ of Buyar's expenses under
Paragraph 13 of the contract.

e Welver of Right 10 Terminate: Upon finsl acceptance of this Amendment, Buyer walves the tighl to
lerminale under Paragraph 78 of the contract,

(] H. OthecMadificatiang:

Printed Na
Titla: _Seller
By: 8y:

By (signature): %M By (signature):
Priniad Nama® Printed Name:
Tite: _Seller

{TAR-1932) 1.28-10 Poga2ai2
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ATTACHMENT 7:
TAX DOCUMENTATION



Travis CAD -

Property Search > 478243 CHAFFEE ROBERT A & VICK!E for Tax Year: | 2018 - Values not available
Year 2018

Property
Account
Property ID: 478243 Legal Description: LOT 2 *{1.00AC) GARNER & KISSMAN SUBD
Geographic ID: 0260100502 Zoning: GR
Type: Real Agent Cade: 1D:2490
Property Use Code:
Property Use Description:
Location
Address: 12190 N MO-PAC EXPRESSWAY Mapsco:
TX 78758
Neighborhood: VEHICLE SHOWROOM Map ID: 025911
Neighborhood CD: 8ONOR
Owner
Name: CHAFFEE ROBERT A & VICKIE Owner ID: 239914
Mailing Address: % Ownership: 100.0000000000%
805 BLUE HILLS DR
DRIPPING SPRINGS , TX 78620-3911
Exemptions:
Values
{+) Improvement Homesite Value: + N/A
{+) Improvement Non-Homesite Value: + N/A
(+) Land Homesite Value: + N/A
(+) Land Non-Homesite Value: + N/A  Ag/ Timber Use Value
{+} Agricultural Market Valuation: + N/A N/A
{+) Timber Market Valuation: + N/A N/A
{=) Market Value: = N/A
(=) Ag or Timber Use Value Reduction: - N/A
{=) Appraised Value: = N/A
{-) HS Cap: - N/A
(=) Assessed Value: = N/A
Taxing Jurisdiction
Owner: CHAFFEE ROBERT A & VICKIE
% Ownership: 100.0000000000%
Total Value:  N/A
Entity | Description Tax Rate | Appraised Value Taxable Value | Estimated Tax
133 AUSTIN ISD N;'A N/A N{A N/_A
02 CITY OF AUSTIN N/A N/A N/A N/A

03 TRAVIS COUNTY N/A N/A N/A N/A



0A TRAVIS CENTRAL APP DIST N/A

pd] TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT N/A
68 AUSTIN COMM COLL DIST N/A
Total Tax Rate: N/A

Improvement / Building

NA N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A

Taxes w/Current Exemptions:
Tanes w/o Exemptions:

Improvement #1: SVC/REPAIR GAR'G State Code: F1 Living Area: 4800.0 sqft Value: m/a

Type Description ggss Exterior Wall ;33;
15T 1st Floor 5-3 1980
501 CANOPY A-* 1980
501 CANOPY A-* 1980
541 FENCE COMM LF c6-* 1980
561 PAVED AREA Al-* 1980
551 PAVED AREA CA-* 1980
327 STORAGE COMM'L A -* 1972

SQFT

4800.0
620.0
3100.0
300.0
5850.0
880.0
96.0

Improvement #2: DEALERSHIP State Code: F1 Living Area: 4450.0 sqft Value: N/A

Type  Description ggss Exterior Wall ;ﬁ?l:
15T 1st Floer D-4 1972
482 LIGHT POLES o 1872
521 FIREPLACE Mi1-* 1972
591 MASONRY TRIM SF  AVG -* 1972
50 Sketch Only 50-*

611 TERRACE CA-* 1972
611 TERRACE cs-* 1972
408 LOADING RAMP A-* 1972
408 LOADING RAMP A-* 1972
541 FENCE COMM LF 6-" 1972
551 PAVED AREA AA-* 1972

Land

# | Type A Description | Acres Sqgft
1 LAND Land 1.0000 43560.00 0.0

Roll Value History

SQFT

4490.0
4.0

2.0
150.0
0.0
144.0
150.0
180.0
238.0
300.0
8600.0

| Eff Front | Eff Depth | Market Value | Prod. Value
0.00

N/A N/A

Year | Improvements | Land Market Ag Valuation Appraised | HS Cap | Assessed

2018 N/A N/A N/A
2017 $420,696 $653,400 0
2016 $311,428 $653,400 0
2015 $315,336 $522,720 0
2014 $304,464 $522,720 0
2013 $246,610 $522,720 0
Deed History - (Last 3 Deed Transactions)
# | Deed Date | Type Description Grantor

1 B/21/1986 WD  WARRANTYDEED GUTH

RICHARD V &

N/A
1,074,096
964,828
838,056
827,184
769,330

Grantee

N/A N/A
50 $1,074,096
0 $964,828
S0 $838,056
S0  $827,184
50 $769,330

Volume Page | Deed Number
09869 00227

N/A
N[A
N/A

N/A
N/A



2 8/5/1986

3 4/1/1982

Wabsite varsian: 1.2.2.23

co

WD

CORRECTION DEED

WARRANTY DEED

ANITA M
GRESH

GUTH
RICHARD V ET
Al

J-MAR
FIREPLACE
CENTER INC

Questions Please Call (512) 834-9317

CHAFFEE
ROBERT A &
VICKIE

GUTH
RICHARD V &
ANITA M
GRESH

GUTH
RICHARD V ET
Al

09820

07722

This sie requites cockies to be rnatded in your browie seftsgi

Database last updated on. 1/17/2018 1:37 AM

00310

00770

This year is not certified and ALL values will be represented with "N/A”

@ N Harris Computer Corparation



Travis CAD

Property Search > 478625 BAIRD DANIEL K & CATHY J for Year TaxYear: | 2018 - Values not avatiable
2018

Property
Account
Property ID: 478625 Legal Description: ABS 659 SUR 19 ROGERS ) ACR 1.45
Geographic ID; 0262100102 Zoning: LO
Type: Real Agent Code:
Property Use Cede:
Property Use Description:
Location
Address: 12207 WATERS PARKRD  Mapsco:
TX 78759
Neighborhood: S5SNOR Map 1D: 025911
Neighborhood CD: SINOR
Owner
Name: BAIRD DANIEL K & CATHY ) OwnerID: 443326
Mailing Address: % Ownership: 100.0000000000%
12207 WATERS PARK RD
AUSTIN , TX 78759-2118
Exemptions:
Values
(+) Improvement Homesite Value: + N/A
{+} Improvement Non-Homesite Value: + N/A
{+) Land Homesite Value: + N/A
(+) Land Non-Homesite Value: + N/A  Ag/Timber Use Value
(+) Agricultural Market Valuation: + N/A N/A
{+) Timber Market Valuation: + N/A N/A
(=) Market Value: = N/A
{-} Ag or Timber Use Value Reduction: - N/A
(=) Appraised Value: = N/A
(=) Hs Cap: - N/A
(=) Assessed Value: = N/A
Taxing Jurisdiction
Owner: BAIRD DANIEL K & CATHY J
% Ownership: 100.0000000000%
Total Value: N/A
Entity | Description Tax Rate | Appraised Value Taxable Value | Estimated Tax
333 AUST_IN ISD N_/A N[A f!/A N_/A
02 CITY OF AUSTIN N/A N/A N/A N/A

03 TRAVIS COUNTY N/A N/A N/A N/A



0A

68

TRAVIS CENTRAL APP DIST N/A
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT N/A
AUSTIN COMM COLL DIST N/A
Total Tax Rate: N/A

Improvement / Buitding

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
Taxes w/Current Exernptions: N/A
Taxes w/o Exemptions: N/A

Impravement #1: OFF/RETAIL (SFR} State Code: F5 Living Area: 1918.0 sqft Value: N/A

Land

Type
15T
011
031
095
301
571
612
327
327

Description

ist Floor

PORCH OPEN 15T F
GARAGE DET 1STF
HVAC RESIDENTIAL
BARN SF

STORAGE DET
TERRACE UNCOVERD
STORAGE COMM'L
STORAGE COMM'L

# | Type | Description | Acres ' Sqft

1 LAND tand

Roll Value History

Year Improvements

2018
2017
2016
2015
| 2014
2013

N/A N/A
347,804 $252,648
$280,560 $252,648
$291,782 488,427
$291,782 $88,427
$229,269 88,427

Class Exterior Year
cD Wwall Built
WV - 5- 1962
*.5. 1962
WV -5- 1962
.. 1962
1-* 1962
ww-2 1962
¥-5. 1962
A-* 2012
A-* 2012

SQFT

1918.0

20.0

440.0
1918.0
300.0

80.0

168.0
204.0
204.0

Eff Front EffDePth Market Value | Prod. Value |

1.4500 63162.00 0.00

N/A

(=R =N =N - -]

Deed History - (Last 3 Deed Transactions)

# Deed Date | Type Description
wbD WARRANTY DEED RABUN

1 1/10/2003

2 11/3/1986

3 7/13/1981

Grantor

GERALD &
CAROL)

WD  WARRANTY DEED ANDERSON

GEORGER

WD  WARRANTY DEED BRIDGES

CHARLES RAY

0.00 bi/A
Assessed

N/A N/A N/A

600f542 S0 $600,542

533_.208 _50 _5533_,208

380,209 $0  $380,209

380,209 $0  $380,209

317_,696 $_D 4317696

Grantee | Volume Page

BAIRD DANIEL 00000

K & CATHY)

RABLIN 09965

GERALD &

C_AROLJ

ANDERSON 07503

GEORGER

Land Market Ag Valuation Appraised | HS Cap

Questions Please Call {512) 834-9317

his aite requires cookies to be enabled in your biowier settings.

00000

00587

00408

N/A

Deed Number
2003011408TR

This year is not certified and ALL values will be represented with "N/A".
Database last updated on_ 1/17/2018 137 AM

Website version 1.2.2.23

© N. Harris Computer Corporation



ATTACHMENT 8:
ZONING



City of Austin

Founded by Congress, Republic of Texas, 1§39
Planning and Zoning Department

One Texas Center, 505 Barton Springs Road
P.O. Box 1088, Austin, Texas 78767

January 10, 2018

Sabrina Butler

Director of Housing Finance
Foundation Communities
3036 S. 1st Street

Austin, TX 78704

Re: Zoning Verification for the Properties located at 12207 Waters Park Road,
Austin, Texas, further described as 1.45 acres of land, more or less, out the James
Rogers Survey, and 12190 North MoPac Expressway, Austin, Texas, described as
Lot 2, Garner & Kissman Subdivision

Dear Ms, Butler:

This letter is to confimm that the property located at 12207 Waters Park Road is zoned
limited office (LO) district and 12190 North MoPac Expressway, is zoned community
commercial (GR) district.

Under the LO zoning classification applicable to 12207 Waters Park Road, a congregate
living use is a conditional use, and approval of a Conditional Use Permit site plan by the
Zoning and Platting Commission is required prior to establishing the use. Under the GR
zoning classification applicable to 12190 North MoPac Expressway, a congregate living
use¢ is permitted provided the applicable zoning and land development regulations
(height, setback, parking, etc.) and building codes are addressed. The Applicant’s
proposed supportive housing Development on thesc parcels is permitted under the

provisions of the zoning ordinances that apply to the location of the Development without
a need for rezoning,

ok P

Wendy Rhoa
Planning and Zoning Department
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City of Austin

P.O. Bax 1088, Austin, TX 78767
www.cityofaustin.org/ hoising

Neighborhood Housing and Community Development Department

February 5, 2018

5.M.A.R.T. Housing Certification-
Foundation Communities, Inc. -Waters Park Studios — (Project ID 422)

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Foundation Communities, Inc. {development contact: Walter Moreau: 512-610-4016;
walter.moreau@foundcom.org) is planning to develop the Waters Park Studios, a 132 unit multi-family
development at 12207 Waters Park Road, 78759 and 12190 N Maopac Expwy, Austin TX 78758. The project
is subject to a 5 year minimum affordability period, unless project funding requirements are longer.

Since 100% of the units will serve households at or below 50% MFI, the development will be eligible for
100% waiver of all fees listed in the 5.M.A.R.T. Housing Ordinance adopted by the City Council. The unit
mix is as follows: 20% of the units (27 units) will serve households at or below 30% Median Family Income
(MFI); 20% of the units {27 units) will serve households at or below 40% Median Family Income (MFi); and
60% of the units (78 units} will serve households at or below 50% Median Family Income (MFI). The
expected fee waivers include, but are not limited to, the following fees:

Capital Recovery Fees Site Plan Review Land Status Determination
Building Permit Misc. Site Plan Fee Building Plan Review
Concrete Permit Construction Inspection Parkiand Dedication {by
Electrical Permit Subdivision Plan Review separate ordinance)
Mechanical Permit Misc. Subdivision Fee

Plumbing Permit Zoning Verification

Prior to issuance of building permits and starting construction, the developer must:
¢ Obtain a signed Conditional Approval fram the Austin Energy Green Building Program stating that the plans
and specifications for the proposed development meet the criteria for a Green Building Rating. {Contact

Austin Energy Green Building: 512-482-5300 or greenbuilding@austinenergy.com).
¢ Submit plans demonstrating compliance with the required accessibility or visitability standards.

Before a Certificate of Occupancy wiil be granted, the development must:

+ Pass a final inspection and obtain a signed Final Approval from the Green Building Program. (Separate from
any other inspections required by the City of Austin or Austin Energy).

+ Pass a final inspection to certify that the required accessibility or visitability standards have been met.

+ Enterinto a Restrictive Covenant securing the affordability requirements.

The applicant must demonstrate compliance with S.M.A.R.T. Housing standards after the completion of the
units, or repay the City of Austin in full the fees waived for this S.M.A.R.T. Housing certification.



Please contact me by phone 512.974.3128 or by emall at Sandra.harkins@austintexas.gov if you need additional

information.

Sincerely,

e clva Vb s

Sandra Harkins, Project Coordinator
Neighborhood Housing and Community Development

Cc: Laurie Shaw, Capital Metro Catherine Doar, AE
Maureen Meredith, PZD Gina Copic, NHCD
Marilyn Lamensdorf, PARD Stephen Castleberry, DSD
Heldi Kasper, AEGB Elizabeth Robinson, DSD

Carl Wren, DSD Zulema Flores, DSD

Alma Molieri, DSD

Ellis Morgan, NHCD

Katherine Murray, Austin Energy
Alice Flora, AWU
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FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES STAFF RESUMES - Walter Moreau

Walter Moreau
walter.moreau@foundcom.org | 512-610-4016

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

Nonprofit leadership, asset bullding, asset management, strategic planning, green construction, program design
EXPERIENCE

Executive Director 1997-Present
Foundation Communities
Austin, TX

* Leads the development and growth of Foundation Communities in pursuit of our mission to create housing where families succeed.

* Ensures that FC is a financially self-reliant organization with low debt. 80% of our operating budget is covered by rental income and
the balance is raised from a diverse base of institutional investors and individual donors. Oversees annual fundraising of over $6 million.

* Provides leadership of our growing portfolio of 3,000 units with a market value of over $200 million. We have a staff of more than 350,
an annual operating budget of over $30 million, and cument real estate development projects of over $100 million.

* Led the creation and funding of 15 new affordable housing communities, overcoming numerous “not in my backyard”
opposition efforts.

* Developed our supportive housing model for extremely low income and homeless single adults. We provide a home and
wraparound services for 600 SRO residents.

¢ Maintains green building as a top priority—FC is the largest private producer of solar power in the region.

* Launched our first learning center in 2004, which today has grown to ten centers and over 700 students in free afterschool academic
programs. Learning centers have bacome the heart of each community and offer pre-k, elementary, teen and adult programming.

= Created an array of healhth programs for residents and surrounding neighborhoods, ranging from Zumba to psychiatric nurse teams and
everything in between,

* Created our “Community Financial Centers;’ which offer free tax prep (over 30,000 raturns and $45 million in refunds), IDA
savings accounts, college financial aid, financial coaching, and health insurance enrollment {over 11,000 clients enrolled in
the last two years).

Private Consultant 1992-1994

Austin, TX

* Worked with fifteen nonprofit and public affordable housing clients on a variety of projects. Raised over $8.5 rullion in subsidy funds
for the development of 446 units in both urban and rural settings.

* Faciltated the sale and financing of four communities {871 units / $8.2 million in value) from the Resolution Trust Corporation to non-
profit owners,

* Designed a Neighborhood Energy Conservation Program for Dallas Habitat for Humanity.

* Whote three technical reports for the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services on financial management issues for
grantees of the Ryan White Care Act.



—m Megan Emma Matthews
Work Experience

Foundation Communities | Austin, Texas
Development Project Manager
June 2017 - current

* Determines the feasibility of land for new developments through zoning and enritlement research, site
planning, and code compliance.

* Facilitates the design and construction of sustainable and beauriful affordable housing by acting as the
pivot point berween architects, contractors, consultants, City officials, and granting agencies to ensure
compliance with all project requitements, timelines, and budgets.

* Ensures new construction projects comply with high level ratings from Leadership in Energy and

Environmental Design (LEED), Austin Energy Green Building (AEGB) program, and Enterprise Green
Communities (EGC).

hatch+ulland owen architects | Austin, Texas
Architect + Praject Manager
June 2011 = June 2017

* Initially hired as an Intern and quickly promored to Project Manager by demonstrating my ability to
handle multiple projects at a time. Later promoted to Architect through the national licensure process.

* Collaborated with teammates on a wide variety of project types ranging from small single-family
residential to large commercial projects.

* Managed the design and construction administration for over 700 multi-family housing units in the
Austin area with a focus on affordable housing.

* Involved with several AEGB certified projects, as well as projects pursuing LEED and Living Building
Challenge certification.

Foundation Communities | Austin, Texas
Capital Audit Intern
May 2010 - around September 2012

* Created a database for each Foundation Communities property to help others assess the replacement
value of aging building components in order to better inform future budgets.

* Populated the aforementioned darabase through site visits and meetings with each property manager
and maintenance staff member to gather quantitative and qualitative information abour each building

component.

Skills Education & License Technology

*  Conceptual Site and 2007 - 2012 *  AuroCAD Architecture 2017
Building Design The University of Texas at Austin * Adobe Photoshop

*  Project Management *  Bachelor of Architecrure * Adobe InDesign

* Green Building Design * Business Foundations ¢ SkeechUp

*  Client/Staff Relations Program Certificate *  Microsoft Office Suite

* Code Compliance {(Building,
Energy, and Accessibility) 2014

*  (Cost Summaries/Schedules Texas Architect #24488

*  Materials Research
*  Construction Administration
and Observation



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES STAFF RESUMES - Vicki Beal McDonald

Vicki Beal McDonald
ann.clift@foundcom.org | 512-610-4032

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

Asset management, supervision of property construction and remodeling
EXPERIENCE

Director of Asset Management 2005-Present
Foundation Communities
Austin, TX

* Oversees FC's real estate portfolio, valued at aver $100 million.

* Key member of FC's development team, assisting in renovation of existing properties and acquisition and construction
of new properties.

Activities in this role:
* Provided oversight on renovation of Spring Terrace, Skyline Terrace, Sierra Vista and Arbor Terrace—a total of 482 units.

* Provided oversight on construction of M Station, Capital Studios, Homestead, Bluebonnet Studios, Lakeline Station and
Live Ozk Trails—a total of 718 units.

= Currently working with development team on expansion of Cardinal Point Apartments and Garden Terrace.

Owner 1984-2006

Vista Properties

Austin, TX

* Owned and operated Vista properties, a real estate firm that specialized in the management, leasing and brokerage of
income-producing assets including multifamily, office and retail portfolios.

¢ Performed property and asset management services for a variety of institutional and individual real estate owners across
six-state service area.

* Brokered over fifty million dollars’ worth of commercial real estate.

ACCREDITATIONS

* Licensed Texas Real Estate Broker
* Member, Certified Commercial Investment Institute
* Member, Texas Apartment Association



SABRINA F. BUTLER

WORK EXPERIENCE

Foundation Communities (Austin, TX)
Director of Housiang Finance 2017 — Present
Oversee the financing of Foundation Communities’ current and future affordable residential communities. Play a lead
role with other senior and development staff from initial feasibility analysis to ongoing coordination of each phase of
development, including:
¢ Evaluate potential sites to determine feasibility for use as affordable housing and negotiate purchase
agreements. Establish financing plans for new developments and monitor project finances throughout the
development process, including oversight of monthly draws.

¢ Apply for and report on pre-development, construction, and permanent financing from conventional and
public funding sources. Solicit proposals for and secure equity investments and private debt placement.
Oversee loan closings and coordination of initial reporting.

¢ Monitor and evaluate impact of changing state and federal regulations on existing and pipeline projects, review
applicability of potential new funding sources, engage with local and national peer networks.

¢ Apply for and, with Asset Management, ensure ongoing compliance with property tax exemption.

BRIDGE Housing (San Francisco, CA)

Director of Portfolio 2014 — 2017

Responsible for long-term strategic planning and short-term financing transactions for affordable housing portfolio of
one of the largest and most well-known non-profit affordable housing developers on the West Coast. Responsible for
coordination and implantation of organization’s encrgy/water conservation and renewable enetgy initiatives.

¢ Internal Leadership: Joined BRIDGE Housing when its Portfolio department was undergoing transformation.
Worked closely with the Vice President of Portfolio to build a new team from the ground up, including
development of the short- and long-term staffing structure and refinement of department goals. Ongoing, role
included advising on annual business strategy for team, collaboration on development of new procedures,
supervision of small staff, leading energy/water and renewable energy efforts for existing portfolio of over
10,000 housing units.

¢ Industry Leadership: Frequent and ongoing collaboration with industry leaders on housing and sustainability
related policies, including advising on new policy proposals and responding to proposed regulations;
participation in peer networks to facilitate sharing of best practices to advance industry; regular presenter at
housing conferences

¢ Programmatic: Identified and implemented short- and long-term strategies for assigned portfolio of over 50
real estate assets, balancing sustainability of individual assets with corporate revenue targets; negotiated and
executed on exit strategies for original project investors; evaluated energy and water retrofit and renewable
energy opportunities and oversaw implementation/installation; coordinated data management and evaluation
of energy conservation efforts against company targets

Resources for Community Development (Berkeley, CA)

Director of Asset Management 2011 — 2014

Asset Manager 2009 — 2011

Oversaw the housing and commerecial portfolio of a highly regarded regional affordable housing developer & operator.
Ensured the long-term financial, physical, and operational sustainability of the properties while balancing RCD's
economic objectives, social mission, and sustainability goals.

¢ Internal Leadership: Developed & implemented annual business plan; met annual income targets for
department; supervised small intemal teamn as well as contracted property management company; reported on



portfolio performance to upper management and board of directors; worked collaboratively with other
departments on a varicty of projects to improve efficiency and communication within and between teams

¢ Industry Leadership: Frequent presenter at industry conferences; participated in advocacy groups and
mitiatives; coordinated working group of local asset managers for networking and information sharing;
participated in respected industry training and certification program

¢ Financial: Evaluated new deal structure and feasibility, including projects with complex financing; prepared
and reviewed of financial budgets and projections for 50+ individual real estate holding entities annually;
monitored, reviewed, and analyzed financial performance of individual entities and full portfolio; anticipated
future trends based on historical experience and external factors

Low Income Investment Fund (San Francisco, CA)
Loan Officer 2007 -2009
Credit Associate 2006 — 2007
¢ Loan underwriting of affordable housing, charter school, child care, and othet nonprofit borrowers: analysis
of borrower financial strengths and weaknesses; organizational analysis; project feasibility; and evaluation of
real estate or other collateral

*

Client relationship management and customer service, including marketing and new clieat development
Deal negotiation, from initial inquiry through loan approval and loan document execution

L

¢ Oversight of loan closing processes, construction and predevelopment loan disbursements, ongoing asset
management of portfolio, and loan restructurings/work outs

Self-Help Credit Union/Ventures Fund (Durtham, NC)
Commercial Lending Consultant; Intern 2005 -2006

¢ Evaluation of encrgy efficiency financing opportunities in small businesses, charter schools, & homes
¢ Development of new loan monitoring system for commercial real estate and community facilities loans
¢ Assisted with borrowers’ financial analysis and debt service capacity

First Step Fund/Americorps*VISTA (Kansas City, MO)
Community Resources Developer 2003 — 2004

¢ Recruited and managed volunteer speakers and mentors for the microenterprise training program

¢ Coordinated outreach to potential clients, volunteers, and agency partners via public presentations
networking, and creation of new marketing materials

¢ Grantwriting, including successful proposal for organization’s first Spanish-language training

Internships (Oakland, CA) 2002 — 2003
¢ Variety of internships in transit advocacy, environmental justice, and homeless services

EDUCATION

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill: Master of Regional Planning May 2006

University of California at Berkeley: Bachelor of Arts with Honors in American Studies Spring 2003

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS

NeighborWorks: Certified Housing Asset Manager (CHAM) November 2015

Duke University: Noaprofit Management Certificate May 2006




SKILLS

Soft Skills. Negotiating; presentations & public speaking; strategic planning; troubleshooting & problem solving;
relationship building; collaboration, group coordination; policy development & implementation

Technical Skills: Advanced experience in Microsoft Office Suite (Excel, Word, PowerPoint, Outlook) and various
data management systems; financial analysis and projections; data analysis; financial underwriting/risk analysis;
writing; editing/proof reading

VOLUNTEER WORK

¢

* & > @

California Housing Partnership Cotporation GREEN Advisory Board Member

Alameda County AIDS Housing Needs Assessment Work Group

Elementary School PTAs/Committees; Communications; Equity Committee; Grant Writing
Oakland Committee, East Bay Housing Organizations (EBHO)

Oakland Indie Awards Judge

Orange County (N.C.) Affordable Housing Advisory Board Member

UNC Urban Planning Dept.: Diversity Committee; Alumni/Career Services Committee



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES STAFF RESUMES - Tillie Croxdale

Tillie Croxdale
tillie.croxdale@foundcom.org | 512-610-0829

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

Affordable housing finance and development, property management, asset management, energy management and capital planning
EXPERIENCE

Real Estate Project Manager 2015-Present
Foundation Communities
Austin, TX
* Assists with securing financing, preparing loan and grant applications, following public agency and lender compliance
reguirements and conducting feasibility analyses for new development opportunities.

Facilities Administrator 2013-2015
Holsten Management Corporation

Chicago, IL

* Assisted with capital planning.

* Maintained productive relationships with vendors.

* Responded to building violations issues.

* Monitored new construction and inspected units and common areas.

* Prepared properties for external agency inspections.

Property Manager 2011-2013
Heartland AllancefHeartland Housing
Chicago, IL
* Managed a 137 unit tax credit development with a target population of individuals that were formerly homeless and struggled with
mental iliness, substance abuse and/or physical disabilities.
* Supervised a staff of eight and was responsible for collections, occupancy, operations, maintenance, tax credit cormpliance
and resident relations.

ACCREDITATIONS

* Building Operator Certification from Midwest Energy Alliance
* Green Property Management Certification from Enterprise Community Partners

* Tax Credit Specialist from National Council for Housing Management

PROJECTS LIST

* Homestead Oaks — 140 units, 3226 W. Slaughter Lane. Construction completed 2015.
* Live Oak Trails - 58 units, 8500 W. Highway 71. Construction completed 2016,

* Bluebonnet Studios - 107 units, 2301 S. Lamar Blvd. Construction completed 2016.

* Lakeline Station - 128 units, 13635 Rutledge. Opening 2016.

* Cardinal Point - 120 units, 11011 % Four Points Drive. Opening 2017



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES STAFF RESUMES - Ann Elise Clift, CPA

Ann Elise Clift, CPA
ann.clifi@foundcom.org | 512-610-4032

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

Real estate and nonprofit accounting and management
EXPERIENCE

Chief Financial Officer 2008-Present
Foundation Communities

Austin, TX

* Manages accounting and finance for construction and operations of FC properties.

* Produces monthly consolidated financial statements,

* Creates budgets for all FC programs and properties.

* Established FC's Central Reserve funds in 1997 and Growth Fund in 2013

= 25 years of audits for FC with no findings.

Staff Accountant 2001-2008
Foundation Communities

Austin, TX

* Prepared monthly and annual financial reports and records.

* Prepared and analyzed budgets for each of FC's new and existing properties and programs 1o ensure our growth was
financially sound,

Independent CPA 1994-2001
Austin, TX

* Provided bookkeeping services to various small businesses.

* Clients encompassed a multitude of different industries including construction, homeowner associations, restaurants,
media production services, retail establishments and nonprofit organizations,

* Compiled monthly combined financial reports for Foundation Communities.

ACCREDITATIONS

* Licensed Certified Public Accountant
* Member, Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants

52
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We own and manage more than 3,200
apartments across 22 properties—19
in Austin and three in the Dallas/Fort
Worth area—providing quality homes
for both families and individuals. We
are committed to having the greenest
properlies possible, from construction
to remodeling 10 educating residents

i Children's HOME
135 apartments, integrated thioughout
our affordable housing communities, ;
provide reduced rents and case |
management support tahelpvulnerable
families move from crisis and instability

All FC residents have access to
health amenities, resources, and food
pantries. We have 707 supportive
housing apartments where single
adults who have been homeless, are
o fixed incomes, or who have chronic
health problems and disabilities can
reach their maximum level of self-
sufficiency. To support families coming
out of homelessness, we created the
Initiative.

1o long-term self-sufficiency.

This year, our on-site Learning Centers

i will give 1,000 children of working
i parents considerable academic support
i and a safe place to go when school is
i out. B5% of these students maintain
i or improve their grades. Adult
education is a priority as well, At these
i same Learning Centers, adult classes
i offered include computer skills, English
{ as a Second Language, and finanial
These

teracy.

We provide free tax preparation in
Austin for more than 20,000 low
income workers and retirees each
year, with the help of 200 {RS-certified
volunteers, Refunds amount to more
than $32 million per year, and can equal
25 percent of a family's annual income
More than 600 families annually
become smart consumers through
financial education and one-on-one
financial coaching, al least 50% of
them reduce their debt, Matched
savings plans assist families in saving
to purchase a home, attend college, or
start a busingss. The Cash for College
programs assist over 1,000 students
annually with federal siudent aid
forms and potential schelarships; most
of these students are the first in their
families to attend college



BUILDING/PROPERTIES:
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BLUEBONNET
i B STUDIOS:
107 units of service-enriched
Under construction, opening in 2017: | R A

i at 2301 South Lamar Blvd.,
{ L POIN opening December 2016

LAKELINE
STATION:

128 units of family housing
at 13635 Rutledge Spur;

new leaning center,
opening December 2016

LIVE OAK
TRAILS:

58 units of family housing

at 8500 Highweay 71; ciulriren
will use the [Raming Lenter
at Southwest Teails, FC's
property right next deor,
opening December 2615



HOMESTEAD
OAKS:

140 units of farmily housing
at 3226 W. Slzughter Lane,
new Jearning center, Opanerd
205, {ull cecupancy 2018,

TERRACE:

12C units of permanent supportive
housing: opened 2012, Rehab of former
extended-stay hoiel. ABJ Commercial
Heal Estate Award/Multi-Family
Developmient (rental).

CAPITAL
STUDIOS:

135 uniis of permanent supportive housing at
309 Fast 11th St.; new canstruction, cpened
2114 The hirst affordable housing to be built in
downtowi Austin in more than 40 years. Austin
Business Journal’s Commercizl Real Estate
Aveard for Multi-Family Development {rental),

M STATION:

150 units of farmily housing; opened 2011,

New constiuction. LEED Platinum cestification,
Entarprise Green Commurnities certification,

anet Austin Energy Green Builthing 5-Star rated
comimunty. Numerous awasds, including Austin
Green Award; Reader's Choice Award/Affurdzhle
Housing Firarce Magazine; Affortable Property

of the Year/Aiistin Apartrmant Association; Social
Impact Award/ABJ Commercial Rea! Estate Awards,
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EDUCATION

Foundation Communities has 11 on-site Learning
Centers, with two more under construction, that
serve 1000 children each year with educational
programming. Offerings range from prediteracy for
3-and 4-year-olds to teen programs. 800 elementary
school kids who live in our housing and the surounding
communities attend our yearround afterschool and
summer. program, where we work with local
elementary schools to identify students’ needs.

This academically-focused program (3 hours each
school day, 5-6 hours in the summer) includes reading,
homework help, physical activity, and enrichment,

We also serve adults and entire families in our
education programs. Free Minds is a yearlong
cooperative program with UT and ACC, designed
tor adults who have never attended college or are
returning after a long absence; they raceive six
college humanities credits upon completion. Other
adult classes include computer skills, English as a
Second Language, exercise classes, and

healthy cooking.




FINANCIAL STABILITY

Foundation Communities” Financial Stability programs
help more than 25,000 people each year across our
community.

» The Community Tax Centers prepare more than
20,000 tax returns each year in Central Texas,
totaling more than $32 million in refunds.

* |ncentivized savings allow families to save for
emergencies, higher education, home purchase,
or starting a business.

* Financial education and financial coaching give
individuals and families the resources they need for
economic stability and success, including
credit repair and budgeting.

* Cash for College helps students with FAESA
forms and figuring out how to apply for college
and for scholarships. We work with the Mexican
Consulate to administer scholarships to immigrant
families.



#

HEALTH INITIATIVES

Health Initiatives are fundamental to family success
and bring healthy living education, activities, and
resources to our residents and the community.

* We connect residents to jocal health resources, in
addition to on-site programming: free health fairs,
exercise classes (Zumba to yoga), healthy food
pantnes, gardens, support groups for
substance abuse and recovery, and bilingual
nutrition and cooking classes.

* Insure Central Texas has enrolled more that
15,000 psople in marketplace insurance enrollment
under the Affordable Care Act; Community
Health Workers and Navigators help patients
with complicated medical conditions (cancer, AIDS}
find plans that work with their medical providers.

* Green Initiatives are engaged from construction
through instruction; whole families benefit from
healthier products and cost savings. As lifstime
owners of our properties, we create the gresnest
homes possible, using solar panels and other
features to save money in the long run.
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FOUNDATION
COMMUNITIES

We have an active board made up of residents and
cammunity leaders. Staff members are drawn from a
wide variety of cultures and skills. The cormon thread:
commitment to Foundation Communities’ mission and
to serving the community.

Community volunteers tutor studants, serve as
scholarship mentors, prepare taxes, work as financial
coaches, and prepare “Welcome Home” baskets and
supper club meals for Foundation Communities’
residents.

Financing is fully diversified and, as much as
possible, sustainable. 80% of our $35 million
budget comes from apartment rentals. The rest is
grants and individual donations. We receive grants

from governmental sources {federal, state, county, city},
foundations, and corporations. Individua! donors include
“Homebuilders,” who make multi-year pledges.



FOUNDATION COMMUNITIES PARTNERS —Services and Programs

Learmning Centers:

Creative Action
Qak Hill Ratary Club
City Square

Any Baby Can

Literacy Coalition
of Central Texas

Breakthrough Austin
College Forward

Boy Scouts & Girl Scouts
of Central Texas

Inner City Qutings
Texas Civil Rights Project

{Children’s Home Initiative}

CHI Partners:

Assistance League
of Austin

- Capital Area Counseling

Capital Area Food Bank

Goodwill Industries
of Central Texas

Travis County Child
Protective Services

Housing Authority
of the City of Austin

The University of Texas
School of Social Work

Ending Community
Homeless Coalition

: City of Austin Health

; and Human Services

. Department

St. David's Foundation
. Religious Coalition
 to End Homelessness

Financial Programs:

LifeWorks
Round Rack Public Library
Woarkforce Commission

Housing Authority
of Austin

United Way

Financial Literacy
Coalition of Central Texas

IRS

UT McCombs Schoo)
of Businass

Health Initiatives:

Weliva

Keep Austin Fed
Sustainable Food Center
Planned Parenthood

University of Texas
School of Public Health

Texas ABM Agrilife
Extension

Capital Area Food Bank
Phoenix House
LiveStrong

Kids Vision for Life

Lifeworks

National Alliance on Mental
i lNiness

Seton Healthcare
i Mobile Mammography

. Gilberts Gazelles

Permanent
i Supportive Housing:

Passages

Easter Seals

Casey Foundation
Austin Energy

Lone Star Circle of Care
Caritas of Austin
Salvation Army

Austin Recovery
Communities for Recovery
Austin Clubhouse
Family Eldercare

The University of Texas at

Austin School of Nursing

Integral Care (formerly
Austin/Travis Co. MHMR)

YMCA of Austin

Austin Area
Mental Health Consumers

Self Help and Advocacy
Center

Downtown Austin
Community Court

Project Transitions

Veterans Affairs
Supportive Housing program



FOUNDATION

creating housing where families suceerd

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE COMMUNITY FINANCIAL CENTER
3036 S. st 5t. 2600W. Stassney Ln.
Austin, TX 78704 Austin, TX 78745

Phone: 512-447-2026 Tax center: 512-610-7374

Fax: 512-447-0288 Fax: 512-916-4420




Experience in Development of Mixed Finance Low-Income Housing

SCU U fl::ifts ::.ew Type g‘:r:pleted lnco-me
Rehab Mix
Arbor Terrace 90 units — 30% MFI
2501 S.IH 35 120 Rehab | SRO 2012 30 units — 50% MFI
Austin, TX 78741
Biuebonnet Studios 22 units — 30% MFI
2301 S. Lamar Blvd 107 New SRO 2016 21| units — 40% MFI
Austin, TX 78704 64 units — 50% MFI
Buckingham Place 83 units — 50% MFI
743-B Yarsa 164 Rehab | Duplexes | 1991 83 units — 80% MFI
Austin, TX78748
Capital Studios 27 units — 30% MFI
309 E. | I* Street 135 New SRO 2014 27 units — 40% MFI
Austin, TX 78701 81 units — 50% MFI
Cardinal Points 12 units - 30% MFI
11017 & 11016 120 |New [Apis [2018-under foh e so% MRl
Austin, TX 78701 48 units — 60% MFI
Cherry Creek 37 units — 50% MFI
5510-B Fernview 122 Rehab { Duplexes | 1989 85 units -80% MFI
Austin, TX 78745
Crossroads 14 units — 30% MFI
8801 McCann 92 Rehab | Apts 1990 31 units — 50% MFI
Austin, TX 78757 47 units — 80% MFI
Daffodil 10 units ~ 30% MFI
6009 Daffodil 40 Rehab | Apts 1996 30 units — 50% MF!
Austin, TX 78744 30 units — 80% MFI
Garden Terrace 35 units — 30% MFI
1015 W. William Cannon 103 Rehab | SRO 2003 and 2008 | 65 units — 50% MFI
Austin, TX 78745 3 units - UR
Homestead Oaks 14 units - 30% MFI
3226 W. Slaughter Lane 70 units — 50% MFI
140 New Apts 2015

Austin, TX 78748

42 units ~ 60% MF|
14 units - MKT




AL DL fl::ts ::Irew Type E‘;:r:pleted Inco-me
Rehab Mix
Lakeline Station 13 units — 30% MFI
13635 Rutledge Spur 128 New Apts 2016 64 units — 50% MF|
Austin, TX 78717 51 units — 60% MFI
Live Oak Trails 12 units — 30% MFI
8500 W. Highway 71 58 New Apts 2016 12 units — 40% MFI
Austin, TX 78735 ’ 34 units — 50% MFI
M Station 15 units — 30% MFI
2906 E. MLK 75 units=50% MFI
Austin, TX 78702 50 | New [Aps 2011 45 units=60% MF|
I5 units - MKT
Peters Colony I5 units=30% MFI
810 E. Peters Colony Rd, 50 units=50% MF|
Carroliton, TX 75007 160 |Rehab | Apts ] 1995 48 units=80% MF|
8 units=UR

Shadow Brook 201 units=50% MF(
;23?35. Cooper, Arlington, | 403 Rehab | Apts 1995 O e e
Sierra Ridge 15 units=30% MFI
201 W. St. Eimo 149 Rehab | Apts 1991 128 units=50% MFI
Austin, TX 78745 6 units=80% MFI
Sierra Vista 24 units=30% MFI
4320 5. Congress Ave,, 238 Rehab | Apts 2012 166 units=50% MFI
Austin, TX 78745 48 units=60% MFI
Sleepy Hollow 64 units=50% MFI
;zg:: ;chabod Cr, Arlington, | 128 Rehab | Apts 1995 64 units=80% M|
Southwest Trails 96 units=50% MFI
%"s':’if';'aggg CavesRd, | 160 |New fApts 2001 64 units=60% MFI
Spring Terrace 14 units=30% MFI
7101 N. I-35 142 Rehab | SRO 2006 126 units=50% MFI

Austin, TX 78752

2 units=UR




New

Income

Address ﬁ:ifts or Type zzamr leted .

Rehab plete Mix
Skyline Terrace 72 units=30% MFI
1212 W. Ben White. 100 Rehab | SRO 2008 .
Austin, 78704 28 units=40% MFI
Trails at the Park 46 units=50% MFI
815 W. Slaughter Ln, 200 New Apts 2000 104 units=60% MFI
Austin, 78748 50 units=80% MFI
Vintage Creek 23 units=50% MFI
;3‘2’3”““2““ Dr. Austin, | 549 Rehab | Apts | 2000 57 units=60% MFI

120 units=80% MFI




Completed Projects in Past [0 Years:

Year Funding Completed

Project Name

Funding Tools

2014

Bluebonnet Studios

9% LIHTC, City of Austin RHDA Program, FHLB
San Francisco, TCAP, Enterprise Green
Communities, NeighborWorks America, Private
Fundraising

2014

Live Oak Trails

9% LIHTC, City of Austin RHDA Program,
Department of Justice Funds, Private Fundraising

2014

Lakeline Stations

9% LIHTC, City of Austin RHDA Program,
Department of Justice Funds, Private Fundraising

2013

Homestead Qaks

9% LIHTC, City of Austin RHDA Program, HUD
221(d)(4) loan, FHLB AHP, NeighborWorks
America, Private Fundraising

2012

Capital Studios

9% LIHTC, City of Austin RHDA Program, FHLB
San Francisco, Enterprise Green Communities,
NeighborWorks America, Private Fundraising

2011

Arbor Terrace

Neighborhood Stabilization Program via TDHCA,
City of Austin RHDA Program, FHLB Adanta,
NeighborWerks America

2010

Sierra Vista

9% LIHTC, City of Austin RHDA Program, FHLB
San Francisco, NeighborWorks America, Private
Fundraising, Permanent Mortgage with Impact
Capital via Bank of America

2009

M Seation

9% LIHTC, City of Austin RHDA Program, FHLB
San Francisco, Enterprise Green Communities,
NeighborWorks America, Private Fundraising,
Permanent Mortgage with Impact Capital via Bank
of America

2006

Skyline Terrace

9% LIHTC, City of Austin RHDA, TDHCA HOME,
FHLEB San Francisco, NeighborWorks America,
Enterprise Green Communities, Private Fundraising

2005

Spring Terrace

City of Austin RHDA, TDHCA HOME and HTF,
FHLB Dallas, NeighborWorks America, Enterprise
Green Communities, Private Fundraising




ATTACHMENT 12:
OPERATING PROFORMA



TABLE D: OPERATING PROFORMA,
Number of | Monthly Rental] Annual Rental
Unit Slze (BR/BA) Units Income Income
0 Bedroom/1 Bathroom {515 £f) 132 382,355 989,460
Tatal Units 132 $82,455| $989,460 [
FULL OCCUPANCY ANNUAL INCOME $089,460
|Less Vacancy Loss @ 7.50% ($75,528)
|0tl|er Income %$17,580
|GROSS ANNUAL INCOME $931,512
rlnnatlun Factor - Income 2%
[inNation Factor - Expenses 3%
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 10 Year 15 Year 20
Gross Annual Income $931,512 $950,142 ssss.usl $988,528] $1,008,299] $1,113,243] $1,229,11D| $1,357,037
EXPENSES
Utillties $111,764 $115,117] $118,570 $122,128 $125,791 $145,027 $169,053| $195,979
Insurance $48,031 $49,472 $50,956 $52,465 $54,059 $62,670 572.554 $84,223
Mainlgnance/Repair $85,249 $87,806 $50,441 $93,154 $95,549 $111,231 $128,947 $1439,385|
Property Taxes $45,000( $46,350 $47,741 $49,173 $50,648 $58,715 $68,067 $78,908
Adi rative $58,337 $60,087 $61,800 $63,746 $65,659 $76,117 $88,240 $102,294
Management Fee $46,576 $47,508 $48,450 $49,427| $50,415 $55,663 $61,456| $67,852
Payrall $245,040 $252,391 $250,963 $267,762 $275,795 $319,722 $370,645 $429,679
Marketing $2,850 $2,936 $3,024 $3,114 $3,208 $3,719 44,311 $4,997
Other Expenses $10,268 $10,576, $10,893 $11,220 $11,557| $13,397 $15,531 $18,005
Maintenance Raserve $33,000 $33,990 $35,010 $36,060 $37,1a2) $43,058 $49,915 $57,866,
TOTAL EXPENSES $686,115 $706,233 $726,945]  $748,268 $770,223]  $890,116] $1,028,816] $1,169,208)
|
|NET OPERATING INCOME (NOT) $245,397 $243,910 $242,200]  $240,260 $238,076]  $223,127 $200,294 $167,749
l
|Sources of Funds & Dabt Service
TOTAL ANNUAL Debt Service (DS) 1 $1 $1 1 1 $1 $1 31
Cash-flow after Dabt Service $245,396 $243,909 $242,199 $240,259 $238,075 $223,126 $200,253 $167,748
{CF = NOI - DS)
Cash Flow to Supportive Services ($128,000) | ($131,840} {$135,795) | ($239,869) | ($144,065) | (3$148,387) | ($152,839) | ($157,424)
{32 Suggpctive Service Rudaet)
Debt Caverage Ratio 117396.00 | 112068.55 106404.29 100389.57 | 54010.26 74739.02 47354.44 10324.29 |
{DCR = NO1/DS)

*Proforma subject to change as the tas credit application is finalized. Final proforma will be provided upon tax credit app submission



ATTACHMENT 13:

SUPPORTIVE SERVICES STAFF
RESUMES



Julian Huerta

julian.huerta@foundcom.org
512-610-4013

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

Planning, implementing and evaluating educational opportunities and social services

EXPERIENCE
Director of Programs 1998-Present
Foundation Commuaities Austin, TX

Develops and directs educational and social service programs that assist families residing
in affordable housing communitics to increase their self-sufficiency.
Hires, trains and supervises professional staff at multiple sites.
Researches and authors grant proposals to public and private sources.

- Collects participation and outcomes data, conducts program assessments, and submits
reports to funding agencies and Board of Directors.
Collaborates with other community-based organizations and public agencies to maximize
opportunities available to residents.

Exccutive Director 1996-1997
Literacy Austin Austin, TX

Provided leadership for all programs, hired and supervised staff, and prepared and
implemented annual budget in order to achieve agency mission.

Directed public relations, community outreach and fundraising initiatives, including
proposal writing, corporate and individual solicitations and special events.

Collaborated with United Way, Community Action network partners and, citizen groups
and other community-based organizations to coordinate and maximize setvices to
disadvantaged residents of Travis County.

Information Systems Coordinator 1993-1996
American Institute for Learning Austin, TX

Collected and analyzed data from multiple education and human service programs.
Oversaw cligibility determination, assessment and enrollment of participants.

Hired, trained and supervised Information Systems, intake and clerical staff.
Participated in the evaluation of agency programs, including designing and conducting
research on client outcomes.



Mario Cortez
514 Pope Bend South, Unit B
Cedar Creek, Texas 78612
(512) 350-0008
zetrocl3@msn.com

Professional Experience

Foundation Communities, Austin Texas
Director of Supportive Housing

Oversees Foundation Communities’ Supportive Housing programs that houses 407 houscholds
at seven Foundation Communities properties.

Establishes partnerships with local non-profit agencies to create additional supportive housing
units at Foundation Communities properties.

Participates on leadership team charged with expanding Foundation Communities supportive
housing programs and units.

Maintains program participation and outcome data, program budgets, and submits reports on
program progress to funders.

Oversees all aspects of the Children’s HOME Initiative, including hiring, training and supervising
case managers, establishing program policies and procedures and interfacing with property
management staff to establish and enforce leasing policies.

Administers direct financial assistance programs designed to address immediate financial needs and
long-term personal stability needs of all Foundation Communities residents.

12/09 = present

Foundation Communities, Austin Texas 1/08~12/09
Program Coordinator, Children's HOME Initiative
®  Oversces all aspects of the Children’s HOME Initiative, including hiring, training and supervising
case managers, establishing program policies and procedures and interfacing with property
management staff to establish and enforce leasing policies.
* Performs client outreach and intake that include evaluating applications, interviewing applicant
families, determining suitability for the program and guiding approved families through the leasing
approval process.
® Maintains program participation and outcome data and submits reports on program progress to
senior management and funders.
*  Administers direct financial assistance programs designed to address immediate financial needs and
long-term personal stability needs of all Foundation Communities residents.
*  Establishes partnerships with community social service organizations to provide needed setvices for
participating families.
Front Steps, Inc., Austin Texas 7/04—1/08

Program Coordinator, Keep Asustin Housed AmeriCorps Program

Developed and managed all operational program activities and internal reporting methods in
accordance with federal regulations and state provisions.

Developed and managed systems to track petformance outcome data and reported on program
progress to federal and state enttes.

Established effective partnerships with social service organizations and developed and managed a
network of 12 agency partnerships with Keep Austin Housed.

Coordinated the recruitment, selection, and placement process of 25 AmeriCorps members annually
and managed members’ service terms.

Developed and implemented an annual training plan focused on building and strengthening the
professional skills of each member and provided supervisional support in members’ professional
development.




Foundation for the Homeless, Inc., Austin, Texas 7/03-7/04
Director of Social Services
_® Coordinated and supervised case management services. .
*  Served as community liaison and collaborated with community service providers to enhance services
to the homeless population.
* Acted as lead personnel in evaluating and monitoring program participants’ compliance with service
plans.
¢ Maintained program documentation in accordance with agency guidelines and reported outcome data
to funding sources.
®  Provided ficld instruction to interns from the UT School of Social Work.
Woodside Trails Therapeutic Camp, Smithville, Texas 1/03—7/03
MSSW Student Intern
* Worked with adolescent boys on issues of sexual victimization/ perpetration, anger management,
abuse, neglect, and addressed a variety of mental health disorders.
*  Provided individual, group and family therapy to twelve adolescents and their families.
®  Utlized a variety of therapeutic models (Play, CBT, Reality, and Narrative) and techniques.
® Participated in Comprehensive Treatment Plans and Treatment Planning Reviews.
®  Coordinated services with Juvenile Probation and Child Protective Services.
Foundation for the Homeless, Inc., Austin, Texas
Intake Manager 6/02—7/03
Passages Case Manager 10/97 - 5702
*  Conducted shelter intakes and evaluated family eligibility for agency shelters.
* Facilitated service planning process with homeless families, brokered community resources,
administered crisis intervention, and advocated for clients as they worked toward self-suffictency.
¢ Supervised Passages Case Managers and oversaw case management program.
*  Worked with senior staff on efforts of program development, volunteer recruitment and trainings.
® Organized and lead effort of data collection and database building to establish comprehensive
measurable objectives for agency’s service delivery system,
American Institute for Learning, Austin, Texas 9/96—5/97
BSN Student Intern
*  Served as counselor intern for GED classroom and the Career Resource Center.
* Provided educational and general counseling for culturally diverse, at-risk youth.
*  Facilitated adolescent male support group (ages 16-18) with an emphasis on gang related topics.
¢ Created and edited student involved newsletter for the Career Resource Center.
Helping Our Brothers Out, Inc., Austin, Texas 7/93—12/95
Chent Services Specialist
*  Administered direct client services and provided cdsis intervention to general homeless population.
¢ Developed and maintained database that documented governmental benefits for approximately two
thousand clients.
®  Assisted with recruitment, orientation and supervision of agency volunteers.
® Maintained monthly reports for client services, volunteer patticipation, and community service
workers.
'Education
Master of Science in Social Work 8/03
The University of Texas at Austin, Austin, Texas
Concentration: Clinical
Bachelor of Social Work 5197

The University of Texas at Austin, Austin, Texas
Generalist Practice




‘Honors & Affiliations

Basic Needs Coalition, Housing Stability Committee — Co-Chair

Social Services Case Management Network, Co-Chair

ECHO Point-In-Time Homeless Count — Co-Chair

Butler Award nominee (Keep Austin Housed) for True Spirit of Collaboration

Mentor, Alumni and Community Mentoring Program for Students Of Color — University of Texas at
Austin School of Social Work

Certified Field Instructor, The University of Texas at Austin School of Social Work

Phi Alpha National Social Wotk Honot Society

The Honor Society of Phi Kappa Phi

Canng Forever Award, Community award presented by Sheppard of the Hills Presbytedan Church
Homeless Task Force/Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO)

2008 = 2010
2008 - 2010 |.
2009-2010
2007
2006 — 2009

2004 — present
2003
2003
2002
1998 — present




3036 South 1* Street, Austin, TX 78704

(512} 610-4029

Marisela.Montoya@ foundcom.org

Marisela Montoya

Experience

Education

Interests

2010-Present Foundation Communities Austin, TX
Director of Education

L ]

Oversees 10 Learning Centers in Austin and the Dallas area. Learning
Centers provide afterschool and summer programs,

Oversces Adult Education programs such as English as a Second Language,
Computer Skills, Fitness and Nutrition and parental skills workshops
offered at the Learning Centers.

2001-2009 Foundation Communities Austin, TX
Lead Learning Center Coordinator

Created and implemented afterschool and summer programs for elementary
students of an affordable housing community in southwest Austin.

Provided referrals and resources for community residents as welt as adult
education programs.

Developed and implemented training and professional development for site
coordinators and front line staff.

1993-2001 Austin Independent School District Austin, TX
Program Specialist

Implemented afterschool and summer programs for economically-
disadvantaged elementary and junior high school students throughout
several campuses in South Austin.

Implemented a2 21st Century Community Center of Learning at Martin
Junior High.

1992-2000 The University of Texas at Austin Austin, TX

B.A., Psychology

Program management and development, community outreach, grant writing,
volunteer management, fundraising, event planning, workshop facilitation,
social services



E rika L eo0s - 6009 Daffodil Dr. #8, Austin, TX 78744 | 512-586-5205 | Erika.Leos@foundcom.org

Work Experience
October 2008-present  Foundation Communities Financial Goaching Goordinator Austin, TX
Program Management
* Oversee the consistent growth of the Financial Coaching program, more than doubling
participation from the start of the program to serving 605 clients in 2015
* Maintain partnerships with organizations that help with outreach and provide other
supports
¢ Developed training and resource materials for Volunteer Financial Coaches and clients
* Maintain accuracy and timeliness of training and resource materials
* Coordinate with Greeters to manage the program’s day-to-day operations
o manage appointments through the program’s scheduling system for over 500
clients a year
o serve as a resource for clients and volunteers with questions about financial
issues and resources
o serve as the Greeters for all financial programs at both Community Financial
Center locations, directing and answering questions for clients and volunteers
Volunteer Management
* Collaborate with Volunteer Coordinator to interview, select and train about 50 Volunteer
Financial Coaches each year
* Collaborate with Volunteer Coordinator and Financial Education Coordinator to select
and train about 10 Volunteer Money Management Instructors each year
* Provide ongoing training opportunities for volunteers
Capacity Building
® Provide the Institutional Giving Department program numbers, descriptions and client
stories for grant applications for Financial Capability Programs
* Compile data and write reports for program funders
Other programs
* Supervise the coordination of Financial Literacy programs, including Money
Management Classes, Improve Your Credit Days and Homebuyer Education Classes,
which serve about 150 clients per year
*  Work with the Special Housing Programs Coordinator to administer the Fresh Start Loan
program, helping clients get out of about $30,000 of payday and auto title loan debt to
date
*  Administer the Safety Net Savings Program, allowing 65 savers to access over $8,000 in
incentives for saving for emergencies to date
®  Administer the Emergency and Utility Assistance Programs, providing more than 150
Foundation Communities’ residents to access over $80,000 a year in rent, utility and
other assistance, allowing them to maintain housing and utility services
June 2004-Oclober2008  Foundation Communities Adult Education Goordinator Austin, TX
e Taught Engllsh as a Second Language (ESL) to adults at two Foundation Communities
Learning Centers
* Developed activities, materials and assessments for ESL class students
* Recruited, trained and managed volunteer ESL instructors
*  Taught Money Management course for adults using Foundation Communities’
curriculum, “Making More Sense of Your Dollar,” in English and Spanish
* Provided individual credit counseling to participants in the Money Management course
June 2003-May 2004 Century Motorcars Insurance Specialist Austin, TX
¢ Verified that all vehicles financed by Century Motorcars were properly insured
¢ Issued orders for repossession of cars that were not properly insured
® Collected and recorded car payments




June 2002-May 2004

Sep 1998-May 2002

Certification

¢ Contacted clients who were behind on car payments or who allowed insurance coverage
to lapse, and contacted their references in order to resolve the issue

* Learned valuable lessons aboul sub-prime lending practices that target low income, high-
credit-risk clients

Foundation Communities Youth Program Assistant/ESL _ Instructor Austin, TX
* Provided a positive, supportive environment for the children of low income families after
school and during the summer at the Sierra Ridge Learning Center
Assisted children in the After School Program at with homework
Led physical, educational and recreational activities for children in the After School and
Summer Programs
* Taught English as a Second Language to adults at two Foundation Communities’
Learning Centers
Pentacon Industrial Group Sales Assistant Austin, TX and El Paso, TX
* Helped finance all four years of college through part-time work at Pentacon
*  Operated specialized distribution software to confirm purchase order accuracy

®  Maintained filing system up to date and in order

August 2014

Skills

Certification in Financial Capability

Education

Language
®  Fluent in Spanish (oral and written)

Computer Knowledge
¢  Fully proficient in Microsoft Word, PowerPoint, Excel, Outlook, and Windows
* Fully proficient in web-based scheduling system, Appointment-Plus and web-based client
tracking system, Qutcome Tracker
* Experienced in managing data in Microsoft Access

Personal Skills
*  Well organized
e  Excellent oral and written communication skills

May 2002
Honors and
Activities

1999-2000

1999-2000

The University of Texas at Austin
Bachelor of Business Administration, Marketing

Presidential Achievement Scholarship
Earned and maintained the four-year scholarship from UT through academic achievement

Hispanic Business Students Association

Executive Vice President

* Received Most Outstanding Organization award from UT Leadership Board
* Coordinated events for Professional Development Committee

* Coordinated events for Recruitment and Retention Committee

* Participated in Corporate Mentor program

National Hispanic Business Association

University of Texas at Austin Represemative

*  Helped coordinate the 10" annual NHBA Leadership Conference
* Coordinated joint activities for NHBA and HBSA



EMMANUEL ZAPATA

emmanuel.zapata@foundcom.org | (512) 791-3222

SUMMARY

Successful program manager with extensive experience managing multiple projects while meeting
challenging deadlines, adept at promoting and developing team cohesiveness in high-pressure
environments.

EMPLOYMENT

FC Bilingual Adult Education Coordinator June 2011-Present
Coordinated English as a Second Language, Computer Literacy, Financial Education?, and Homebuyer
Education? classes

Screened, interviewed, hired, and trained 13 part-time employees and 2 yearly Americorps
members for the English as a Second Language classes in order to staff multiple classes in two
different Family properties

Worked with Supportive Services in each Studio property in order to provide Computer
Literacy classes for residents

Served as lead liaison for the Digital Empowerment Community of Austin and the Workforce
and Education readiness continuum

Networked with internal programs and outside organizations to recruit students and promote
classes

Maintained open lines of communication with the Grants Administrator in order to ensure
compliance with all contracts and grants

Compiled data and distributed reports for internal and external review while ensuring strict
adherence to the set budgets

Collaborated with the Volunteer Engagement Team to guarantee programs were adequately
staffed

Trained and managed volunteers for all programs with the exception of Homebuyer Education
Classes

Completed student follow-up reviews to collect data on student outcomes and opinions
Created and provided programing and structure for all educational programs ranging from
additional materials to full units

FC Community Tax Center Coordinator 10/2012-5/2013

Guided the CTC to an unprecedented 13% growth in tax returns filed compared to the year
before, completing over 18,000 returns

Interviewed, hired, and trained over 18 seasonal employees, making sure they felt included
and ready to succeed as a team

Led bi-weekly meetings covering program and tax law changes making sure all staff members
were up to date on best practices and new developments in the field

! ended 972012

2

Ended 5/2012



e Became point of contact for all host sites collecting and negotiating MOU's, handling site
setup and breakdown

® Facilitated the transition of new tax preparation software usage at sites, becoming a trusted

technical resource for staff and volunteers

Ensured all sites adhered to strict confidentiality practices in order to protect client data

Provided additional support to Transmitting Coordinator availing with daily deadlines and e-

filing returns to the IRS during peak periods

Assisted with data collection for internal and external reporting purposes

Participated in the ITIN program becoming a Certified Acceptance Agent

Taught UT practicum students the ins and outs of the ITIN application process

Produced training materials for site managers still in use today

Served as the lead contact for the IRS SPEC agent in charge of the region

FC CTC Supervising Manager 12/2009--5/2011
e Hired and trained seasonal CTC managers with partner Supervising Manager
® Recognized staff and volunteers for their contributions on a regular basis
e Supervised the quality control of returns prepared and collected returns from all sites in a
timely manner, encouraging a friendly and productive environment for staff and volunteers
® Became site liaison for partner agencies, coordinating inventory and supplies
e Certified to advanced tax preparation level

FC CTC Dolores Church Site Manager 1/2009--5/2009
e Created a positive team environment where volunteers and other employees felt appreciated
and supported

¢ Trained incoming volunteers on procedure and tax law, becoming a trusted resource

e Communicated regularly with supervisors to review best practices

o Dealt with complex issues client cases and endeavored to resolve them utilizing all resources
available

Texas Dept of Transportation Data Entry Specialist 8/2008-12/2008
¢ Helped transition the TxDOT records from printed documents to confidential databases
¢ Improved upon existing standards of data entry to facilitate speed and accuracy of the
transition
¢ Supported different programs in implementing new standards of practice

EDUCATION

Texas State University Bachelors of Science in Biology May 2008



Kori Hattemer
2205 Independence Dr, Austin, TX 78745
(254) 493-4967 = kori.hatlemer@gmail.com

EDUCATION
* Master of Public Affairs, LBJ School of Public Affairs, University of Texas at Austin, 2012
s Bachelor of Science, Kinesiology with honors, University of Texas at Austin, 2008

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

Foundation Communities, Austin, TX June 2016 to Present

Director of Financial Programs

* Overseeing the implementation of innovative and effective financial programs, including tax preparation
services, college support services, one-on-one financial coaching, emergency assistance, and financial
education.
Managing a team of program coordinators and direct service providers.

*  Securing funding to support all financial programs and efficiently managing financial programs budget.

Corporation for Enterprise Development, Washington, DC October 2012 to June 2016
Associate Director, Savings & Financial Capability, October 2015 to Present
»  Provided strategic and operational oversight to the planning, implementation, and evaluation of a wide range
of initiatives aimed at increasing the capacity of organizations to deliver financial capability services
effectively.
Built a strong team through recruitment, supervision, and professional development.
Established and maintained strategic relationships with external practitioners, subject matter experts, and
funders to identify new opportunities for collaboration.

Senior Program Manager, Savings & Financial Capability, January — October 2015

¢ Created and managed project budget and work plans to meet organizational and funder objectives.

» Ensured project staff had adequate expertise and capacity to meet project deliverables.

* Developed and delivered in-person and virtual learning events for diverse audiences around the country.

* Drafted and edited various communications materials, including practice briefs, blog posts, concept papers,
project proposals, and grant reports.

Program Manager, Savings & Financial Capability, October 2012 — January 2015

¢ Provided technical assistance to organizations working to design, implement, and evaluate financial
capability services.

* Disseminated findings and lessons learned about savings and financial capability initiatives through practice
briefs, blog posts, and webinars.

Center for Public Policy Priorities, dustin, TX May 2011 — May 2012
Policy Research Assistant

* Co-authored an annual report on the impact of public policy on various aspects of child well-being in Texas.
¢ Co-authored policy briefs on metro, state, and national-level census data.

Office of State Representative Ruth Jones McClendon, Austin, TX January - May 2011
Legislative Intern

* Collaborated with staff to draft and revise legislation in areas including education, health, and criminal justice.
 Analyzed and prepared policy briefs on legislation within designated issue areas.

American Lung Association, Austin, TX April 2008 - January 2010
Program Director

¢ Procured funding for and managed community initiatives in a three-county area.

¢ Recruited and trained volunteer educators and professional advisory board



NATASHA BROCKINGTON
305 E. Yager Lane #522
Austin, TX 78753
585-802-9166
NBROCKINGTONOO@GMAIL. COM

Education

Experience

Professional
Development

Bachelor of Science in Business Education August, 2000 - Aay, 2004
Daemen College, Amherst, New York

College Hub Manager December 2016- Present
Foundation Communities, Austin TX

Program design and implementation

*  Lead community outreach efforts
s Establish relationships with community partners
®  Analyze data
®  Adhere to standards set by funders
Director of GED and Literacy Services October 2006 -Present
LifeWorks, Austin TX
¢ Oversce GED and Literacy services
®  Develop and manage relationships with community contacts including referral sources, school
persannel, and other service providers in the community
¢ Plan professional development activities for team
¢ Integrate delivery of program services with all other agency service divisions
¢  Monitor program budget and make necessary adjustments as needed
GED Instructor January 2014-August, 2014

Austin Community College, Austin, TX

Taught reading and math skills, social justice and community issues, and cultural awareness to
students at varying levels

®  Assessed individual student progress and adapted curriculum according to the needs of students

*  Evaluated student progress in relation fo their preparedness for specific GED exams

®  Coordinated with test providers to arrange GED exams around resting dates and scores

*  Maintained records in accordance with best practices and policies

ESL Instructor September 2013-December 2013

Austin Independent School District, Austin TX

Developed and delivered lesson plans utilizing a broad range of techniques
Provided 2 nurturing, supportive, and positive learning environment

Used assessment data to develop appropriate goals and objectives for the student
Maintained stadent data

Counscled and supported students in developing and accomplishing Individual Leasning Plans and
goals,

Secondary Education Teacher-Business Education August, 2004 - August, 2006
Thomas Stone High School, Waldotf, MD

Taught Business Education courses to secondary students

Complied with Maryland Technology Literacy Standards to teach course content

Prepared objectives and outlines for courses of study and assisted in developing curriculum
Counseled students dealing with behavior and academic problems

Completed parental correspondence and conferences to discuss student progress and academic
standards and expectations

Handle with Care Training September 2016
Child and You Care Basic Course August 2016
Crucial Conversations Training March 2016
Reaching the Adult Learner January 2016
Diversity and Blended Cultures Training August 2015

Establishing Boundaries with At-Risk Youth Training August 2015



CAPABILITIES

WORK EXPERIENCE HIGHLIGHTS

Andrea Braun Albalawi, LMSW

111 Perpetuation Drive, Austin, TX 78734
andrea.mssw@gmail.com * 512-785-2105

Extensive cxperience in implementing large-scale health fairs, fitness events and health education
campaigns

Development of new programs including adule fitness and nutrition, children’s physical activity,
women and family health, integrated primary and behavioral health, healthcare access, domestic
violence, child protection, human trafficking

Proficiency in conducting research, analyzing data (SPSS, Excel, Access) and developing evaluation
instruments

Experienced in organizational strategic planning, SMART objectives, and key performance
deliverables

Excellent leadership and decision making skills and accountability

Foundation Communities- Austin, TX Sept 2012 - Present
Director of Health Initiatives

e  Create a comprehensive plan, including a timeline and key deliverables, to coordinate, improve
and expand health initiatives targeting FC communities

*  Collaborate with UT School of Public Health to develop an evaluation of FC Afterschool
Physical Activity program and the improvement of existing CATCH and Peer Led Active Play
activities in the youth afterschool programs

¢ Oversee health fairs, 5K races, community walks, wellness events, mobile screenings and
healtheare providers at FC properties for FC and neighbothood residents

* Represent FC in key neighbothood-based and community-wide health initiatives; help lead
community-building efforts in 78745 in conjunction with key partners to implement place-based
strategies focused on reducing childhood obesity and improving health outcomes for children

*  Work with key partners to expand access to integrated health care (mental health and primary
care} for residents of our Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) facilities and to help all
residents establish a health care home, utilizing appropriate public and private providers and
other resources.

* Increase chronic diseasc management programs and services at FC properties, especially PSH

* Optimize the integration of fitness and nutrition programming into afterschool and adult
education programs on-site at FC properties

*  Ensure the availability of resources to address women’s health issues, including family planning
and prenatal care; increase access to parenting classes

* Develop resources, including volunteers and funding, to launch and sustain these initiatives;
develop, manage, and maintain strong partner relationships

*  Create and oversee the program budget, including approval of expenditures

* Develop metrics and measurement systems for assessing the impact of our work and produce
reports for internal decision-makets and key funders

Dubai Foundation for Women and Children- Dubai, UAE March 2008 — July 2012
Djrector of Programs & Research

Oversaw all activities and staff of the Department of Programs & Research
Promoted from Program Development Manager to Director of Programs & Research
Wrote grant proposals for research funding and oversaw research projects and statistical reporting

Speatheaded the development of the first Saaal Work Master degree program for UAE national
university, in collaboration with The University of Texas at Austin, School of Social Work

]l"‘.li-.||._: W



*  Supervised volunteers and international social work interns from the UT School of Social Work

®  Conducted staff trainings on professional cthics, confidentiality, professional boundartes, crisis
intervention, conflict resolution, cultural competence, compassion fatgue and self-care, restorative
justice, diversity, child abuse, bullying, sexual abuse survivors, trafficking, domestic violence

®  Presented at schools, universities, embassies, consulates, international organizations, and the Dubai
Police on relevant social issues, including child abuse, domestic violence and human trafficking

*  Establish annual goals, budgets and key performance indicators for measurement and reporting

* Developed agency programs, policies, procedures, forms, and job descriptions, in accordance with
United Nations and international accreditation standards

®* Conducted Strategic Planning sessions complete with goals, objectives, and performance measures

*  Wrote the first regional report on human wafficking, 2012 Human Trafficking Measurement Report:
Trends, Challenges and Achierements, documenting best practices, challenges and achievements

* Developed the database for the collection of client statistics for trans-national data sharing

General Authority for Health Services- Abu Dhabi, UAE November 2004 — July 2006
Social Worker II-Health Education Division

*  Designed and implemented health education campaigns, including Cardiovascular Disease, Smoking,
Obesity, Substance Abuse, Safe Sex, Breast Cancer, and Hepatitis

" Supervised field actvities, including training and managing 250 nurses in 200 sites, screening 200,000
community members for cardiovascular diseases & tracking $4 million budget

® Designed screening methodologies, logistics, training materials, and policies for above initiatives
*  Evaluated project outcomes, designed databases, and collected and monitored statistics

* Wrote a 150 page in-depth review of cardiovascular disease project finding for publication

Human Appeals International- Dubai, UAE June 2003 — November 2004
Consultant

® Wrote grant proposals to attain funding for the Charity Cards Project

®  Edited the Annual Report on Humanitarian Aid to Irag and drafted correspondences to funders

* Coordinated with the American University to establish a student volunteerism program

Family Eldercare- Austin, TX, USA May — August 2004
Fan Drive Coordinator

* Coordinated the distribution of 7200 fans and 150 air conditioners to poverty-stricken individuals
® Managed 40+ participating agencies and supervised and trained over 100 volunteers

®* Compiled client demographic data in the ACCESS database for data analysis and reporting

® Tracked expenditures to stay within the $100,000 summer fan drive budget

® Coordinated media relations and participated in broadcasted television and radio intervicws

Center for Public Policy Priorities- Texas Fragile Families- Austin, TX Jan 2003 — May 2003
Graduate Research Intern
® Collected and analyzed qualitative data for an 11-city, statewide fathethood demonstration project

* Conducted qualitative interviews with state agency collaborators at the Texas Attorney General,
Health Department, Juvenile Justice, Housing Authority, and Hogg Foundation

* Wrote a 50-page qualitative analysis for the Lassons Learned book on fatherhood initiatives



Center for Social Work Research at the University of Texas- Austin, TX  Nov 2000 — Jan 2003
Research Assistant
®  Worked on large rescarch projects on social welfare, border poverty, and childeare

* Implemented database using Nudist for a multi-method rescarch study on social welfare reform

Green Leaf Refugee Service Program,- Austin, TX Aug 2001 - May 2002
Case Manager

*  Provided case management and counseling to refugees, partnering with local resettlement agencies
* Created a Refugee Resource Directory of local services and educational opportunities for refugees

*  Assessed the refugee service delivery system in Travis County to determine gaps in services

LifeWotks - Austin, TX July 1997 = Jan 2001
Team Leader/Youth Care Worker ITT

® Supervised and trained direct care staff and volunteers working in shelter services

® Conducted orientations, intakes, life skills and housing groups, case management, and follow-ups

® Developed the Life Skills Training courses and the Youth & Staff Policies for national accreditation

EDUCATION - -
Master of Science in Social Work, Administration & Planning Concentration ~ May 2003
The University of Texas of Austin, TX
Bachelor of Arts in Cultural Anthropology, Minor in Biology Dec 1995
The University of Texas of Austin, TX

Other Credentials
Race Director Certification, Level 1 Sept 2014
USA Triathlon
Licensed Master Social Worker, License # 52469 Nov 2010-Present

Texas State Board of Social Work Examiners

COMMUNITY SERVICE

*  Served on the Board of Directors for NASW International Chapter Aug 2008-May 2011

8 Doctors Without Borders, Dubai, UAE Dec 2003 — Aug 2005
®  First Aid Instructor American Red Cross, Austin TX June 1999 — Dec 2002
=  Easter Seals of Central Texas, Austin, TX Sept 1999 — Dec 1999
®  Texas Governor’s Office on People with Disabilities, Austin, TX April 1997 — July 1997
®  US Peace Corps-Health Education, West Africa Dec 1996 - April 1997

LANGUAGE & COMPUTER SKILLS

®  Fluent in English; Basic Spanish
" Proficient in MS Office, ACCESS, SPSS, Web Page Design, and several MIS and Internet programs

A|Albalawa



ATTACHMENT 14:
SUPPORTIVE SERVICE BUDGET



Supportive Service Budget
Waters Park Studios

Sources Year i

Project Cash Flow $128,000

St. David's Foundation (SDF) - Healthy Minds $46,425

City of Austin (COA) PSH Supportive Services Funding 428,750

Private Fundraising - Individual Donors $105,080

TOTAL SOURCES $308,255

Uses Notes

Program Manager Salary $45,000 one full-time position

Supportive Service Coordinator Satary $40,000 one full-time position

24-Hour Desk Clerks $102,500 24 hour front desk clerks

Payroll Taxes £16,875

Worker's Comp £487

Retirement $4,688

Health Insurance $16,875

Supplles/Printing $1,000

Tralning/Travel/Mileage $1,000

Direct Ald - Food Bank 44,500

Direct Ald - Transportation £1,500

Direct Aid - Medical $3,500

Welcome Home Baskets $155 household items given to residents upen move-in
contracted w/ H.A.N.D. & Lone Star Circle of Care
({indudes part-time psychiatrist and part-time certified

Clinical Mental Health Treatment/Prevention Services $56,250 nurse assistant)

Detox Services {(Substance Abuse) $1,675 contracted w/ Austin Recovery

Inpatient Residential Treatment (Substance Abuse) $8,500 contracted w/ Austin Recovery

Supported Employment Program 43,750 contracted w/ Austin Clubhouse, Inc.

TOTAL $308,255



ATTACHMENT 15:
OPPORTUNITY MAP DOCUMENTATION



Waters Park Studios — Comprehensive Opportunity Map
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ATTACHMENT 16:
MBE CERTIFICATION



AUSTINTEXAS GOV ARPORT LIBRARY AUSTIN ENERGY AUSTIH WATER | CONVENTION CENTER VISITORS BUREAY | OPEN

SMBR Certified Vendors

Disclaimer: The information pravided is for your convenience and is notintended to replaca the official availability list of a solicitation. Contact SMBR’s Contract
Compliance Division at 512-874-7600 to request a copy of the availability list or a new availability list for new scopes identified,

| Download lhiE file

1 Results

Vendor Information Contact Inlorm!tla_n Ethnicity Certification Type End Dale
Fayez Kazi Asian Minority/Disadvantaged Owned Business 12/08/18

Civilitude, LLC Phone:(512) 761-8161

1210 Rosewood Ave. Fax: (512) 761-6167

Austin. TX 78702 info@civilitude.com

Disclaimer The information provided is for your convenience and is not inlendad to replace the official availability list of a solicitation. Contact SMBR's Contract
Compliance Division at 512-974-7600 1o request a copy of the availability list or a new availability list for new scopes identified



MEMORANDUM _OF UND I
BETWEEN ECHO & FC WATERLOQ TERRACE HOUSING, LP

This document sets forth the terms of the memorandum of understanding between Ending Community Homelessness Coalition
{ECHO) and FC Waters Park Housing, LP, dba Waterloo Terrace (Qwner), to be located at 12190 N Mopac Expy, Austin, Texas,

ECHO is the lead agency for the HUD funded Continuum of Care {CaC) for Austin/ Travis County. For the purpase of this
memarandum of understanding, "ECHO Partles” will include ECHO and all of its partner organizations who will be making refarrals
to Waterloo Terrace under the direction of ECHO, Including Caritas of Austin, Front Steps, etc. FC Waters Park LP Is the owner an
afifordable hausing apartment complex to be located at {INSERT ADDRESS OF PROPERTY], to be known as Waterloo Terrace.
Foundation Communities will develop and pravide property management services upon completion, Constructian s expacted to
start in spring of 2015 and a Certificate of Occupancy issued by end of 2020,

Purpase
The purpase of this MOU Is to establish how these entities will work together to provide permanent supportive housing at
Watarloo Terrace for up ta 27 Individuals participating in Continuum of Care housing programs facilitated by ECHO Parties.

Respansibllitias
Owner will:

1. Make available up to 27 units at Waterloo Terrace for lease to clients of ECHO Parties referred through the Coordinated Entry
pracess under tha terms of this memorandum of understanding.

2. Employ Tenant Selection Criterla that is sufficiently low-basrier to screen in qualified applicants within ECHO

Partles’ client population and is mutually agreed upon by both parties, specifically in the areas of rental history and
criminal background criteria, {EXHIBIT A)

3. Enter Waterloo Terrace residents referred by ECHO Parties under the terms of this memorandum of
understanding into the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) as required by City funding.

ECHO Partiss will:
1. Refer up to 27 quallfied applicants for the units. The applicants will be clients participating In Permanent Suppertive
Housing {PSH) or Rapld Rehousing (RRH), or similar, programs for chronically homeless and/or hameless persons.

2, Provide case management services to lts clients living at Waterloo Terrace and work cooperatively with Waterloo Terrace
staff to help clients malintain their housing,

3. Provide written verification of each referred client's homeless status.

4. Pay move-In costs and monthly rent for units occupied by clients of its programs, according to the terms of the programs in
which the clients are participating {PSH, RRH or similar).

5. Provide a risk mitigation guarantee of up to $1400 for clients, referred into the 27 units, who are determined to have
negative rental history as defined by Water’s Park Tenant Selection Criteria as defined in Exhiblt A. For clients so Identified, ECHO
Parties wifl provide an individual guarantee for each new move in, which will cover any rental losses, damages, or legal costs
incurred by Owner above and beyond the rental deposit collected by Owner, up to the $1400 limit. For clients that da not meet
the rental history criterla as defined by Water's Park Tenant Selection Criteria, ECHO Parties will provide a risk mitigation
guarante of up to $2000. Each guarantee will be individually documented and remalin in pface for the duration of each cllent’s
tanancy at Waterlog Terrace,

€. Frovide priority referrals to clients participating In PSH programs aver clients participating In other programs that do not
provide permanent housing assistance.



Terms of the Memorandum of Understanding

1. Owner is required to fulfill funding obligations as stated in its Land Use Restrictlon Agreements {LURAs} with the City of Austin, -
the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affalrs, and the requirements of any other capltal funders over and above all
other memorandum of understandings.

2. Units wilt be made available on 3 predetermined schedufe during the initial lease-up of Waterloo Terrace
after a Certificate of Occupancy Is issuved.

3. Once lease-up Is complete, units will be avallable from the first tax credit unit (per LURA requirements) to
become available until the terms of this memorandum and the City LURA requirements are fulfilled, up ta 27 units. Units
will be identified by Dwner based on availability and are not fixed units.

4. If a unlt Is not leased within 10 business days of notification to ECHO of such available unit, Owner may proceed in filling
the unit with an applicant from the project’s waltlist by other low-income applicants. In such case, If the number of units
covered in this memorandum of understanding has fallen helow 27, Owner will continue to notify ECHO of all future
vacancies and follow the same pracedure until the number of units reaches 27.

5. Owner resesves the right to place applicants in 30%, 40% or 50% units based on availabliity and the length of the subsidy
provided to that applicans through ECHO Parties.

6. Applicants referred by ECHO will be subject to Owner’s typical application process that includes an Income, credit and criminal
history review. Each such applicant must have income that is below 50 percent of the area Median Familly Income (MF1). Owner
reserves the right to have final approval of all resident lease agreements.

7. Owner will not be required to accept or retaln any rasident who does not meet the qualifications and requirements as
determined by Qwner. This memorandum of understanding will not be affected by the refusal of Owner to accept an applicant

asit Is specifically agreed that Qwner has the right to accept or reject any applicant that does not meet our leasing criteria as
stated In this memarandum of understanding.

Amendments

This memorandum of understanding may be amended at any time with agreed changes being documentad, accepted and signed
by Owner and ECHO.

Termination

Owner and ECHO agree to coaperale in canrying out the terms of this memorandum of understanding. Fallure to do so by elther
party, or violation of any stipulations of the memerandum of understanding by elther party shall warrant termination of the
memorandum of understanding with thirty (30) days’ notice.

Either party shall have the right to terminate this memorandum of understanding upon 60 days prior written notice to the other
party. s

Uabliity &'indemsification = R
ECHO Partles will pravide commercially reasonable coverage for a fidelity bond, general liability insurance and professicnat
services Insurance, and shall cause Owner and Foundation Communities listed to be listed as an Additional tnsured.

ECHO shall indemnify, save and hold harmless Owner and Foundation Communities agalnst any and 3!l expense and liability of any
kind arising out of any negligent act or omission of any ECHO employee which Owner or Foundation Communities may sustain,
Incur or be required to pay arising out of this contract due to such negligence acts or omissions; provided, however, that the
provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to liabllities or expenses caused by or resulting from the willful or negligent acts or
omisslons of Owner, Foundation Communities, or any of their respective officers or employees.

ECHO acknowledges that Owner would not have entered into the above-described resident leases outside of the execution of this
memorandum of understanding.



If It becomes necessary for either party hereto to engage an attarney to enforce the rights and remedies of such party (non-
breaching party} hereunder, after such hon-braaching party has notified the other party (breaching party) and provided 10
business days to remedy the situation, the non-breaching party may recover reasonable attorneys' fees from the breaching
party, even If suit has not been filed. In any lawsult to enfarce the provisions of this memorandum of understanding, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recaver reasonable attorneys’ fees from the nonr-prevalling party, Induding all out-
of-pocket costs of Rtigation.

Each party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other party from any and all expenses and Habifity resulting from or arising out
of any negligence or misconduct on such party’s part to the extent that the amaunt exceeds the applicable insurance carried on
elther party.

Buratlon of Memorandum of understanding
This memuranzum of understanding will be made effactive as of f I i I 20 and will remain effective for a period of one year,

expiring on,

By signing below, both parties agree to the terms of this memorandum of understanding,

7f31/1 9

Ann Howard, Executive Director Ipate *
ECHO

A /2L iz

Walter Moreau Date
Executive Director, Foundation Communities
Authorized Agent far FC Waters Park Houslng, LP



EXHIBIT A

CREDIT HISTORY / RESIDENTIAL HISTORY:

Waterloo Terrace Staff will obtain a aedit report from a Credit Bureau on each applicant. All rental
history reflected on the credit bureaw will be verifled. The name of the third party screening company will
be provided upon request. Residential History must be provided on the application for the last two years
and may include apartments (other rentals), shelters or transitional housing, friends/family or
homelessness, Verification of homelessness will be requested if applicable.

Applicants who have skipped/left without notice, been asked to move, terminated or non-renewed by
management for non-rent issues or have a history of lease violations at any previous rental property will
be denled. Applicants who owe maney for damages will not be considered for occupancy. Applicants who
owe maney for non-payment of rent under $2000 will be considered for occupancy.

Applicants who do not meet the rental history describad above, but otherwise meet all of the Tenant
Selection Criteria for Waterloo Terrace and who have not been evicted for any reason more than once in
the past two years and who do not owe sums for damages In excess of $200D will be required to pay an

additional security depasit in the amount of $1400 and subject to the Security Depasit rules outlined in
the TAA lease.

25 property: Applicants who currently owe
money o any communlty nwned and managed by Foundatlon Communities will be denied. Applicants
with negative rental history at any community owned and managed by Foundation Communities within
the past 24 months will be denled, Negative rental history is defined as having been evicted, skipped/left
without notice, asked to move by managemént or non renewed. Applicants who were evk:ted for non-

rent breaches of lease at any community owned and managed by Foundation Communities will be denled
permanentiy.

This does not apply to appilcants who who were charged for any damagas and/or received any lease
violations that are directly related to protections under the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA).

CRIMINAL HISTORY CRITERIA:
1) The following criminal convictions will be permanently excluded/denied:
e (Capital Murder, Murder, or any Murder Related Offense
Rape, Sexual Assault, Lifetime Registered Sex Offenders, or crimes of a Sexual Nature.
Kidnapping
Arson
Felony Manufacture of Methamphetamines®

* FC may request further information for felony drug manufacturing charges that are not
specific

2) Felony convictions involving violence or use/possession of a weapon (including Manslaughter) will be
excluded for 7 years from the date of conviction. This includes felony (not misdemeanor) convictlons for
any type of assault, terroristic threat, obstruction or retaliation, violation of a protactive order, burglary
of habitation, aggravated robbery, and harassment. We raserve the right to determine whether an act
qualifies as violent for the purposes of scraening our applicants.

3) Non-violent felonies will be excluded for 3 years from the date of conviction.
4) All Class A misdemeanors will be excluded for 1 year from the date of conviction.

Applications with pending criminal charges will be considered denied unless proof of dismissal can be
Immediately provided. Mitigating Circumstances will be considered for criminal convictions older than

20 years except in the case of lifetime registered sex offenders and those convicted of manufacturing
methamphetamine.



ELECTRONICALLY RECORDED 2018139358

TRV 3 PGS
NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON,
YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION
FROM THIS INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC
RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE
NUMBER.

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED WITH VENDOR’S LIEN

STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

That Robert A, Chaffee and Vickie Chaffee (collectively referred to as the "Grantor"),
for and in consideration of the sum of TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS (810.00) cash, and other
good and valuable consideration to it paid by FC WATERS PARK HOUSING, LP, a Texas
limited partnership ("Grantee"). the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby fully
acknowledged and confessed by Grantor, and the further consideration of the execution and
delivery by Grantee of those certain Promissory Notes (the “Note™) of even date herewith in the
original principal sum of Three Million Two Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars
($3.200,000.00) and Three Million Three Hundred Seventy Thousand Six Hundred Fifty eight
and No./100 Dollars (3,370,658.00), all payable to the order of Foundation Communities, Inc.,, a
Texas non-profit corporation and bearing interest as therein specified, providing for acceleration
of maturity and for attorney’s fees. the payment of which Note is secured by the vendor's lien
retained in favor of Foundation Communities, Inc., a Texas non-profit corporation, and is
additionally secured by a deed of trust of cven date herewith from Grantee to Cathleen C. Slack,
Trustee, and by these presents does hereby GRANT, BARGAIN, SELL, CONVEY. ASSIGN
AND TRANSFER unto Grantee, the following real property situated in Travis County, Texas,
together with any and all improvements, rights, privileges, hereditaments and appurtenances
thereto, being hereafter referred to as the "Property”, 10 wit:

Lot 2, of GARNER & KISSMAN SUBDIVISION, a subdivision in Travis
County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof, recorded in Volume 24, Page
43, Plat Records of Travis County, Texas.

This conveyance. however, is expressly made and accepted subject to any and all existing
cncumbrances, conditions and restrictions and governmental regulations, relating (o the Property
as described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for all
purposes being herealter referred to as "Permitted Exceptions®.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, subject as aforesaid, unto Grantee, Grantee's
successors and assigns forever, and Grantor does hereby bind themselves and their heirs,
successors and assigns to warrant and forever defend all and singular the Property unto Grantee,
its successors and assigns against every person whomsoever claiming. or to claim the same, or
any part thereof.

Ad valorem taxes with respect to the Property are prorated as of this date and by acceptance
of this General Warranty Deed, Grantee assumes payment of all ad valorem taxes and special and

{067.00205245.1} General Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien
Page | 1



general assessments of whatever nature applicable to the Property for the ycar 2018 and
subsequent years, as well as all special and genecral assessments of whatever nature applicable to
the Property.

But it is expressly agreed that the Vendor’s Lien, as well as Superior Title in and to the
above-described Property is retained against the Property, premises and improvements until the
above-described Note and all interest thercon are fully paid according to the face, tenor, effect
and rcading thercof, when this Deed shall become absolute. The Vendor’s Lien, together with the
superior Litle lo said property, is retained herein for the benefit of said Lender and the same are
hereby TRANSFERRED AND ASSIGNED to said Lender, its successors and assigns.

When the context requires, singular nouns and pronouns include the plural.
st

Executed to be effective as of the 5] “day of August, 2018.

GRANTOR:

Robert A. Cha Ffe‘%——\
\(e_\l,.c_%a&__

Vickie Chafifee

STATE OF TEXAS

s o

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this 2C day of August. 2018, by
Robert A. Chatfee and Vickie Chaftee.

. ot
Given under my hand and seal ol officc this ‘:ija’ay oi‘ﬂ#}‘Z 18

e —
(_NotaryPlblic in and for the State of Texas

(067.00205245.1} General Warcanty Deed with Vendor's Lien
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EXHIBIT “A”
PERMITTED EXCEPTIONS

l. Building setback line, 25 feet in width, along the front property line, as recorded in/under
Volume 24, Page 43 of the Plat Records of Travis County. Texas.

2. 10" electric easement, across (middle) subject property, as recorded infunder Volume 24,
Page 43, Map/Plat Records. Travis County, Texuas.

3. Easement, Right ol Way and/or Agreement granted to LCRA, by instrument recorded
infunder Volume 645, Page 250 of the Deed Records, Travis County, Texas.

4. Easement, Right of Way and/or Agreement granted to City of Austin, by instrument
recorded infunder Volume 2410, Page 147 of the Real Property Records, Travis County, Texas.

5. Eascment, Right of Way and/or Agreement granted to City of Austin, by instrument
recorded infunder Volume 659, Page 564 of the Deed Records, Travis County, Texas.

6. Easement, Right of Way and/or Agreement granted to City of Austin, by instrument
recorded infunder Volume 2680. Page 475 of the Real Property Records. Travis County, Texas.

GRANTEE’S MAILING ADDRESS:
FC Waters Park Housing, LP

3036 S. 1* Street

Austin, Texas 78704

£067.00205245.1} General Warranty Decd with Vendor's Lien
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ELECTRONICALLY RECORDED 2018139369

TRV 4 PGS
NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON,
YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION
FROM THIS INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC
RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE
NUMBER.

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED WITH VENDOR’S LIEN

STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

That Daniel K. Baird and Cathy J. Baird (collectively referred to as the "Grantor"), for
and in consideration of the sum of TEN AND N0/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) cash, and other good
and valuable consideration to it paid by FC WATERS PARK HOUSING, LP, a Texas limited
partnership ("Grantee"), the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby fully acknowledged and
confessed by Grantor, and the further consideration of the execution and delivery by Grantee of
those certain Promissory Notes (the “/Note”) of even date herewith in the original principal sum
of Three Million Two Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($3,200,000.00) and Three
Million Three Hundred Seventy Thousand Six Hundred Fifly eight and No./100 Dollars
(3,370,658.00), all payable to the order of Foundation Communities, Inc., a Texas non-profit
corporation and bearing interest as therein specified, providing for acceleration of maturity and
for attorney’s fees, the payment of which Note is secured by the vendor’s lien retained in favor
of Foundation Communities, Inc., a Texas non-profit corporation, and is additionally secured by
a deed of trust of even date herewith from Grantee to Cathleen C. Slack, Trustee, and by these
presents does hereby GRANT, BARGAIN, SELL, CONVEY, ASSIGN AND TRANSFER unto
Grantee, the following real property situated in Travis County, Texas, together with any and all
improvements, rights, privileges, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto, being hereafier
referred to as the "Propergy”, to wit:

Being 1.45 acres of land, more or less, out of the JAMES ROGERS SURVEY in
Travis County, Texas, being the same tract described in Warranty Deed recorded
in Document Number 2003011408 of the Official Public Records of Travis
County, Texas. Said 1.45 acre tract being more particularly described by metes
and bounds in Exhibit " A" attached hereto and made a part hereof.

This conveyance, however, is expressly made and accepted subject to any and all existing
encumbrances, conditions and restrictions and governmental regulations, relating to the Property
as described in Exhibit "B'. attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for all
purposes being hereafier referred to as "Permitted Exceptions”.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with all and singular the rights and
appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging unto Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns,
forever; and Grantor does hereby bind Grantor and Grantor’s heirs, successors and assigns to
WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND the Property and all and singular the rights and
appurienances thereto in anywise belonging unto Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns,
against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof, by,

{067.00205247.2} Special Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien
Page |1



through or under Grantor, but not otherwise.

Ad valorem taxes with respect to the Property are prorated as of this date and by acceptance
of this General Warranty Deed, Grantee assumes payment of all ad valorem taxes and special and
general assessments of whatever nature applicable to the Property for the year 2018 and
subsequent years, as well as all special and general assessments of whatever nature applicable to
the Property.

But it is expressly agreed that the Vendor’s Lien, as well as superior title in and to the
above-described Property is retained against the Property, premises and improvements until the
above-described Note and all interest thereon are fully paid according to the face, tenor, effect
and reading thereof, when this Deed shall become absolute. The Vendor’s Lien, together with the
superior title to said property, is retained herein for the benefit of said Lender and the same are
hereby TRANSFERRED AND ASSIGNED to said Lender, its successors and assigns.

When the context requires, singular nouns and pronouns include the plural.
Executed to be effective as of the ‘_: 'ZI Shay of August, 2018.
GRANTOR:

Daniel K. Baird

=N Y

Ca